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During fi scal 2008, we took signifi cant steps that leave Darden well positioned to achieve 

and sustain strong profi table sales growth.  And we did so while successfully navigating 

a particularly challenging consumer and cost environment – delivering results on key 

measures of sales, earnings and profi tability that were competitively superior.
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OUR GOALS AND STRATEGY
During calendar 2008, we continued to execute against 
our ultimate goal. Our passion is to create a great company, 
which we defi ne as one that is:

•  A winning organization fi nancially – translating sales 
and earnings growth which is competitively superior 
within our industry into top quartile total shareholder 
return within the S&P 500.

•  A special place – one that everyone wants to be part of 
because they have an opportunity to fulfi ll their profes-
sional and personal dreams.

 More specifi cally, our aim fi nancially is to sustain 
long-term annual sales growth of 7 percent to 9 percent 
and diluted net earnings per share growth of 10 percent 
to 15 percent, which are what we believe the full-service 
restaurant industry offers effective multi-unit operators 
longer term. Culturally, we want to create an organization 
that understands, values and helps realize the dreams and 
aspirations of our employees, who are essential to achieving 
our fi nancial targets.
 We recognize that there will be years when consumer 
and cost dynamics will not permit us to achieve our long-
term fi nancial targets, and fi scal 2008 was certainly one of 
those. Our goal, however, is to deliver competitively superior 
results, even during such periods as we did in fi scal 2008.
 Our strategy for creating a great company has been 
consistent for some time now as well. We seek to build a 
multi-brand growth company – bound together by a unify-
ing culture, shared expertise and a common approach to the 
business – that operates existing brands at a consistently 
high level and successfully adds new brands.

FISCAL 2008 HIGHLIGHTS

EXECUTING OUR STRATEGY
Put most simply, executing our strategy involves building 
great brands. And that starts with having differenti-
ated and relevant brands and entrusting each to Brand 

Management and Restaurant Operations leaders who 
are great brand builders. Beyond great brand builders, 
strong and durable brands also require great brand 
support. For us, that means competitively superior 
expertise, systems, processes and practices in important 
areas like Human Resources, Supply Chain, Information 
Technology and Finance, among others.
 During the leadership transition that took place at 
Darden in calendar 2004, we concluded that, to better 
execute each element of our strategy, we needed to trans-
form the Company. It was clear that our brand portfolio 
had to be stronger. It was equally clear that we had to 
be better brand builders, provide better brand support 
and – to sustain excellence in these areas – enhance our 
culture. What was most apparent, however, is that success 
on any of these fronts meant making some fundamental 
changes in how we work.
 Based on these conclusions, we started down the path 
of transformation in calendar 2004, and our progress accel-
erated in fi scal 2008. Among other things, this year we:

• Acquired RARE Hospitality International, Inc. (RARE) 
and its two brands, LongHorn Steakhouse and The 
Capital Grille, and completed the disposition of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill, resulting in a more proven 
portfolio of brands that has much stronger collective 
sales and earnings growth potential.

• Developed and began implementing integration plans 
for LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille that 
further leverage our brand support, putting us on track 
to capture meaningful cost synergies that are beyond 
those estimated in our initial acquisition analysis. 

• Continued to both add to and optimize the use of our
brand-building resources by working in an ever more 
integrated manner across brands in the two critical brand-
building areas – Brand Management and Restaurant
Operations – to ensure that each brand benefi ts from 
our collective expertise, whether grounded in talent, pro-
cesses or practices.

2 0 0 8  A N N U A L  R E P O R T

Darden_CVR_rev.indd.CGLAR1   1Darden_CVR_rev.indd.CGLAR1   1 7/23/08   4:19:18 PM7/23/08   4:19:18 PM



 What We

Bring To 
The Table

D
ard

en
 R

estau
ran

ts, In
c.  

2008 A
n

n
u

al R
ep

o
rt

Darden Restaurants, Inc.  •  5900 Lake Ellenor Drive, Orlando, FL 32809  •  (407) 245-4000  •  www.darden.com

During fiscal 2008, we took significant steps that leave Darden well positioned to achieve 

and sustain strong profitable sales growth.  And we did so while successfully navigating 

a particularly challenging consumer and cost environment – delivering results on key 

measures of sales, earnings and profitability that were competitively superior.
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Our Goals and Strategy
During calendar 2008, we continued to execute against  
our ultimate goal. Our passion is to create a great company, 
which we define as one that is:

•  A winning organization financially – translating sales 
and earnings growth which is competitively superior 
within our industry into top quartile total shareholder 
return within the S&P 500.

•  A special place – one that everyone wants to be part of 
because they have an opportunity to fulfill their profes-
sional and personal dreams.

	 More specifically, our aim financially is to sustain  
long-term annual sales growth of 7 percent to 9 percent 
and diluted net earnings per share growth of 10 percent 
to 15 percent, which are what we believe the full-service 
restaurant industry offers effective multi-unit operators 
longer term. Culturally, we want to create an organization 
that understands, values and helps realize the dreams and 
aspirations of our employees, who are essential to achieving 
our financial targets.
	 We recognize that there will be years when consumer 
and cost dynamics will not permit us to achieve our long-
term financial targets, and fiscal 2008 was certainly one of 
those. Our goal, however, is to deliver competitively superior 
results, even during such periods as we did in fiscal 2008.
	 Our strategy for creating a great company has been 
consistent for some time now as well. We seek to build a  
multi-brand growth company – bound together by a unify-
ing culture, shared expertise and a common approach to the 
business – that operates existing brands at a consistently 
high level and successfully adds new brands.

Fiscal 2008 Highlights

EXECUTING OUR STRATEGY
Put most simply, executing our strategy involves building 
great brands. And that starts with having differenti-
ated and relevant brands and entrusting each to Brand 

Management and Restaurant Operations leaders who 
are great brand builders. Beyond great brand builders, 
strong and durable brands also require great brand 
support. For us, that means competitively superior 
expertise, systems, processes and practices in important 
areas like Human Resources, Supply Chain, Information 
Technology and Finance, among others.
	 During the leadership transition that took place at 
Darden in calendar 2004, we concluded that, to better 
execute each element of our strategy, we needed to trans-
form the Company. It was clear that our brand portfolio 
had to be stronger. It was equally clear that we had to 
be better brand builders, provide better brand support 
and – to sustain excellence in these areas – enhance our 
culture. What was most apparent, however, is that success 
on any of these fronts meant making some fundamental 
changes in how we work.
	 Based on these conclusions, we started down the path  
of transformation in calendar 2004, and our progress accel- 
erated in fiscal 2008. Among other things, this year we:

• Acquired RARE Hospitality International, Inc. (RARE)  
and its two brands, LongHorn Steakhouse and The 
Capital Grille, and completed the disposition of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill, resulting in a more proven 
portfolio of brands that has much stronger collective 
sales and earnings growth potential.

• Developed and began implementing integration plans 
for LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille that 
further leverage our brand support, putting us on track 
to capture meaningful cost synergies that are beyond 
those estimated in our initial acquisition analysis. 

• Continued to both add to and optimize the use of our 
brand-building resources by working in an ever more 
integrated manner across brands in the two critical brand-
building areas – Brand Management and Restaurant 
Operations – to ensure that each brand benefits from  
our collective expertise, whether grounded in talent, pro- 
cesses or practices.
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Shareholder Information

COMPANY ADDRESS
Darden Restaurants, Inc.
5900 Lake Ellenor Drive
Orlando, FL 32809
(407) 245-4000

MAILING ADDRESS
Darden Restaurants, Inc. 
P.O. Box 593330
Orlando, FL 32859-3330

WEBSITE ADDRESSES
www.darden.com
www.redlobster.com
www.olivegarden.com
www.longhornsteakhouse.com
www.thecapitalgrille.com
www.bahamabreeze.com
www.seasons52.com

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND 
DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 N. Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139
Phone: (877) 602-7596 or (651) 450-4064
www.wellsfargo.com/com/shareowner_services
Address correspondence as appropriate to the 
attention of:
 Address Changes
 Stock Transfers
 Shareholder Services

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
KPMG LLP
111 North Orange Avenue
Suite 1600
Orlando, FL 32801
Phone: (407) 423-3426

FORM 10-K REPORT
Shareholders may request a free copy of our Form 10-K, 
including schedules but excluding exhibits, by writing to:
Investor Relations, Darden Restaurants, Inc. 
P.O. Box 593330, Orlando, FL 32859-3330

SHAREHOLDER REPORTS/INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Shareholders seeking information about Darden Restaurants 
are invited to contact the Investor Relations Department at 
(800) 832-7336. Shareholders may request to receive, free of 
charge, copies of quarterly earnings releases.
 Information may also be obtained by visiting our website 
at www.darden.com. Annual reports, SEC filings, press releases, 
and other Company news are readily available on the website.
 Our website also includes corporate governance information, 
including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics, and board committee charters, 
including the charters for our Audit, Compensation and 
Nominating and Governance Committees. We believe we are 
in compliance with the applicable corporate governance listing 
standards of the New York Stock Exchange, as of the date of 
this report.

DARDEN RESTAURANTS 
BEING OF SERVICE REPORT
To receive a copy of the 2008 Darden Restaurants Being Of 
Service Report, mail a request to the Foundation Administrator, 
Darden Restaurants, Inc., P.O. Box 593330, Orlando, FL 32859-
3330, or visit our website at www.darden.com. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. 
Eastern Daylight Savings Time on Friday, September 12, 2008, 
at the Hyatt Regency Orlando International Airport, 
9300 Airport Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32827.
 As of the close of business on July 21, 2008, we had 
37,144 registered shareholders of record. 

MARKETS
New York Stock Exchange
Stock Exchange Symbol: DRI

CERTIFICATIONS
We have filed as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended May 25, 2008, the Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer certifications required by Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We have also submitted the 
required annual Chief Executive Officer certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange. 

 

In alignment with Darden’s commitment to sustainability, parts of this 
report have been printed on paper that is manufactured with 100% 

post-consumer waste and the rest of this report is printed on paper with at least 
10% post consumer recycled fiber. These forests are certified to a responsibly 
managed forest management standard.
 Diversity is both a core value and a competitive advantage for Darden. 
As an example of our continuing commitment to diversity, this annual report was 
designed by a woman-owned company, Corporate Reports Inc. of Atlanta, GA.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS continued 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Fiscal Year Ended
(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006

Sales  $ 6,626.5 $ 5,567.1  $ 5,353.6
Earnings from Continuing Operations $ 369.5 $ 377.1  $ 351.8
Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 7.7 $ (175.7) $ (13.6)
Net Earnings $ 377.2 $ 201.4  $ 338.2
Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations:
 Basic $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35
 Diluted $ 2.55 $ 2.53 $ 2.24
Net Earnings per Share:
 Basic $ 2.69 $ 1.40  $ 2.26
 Diluted $ 2.60 $ 1.35  $ 2.16
Dividends Paid per Share $ 0.72 $ 0.46  $ 0.40
Average Shares Outstanding:
 Basic  140.4  143.4  149.7
 Diluted  145.1  148.8  156.9

•  Established a Specialty Restaurant Group that focuses on those 
brand-building considerations which distinguish our smaller 
brands from our larger ones, and that provides the smaller 
brands with senior management and support leadership in a cost-
effective manner.

•  Continued to increase the effi ciency and effectiveness of the 
brand support we provide by creating new “Centers of Excellence” 
in several areas to consolidate work that was previously done in mul-
tiple brands into single cross-enterprise units – reducing the cost 
of support and providing brand leaders with more time to focus on 
brand building.

•  Launched an Organic Growth effort within our new Business 
Development Group to better ensure that we fully capture the inno-
vative, longer-term brand extension opportunities available to our 
existing brands.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financially, our results from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 
were competitively superior in what was clearly a challenging indus-
try environment. 

•  Sales from continuing operations increased 19 percent to $6.63 
billion for fi scal 2008, which refl ects the addition of LongHorn 
Steakhouse and The Capital Grille as well as new restaurant growth at 
Olive Garden and same-restaurant sales growth at Olive Garden and 
Red Lobster. 

•  Net earnings from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$369.5 million, a 2 percent decrease from net earnings from
continuing operations of $377.1 million in fi scal 2007. Diluted net
earnings per share from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$2.55, a 1 percent increase from diluted net earnings per share of 
$2.53 in fi scal 2007. Net earnings from continuing operations in 
fi scal 2008 include the acquisition and integration costs and 

purchase accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of RARE; 
these were approximately $44.8 million before income taxes, or 
19 cents per share.

•  Excluding acquisition and integration costs and purchase account-
ing adjustments related to the RARE acquisition, diluted net earnings 
per share from continuing operations were $2.74 in fi scal 2008, an 
increase of 8 percent compared to diluted net earnings per share 
from continuing operations of $2.53 in fi scal 2007.

•  In fi scal 2008, net earnings from discontinued operations were 
$7.7 million, and diluted net earnings per share from discontin-
ued operations were $0.05, related primarily to the sale of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill in January 2008, which resulted in a gain. 
Including earnings from discontinued operations, combined net 
earnings were $377.2 million in fi scal 2008, 87 percent above the 
combined net earnings of $201.4 million in fi scal 2007. Including 
earnings from discontinued operations, combined diluted net 
earnings per share were $2.60 in fi scal 2008 compared to $1.35 in 
fi scal 2007.

•  Olive Garden’s total sales were a record $3.07 billion, up 10 percent 
from fi scal 2007. This refl ected record average annual sales per
restaurant of $4.9 million, the addition of 39 net new restaurants 
and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth of 4.9 percent, which is 
favorable by 6.6 percentage points to the Knapp-Track industry 
benchmark estimate. Olive Garden also reported their 55th con-
secutive quarter of same-restaurant sales increases in the fourth 
quarter of fi scal 2008. 

•  Red Lobster’s total sales were a record $2.63 billion, an increase 
of 1 percent from fi scal 2007. Average annual sales per restaurant 
were $3.9 million and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth for fi scal 
2008 was 1.1 percent, which is 2.8 percentage points favorable to the 
Knapp-Track industry benchmark estimate. 

•  LongHorn Steakhouse’s total sales from completion of the RARE 
acquisition on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 
were $575 million, a 7 percent increase from the comparable prior 
year period. This refl ected average annual sales per restaurant of 
$2.9 million, the addition of 24 net new restaurants and an annual 
U.S. same-restaurant sales decline of 1.9 percent. 

•  The Capital Grille’s total sales from completion of the acquisition 
on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 were $170 
million, a 12 percent increase from the comparable period the prior 
year. Average annual sales per restaurant were $8.1 million, four net 
new restaurants were added and U.S. same-restaurant sales declined 
1.1 percent. 

•  Bahama Breeze’s total sales were $135 million, down 2 percent 
from fi scal 2007 as a result of a same-restaurant sales decline of 1.8 
percent in fi scal 2008 and average annual sales per restaurant were 
$5.9 million.

•  Seasons 52’s total sales were $45 million in fi scal 2008, a 15 percent 
increase from fi scal 2007. 

•  We continued the buyback of Darden common stock in fi scal 
2008, spending $159 million to repurchase 5.0 million shares. Since 
beginning our share repurchase program in 1995, we have repur-
chased approximately 147 million shares of our common stock for 
$2.78 billion. 

FISCAL 2009 OUTLOOK 
For Darden, fi scal 2009 will be a year of strategic continuity. Our 
strategy and the strategic goals we established at the time of the 
Darden leadership transition nearly four years ago remain the same. 
We also continue to believe that successfully executing that strategy 
involves transforming the Company. Changing the brand portfolio 
to include LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille is the most 
obvious step in that direction. And, continuing to integrate these 
brands successfully so that we fully realize their potential is a priority.
 Beyond integration, we are focused on the priorities that helped 
prepare the organization operationally and culturally for the 
acquisition and integration of new brands. These priorities center 
on increasing collaboration across the Company in order to make 
better use of our considerable brand-building expertise, increasing 
the effi ciency and effectiveness of the brand support we provide and 
enriching the professional and personal experience we offer our 
employees – all of which complement and support the brand- specifi c 
priorities of our operating companies.
 These brand-specifi c priorities can be summarized as follows:

•  Olive Garden – Continue new restaurant growth while maintaining 
same-restaurant sales excellence and growth.

•  Red Lobster – Solidify and broaden appeal in order to grow same-
restaurant guest counts and support new restaurant growth.

•  LongHorn Steakhouse – Regain sustainable same-restaurant guest-
count growth while delivering value creating new restaurant growth 
on a path to national penetration and the advantages that come with it.

•  The Capital Grille – Regain guest-count momentum while developing 
the organizational capacity to sustain elevated new restaurant growth 
with excellence.

•  Bahama Breeze – Deliver on the brand’s potential by enhancing 
same-restaurant excellence while preparing for meaningful new 
restaurant growth.

•  Seasons 52 – Successfully transition from a developmental orienta-
tion and model to a proven concept geared to drive new restaurant 
growth with excellence.

CONCLUSION
We are convinced that Darden’s success as a public company since 
our spin-off from General Mills in 1995 and the enviable competitive 
position we currently enjoy are the product of a strong collection of 
brands, great brand building and great brand support, all resting on 
a solid foundation that includes competitively superior leadership 
and a supportive and motivating culture. We continue to believe, 
however, that to achieve our ultimate aim of building a great com-
pany – one that is the best in our industry now and for generations – 
meaningful change in each of these aspects of our organization is 
essential. We are committed to the transformation that is required, 
and we see the progress we made in fi scal 2008 as powerful evidence 
of that commitment.
 We believe our plan for fi scal 2009 reinforces and extends the 
progress made to date in transforming the Company. And in doing 
so, it puts Darden even more confi dently on the path to sustaining 
strong profi table sales growth, becoming a special place and real-
izing our potential for greatness.
 Thank you for being a shareholder and placing your trust in 
our ability to build a great company that will perform strongly and 
ethically for generations. 

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer
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Shareholders seeking information about Darden Restaurants 
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(800) 832-7336. Shareholders may request to receive, free of 
charge, copies of quarterly earnings releases.
 Information may also be obtained by visiting our website 
at www.darden.com. Annual reports, SEC filings, press releases, 
and other Company news are readily available on the website.
 Our website also includes corporate governance information, 
including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics, and board committee charters, 
including the charters for our Audit, Compensation and 
Nominating and Governance Committees. We believe we are 
in compliance with the applicable corporate governance listing 
standards of the New York Stock Exchange, as of the date of 
this report.

DARDEN RESTAURANTS 
BEING OF SERVICE REPORT
To receive a copy of the 2008 Darden Restaurants Being Of 
Service Report, mail a request to the Foundation Administrator, 
Darden Restaurants, Inc., P.O. Box 593330, Orlando, FL 32859-
3330, or visit our website at www.darden.com. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. 
Eastern Daylight Savings Time on Friday, September 12, 2008, 
at the Hyatt Regency Orlando International Airport, 
9300 Airport Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32827.
 As of the close of business on July 21, 2008, we had 
37,144 registered shareholders of record. 
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CERTIFICATIONS
We have filed as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended May 25, 2008, the Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer certifications required by Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We have also submitted the 
required annual Chief Executive Officer certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange. 

 

In alignment with Darden’s commitment to sustainability, parts of this 
report have been printed on paper that is manufactured with 100% 

post-consumer waste and the rest of this report is printed on paper with at least 
10% post consumer recycled fiber. These forests are certified to a responsibly 
managed forest management standard.
 Diversity is both a core value and a competitive advantage for Darden. 
As an example of our continuing commitment to diversity, this annual report was 
designed by a woman-owned company, Corporate Reports Inc. of Atlanta, GA.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS continued 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Fiscal Year Ended
(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006

Sales  $ 6,626.5 $ 5,567.1  $ 5,353.6
Earnings from Continuing Operations $ 369.5 $ 377.1  $ 351.8
Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 7.7 $ (175.7) $ (13.6)
Net Earnings $ 377.2 $ 201.4  $ 338.2
Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations:
 Basic $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35
 Diluted $ 2.55 $ 2.53 $ 2.24
Net Earnings per Share:
 Basic $ 2.69 $ 1.40  $ 2.26
 Diluted $ 2.60 $ 1.35  $ 2.16
Dividends Paid per Share $ 0.72 $ 0.46  $ 0.40
Average Shares Outstanding:
 Basic  140.4  143.4  149.7
 Diluted  145.1  148.8  156.9

•  Established a Specialty Restaurant Group that focuses on those 
brand-building considerations which distinguish our smaller 
brands from our larger ones, and that provides the smaller 
brands with senior management and support leadership in a cost-
effective manner.

•  Continued to increase the effi ciency and effectiveness of the 
brand support we provide by creating new “Centers of Excellence” 
in several areas to consolidate work that was previously done in mul-
tiple brands into single cross-enterprise units – reducing the cost 
of support and providing brand leaders with more time to focus on 
brand building.

•  Launched an Organic Growth effort within our new Business 
Development Group to better ensure that we fully capture the inno-
vative, longer-term brand extension opportunities available to our 
existing brands.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financially, our results from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 
were competitively superior in what was clearly a challenging indus-
try environment. 

•  Sales from continuing operations increased 19 percent to $6.63 
billion for fi scal 2008, which refl ects the addition of LongHorn 
Steakhouse and The Capital Grille as well as new restaurant growth at 
Olive Garden and same-restaurant sales growth at Olive Garden and 
Red Lobster. 

•  Net earnings from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$369.5 million, a 2 percent decrease from net earnings from
continuing operations of $377.1 million in fi scal 2007. Diluted net
earnings per share from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$2.55, a 1 percent increase from diluted net earnings per share of 
$2.53 in fi scal 2007. Net earnings from continuing operations in 
fi scal 2008 include the acquisition and integration costs and 

purchase accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of RARE; 
these were approximately $44.8 million before income taxes, or 
19 cents per share.

•  Excluding acquisition and integration costs and purchase account-
ing adjustments related to the RARE acquisition, diluted net earnings 
per share from continuing operations were $2.74 in fi scal 2008, an 
increase of 8 percent compared to diluted net earnings per share 
from continuing operations of $2.53 in fi scal 2007.

•  In fi scal 2008, net earnings from discontinued operations were 
$7.7 million, and diluted net earnings per share from discontin-
ued operations were $0.05, related primarily to the sale of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill in January 2008, which resulted in a gain. 
Including earnings from discontinued operations, combined net 
earnings were $377.2 million in fi scal 2008, 87 percent above the 
combined net earnings of $201.4 million in fi scal 2007. Including 
earnings from discontinued operations, combined diluted net 
earnings per share were $2.60 in fi scal 2008 compared to $1.35 in 
fi scal 2007.

•  Olive Garden’s total sales were a record $3.07 billion, up 10 percent 
from fi scal 2007. This refl ected record average annual sales per
restaurant of $4.9 million, the addition of 39 net new restaurants 
and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth of 4.9 percent, which is 
favorable by 6.6 percentage points to the Knapp-Track industry 
benchmark estimate. Olive Garden also reported their 55th con-
secutive quarter of same-restaurant sales increases in the fourth 
quarter of fi scal 2008. 

•  Red Lobster’s total sales were a record $2.63 billion, an increase 
of 1 percent from fi scal 2007. Average annual sales per restaurant 
were $3.9 million and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth for fi scal 
2008 was 1.1 percent, which is 2.8 percentage points favorable to the 
Knapp-Track industry benchmark estimate. 

•  LongHorn Steakhouse’s total sales from completion of the RARE 
acquisition on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 
were $575 million, a 7 percent increase from the comparable prior 
year period. This refl ected average annual sales per restaurant of 
$2.9 million, the addition of 24 net new restaurants and an annual 
U.S. same-restaurant sales decline of 1.9 percent. 

•  The Capital Grille’s total sales from completion of the acquisition 
on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 were $170 
million, a 12 percent increase from the comparable period the prior 
year. Average annual sales per restaurant were $8.1 million, four net 
new restaurants were added and U.S. same-restaurant sales declined 
1.1 percent. 

•  Bahama Breeze’s total sales were $135 million, down 2 percent 
from fi scal 2007 as a result of a same-restaurant sales decline of 1.8 
percent in fi scal 2008 and average annual sales per restaurant were 
$5.9 million.

•  Seasons 52’s total sales were $45 million in fi scal 2008, a 15 percent 
increase from fi scal 2007. 

•  We continued the buyback of Darden common stock in fi scal 
2008, spending $159 million to repurchase 5.0 million shares. Since 
beginning our share repurchase program in 1995, we have repur-
chased approximately 147 million shares of our common stock for 
$2.78 billion. 

FISCAL 2009 OUTLOOK 
For Darden, fi scal 2009 will be a year of strategic continuity. Our 
strategy and the strategic goals we established at the time of the 
Darden leadership transition nearly four years ago remain the same. 
We also continue to believe that successfully executing that strategy 
involves transforming the Company. Changing the brand portfolio 
to include LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille is the most 
obvious step in that direction. And, continuing to integrate these 
brands successfully so that we fully realize their potential is a priority.
 Beyond integration, we are focused on the priorities that helped 
prepare the organization operationally and culturally for the 
acquisition and integration of new brands. These priorities center 
on increasing collaboration across the Company in order to make 
better use of our considerable brand-building expertise, increasing 
the effi ciency and effectiveness of the brand support we provide and 
enriching the professional and personal experience we offer our 
employees – all of which complement and support the brand- specifi c 
priorities of our operating companies.
 These brand-specifi c priorities can be summarized as follows:

•  Olive Garden – Continue new restaurant growth while maintaining 
same-restaurant sales excellence and growth.

•  Red Lobster – Solidify and broaden appeal in order to grow same-
restaurant guest counts and support new restaurant growth.

•  LongHorn Steakhouse – Regain sustainable same-restaurant guest-
count growth while delivering value creating new restaurant growth 
on a path to national penetration and the advantages that come with it.

•  The Capital Grille – Regain guest-count momentum while developing 
the organizational capacity to sustain elevated new restaurant growth 
with excellence.

•  Bahama Breeze – Deliver on the brand’s potential by enhancing 
same-restaurant excellence while preparing for meaningful new 
restaurant growth.

•  Seasons 52 – Successfully transition from a developmental orienta-
tion and model to a proven concept geared to drive new restaurant 
growth with excellence.

CONCLUSION
We are convinced that Darden’s success as a public company since 
our spin-off from General Mills in 1995 and the enviable competitive 
position we currently enjoy are the product of a strong collection of 
brands, great brand building and great brand support, all resting on 
a solid foundation that includes competitively superior leadership 
and a supportive and motivating culture. We continue to believe, 
however, that to achieve our ultimate aim of building a great com-
pany – one that is the best in our industry now and for generations – 
meaningful change in each of these aspects of our organization is 
essential. We are committed to the transformation that is required, 
and we see the progress we made in fi scal 2008 as powerful evidence 
of that commitment.
 We believe our plan for fi scal 2009 reinforces and extends the 
progress made to date in transforming the Company. And in doing 
so, it puts Darden even more confi dently on the path to sustaining 
strong profi table sales growth, becoming a special place and real-
izing our potential for greatness.
 Thank you for being a shareholder and placing your trust in 
our ability to build a great company that will perform strongly and 
ethically for generations. 

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer
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A Clear Strategy For Sustained Growth Put most simply, our strategy 

to create a multi-brand restaurant growth company involves building great brands. And that starts with having 

differentiated, relevant brands and entrusting each to Brand Management and Restaurant Operations leaders who 

are great brand builders. We expect these leaders to continuously increase brand relevance – and as a result, 

guest loyalty – by successfully developing and executing strategies that enhance both the positioning and delivery 

of the brand. Beyond great brand builders, strong and durable brands also require great brand support in important 

areas like Human Resources, Supply Chain, Information Technology and Finance, among others. Finally, we believe 

we can only take full advantage of our brand-building and brand-support expertise by working as an integrated 

organization – leveraging common values and sharing proven operating practices.

 We also recognize that we must become even better brand builders and even more effective in supporting 

our brands. Both innovation and continuous improvement in these critical dimensions will enable us to sustain strong 

profi table sales growth over the long term by successfully capitalizing on the opportunities and navigating through 

the challenges which inevitably arise in our dynamic industry. As we respond to this imperative, we bring to the table 

a powerful combination of great brands, deep expertise, competitively superior scale, clear direction and strong 

confi dence in what we can accomplish.
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A Refreshing Seaside Dining Experience
As the restaurant company that introduced seafood to much of America, Red Lobster 
has a proud history.  The company continues to be the market leader in full service 
seafood dining and continues to evolve to refresh the brand. With 651 restaurants 
in the United States and 29 in Canada, Red Lobster had record total sales for fi scal 
2008 of $2.63 billion, an average of $3.9 million per restaurant.

2 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC.
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“ All of us at Red Lobster are proud of our heritage and excited 
about the future. We have the best people in the industry, 
committed to delighting our guests with fresh, delicious 
seafood prepared with culinary expertise and served in a 
friendly, welcoming environment. Our vision is to be where 
America goes for seafood now and for generations, and we 
believe we have what it takes to make that vision a reality.” 

Kim Lopdrup
President, Red Lobster

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 3
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An Idealized Italian Family Meal
Olive Garden continues to be the number one Italian family of restaurants in full 
service dining. In fi scal 2008, the company continued to accelerate new restaurant 
growth opening 39 net new restaurants for a total of 647 in the United States and six 
in Canada. Olive Garden posted its 55th consecutive quarter of U.S. same-restaurant 
sales growth in fi scal 2008 and had record total sales of $3.07 billion, an average of 
$4.9 million per restaurant.

4 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 
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“ Olive Garden’s success is a direct refl ection of the strong 
leadership teams in our restaurants and the commitment of 
more than 80,000 team members to our purpose, ‘Hospitaliano’ – 
Our Passion for 100% Guest Delight! We’re proud of our strong 
brand and the results we have achieved, yet we will continue 
to pursue ever higher standards of excellence.”

Dave Pickens
President, Olive Garden

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 5
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A Friendly Western-Style Dining Experience
As the second largest full service steakhouse chain, LongHorn Steakhouse is a 
trusted brand with broad appeal. The company opened 24 net new restaurants 
totaling 305 in the United States and achieved record total sales for the fi scal year. 
Total sales since the acquisition were $575 million, an increase of 7 percent from 
the comparable period last year, refl ecting average annual sales per restaurant of 
$2.9 million.

6 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 
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“ The LongHorn legacy was founded on legendary steaks, an 
inviting atmosphere and genuine hospitality. And while we’re 
all very proud of what we’ve accomplished, we fi rmly believe 
that with our great people committed to providing fresh, 
fl avorful food and great service combined with being a part 
of the Darden family of restaurants – the best is yet to come.”  

Dave George
President, LongHorn Steakhouse

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 7
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“ The Capital Grille’s 18-year track record of 
success has been grounded in operational 
excellence, with special focus on providing 
superior service and building customer 
relationships. We look forward to accelerat-
ing our growth while continuing to exceed 
the high expectations of discerning guests.”

John Martin
President, The Capital Grille

A Personalized
Experience

The Capital Grille is a best-in-class 
steakhouse concept with a club-like 
atmosphere that builds exceptional 
guest relationships through personalized 
service. Total sales since the acquisition 
were $170 million, an increase of 12 percent 
from the comparable period last year. 
The company opened four net new 
restaurants and average annual sales 
per restaurant were $8.1 million.

8 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 
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“ At Bahama Breeze, we hold ourselves to high 
standards when it comes to providing our 
guests with a great Caribbean escape. I am 
proud of the tremendous progress our restau-
rant teams have made on elevating the guest 
experience and broadening our brand’s appeal. 
Thanks to their hard work, we are excited to 
restart new restaurant growth in fi scal 2009.” 

Laurie Burns,
President, Bahama Breeze

A Caribbean Escape
Now in its 13th year, Bahama Breeze 
provides the feeling of a Caribbean 
escape, with fresh, delicious, Caribbean-
inspired food, refreshing tropical drinks 
and the warm, vibrant atmosphere of the 
islands.  The company’s 23 restaurants 
operating in 12 states achieved total sales 
of $135 million in fi scal 2008, an average 
of $5.9 million per restaurant.

Darden_NAR_rev.CGLAR1.indd   9Darden_NAR_rev.CGLAR1.indd   9 7/23/08   6:33:59 PM7/23/08   6:33:59 PM



“ We are delighted with the continuing positive 
response from guests as they embrace the 
unique experience of Seasons 52. Our culinary, 
beverage and service teams are committed 
to excellence, and we’re looking forward to 
building the talent pool and systems needed 
to support our growth.”

Stephen Judge
President, Seasons 52

Seasonally Inspired
Seasons 52 continues to please guests by 
celebrating living well and providing the 
sensational fl avors of a seasonally inspired 
menu complemented by an award-winning 
wine list and superior service. The company 
operates seven restaurants in Florida and 
Georgia, and maintained strong average 
unit volumes and solid restaurant-level 
profi tability through the year.  Fiscal 2008 
sales were $45 million, a 15 percent increase 
from prior year, with an average of $6.5 million 
per restaurant. 
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What Else We 
Bring To The Table
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We Bring 
Expertise
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We believe there is a signifi cant growth opportunity 
in full-service dining because our industry addresses two 
increasingly important human needs. First and foremost, we 
offer time-starved consumers great tasting food that is rich 
in variety, physically nourishing and more convenient than 
cooking at home. Just as important, we offer emotional 
nourishment – through attentive service that anticipates the 
needs of our guests and provides the opportunity to relax 
or reinvigorate, and to reconnect with friends and family. 
 At Darden, our brands have to deliver these category 
benefi ts. But, to be competitively superior, they must be 
differentiated from and more relevant than the other choices 
available in the marketplace. This allows our brands to build 
deeper emotional connections with our guests. That’s why 
Brand Management excellence is at the core of our strategy 
for achieving sustainable growth.
 Our Brand Management expertise starts with robust 
research to understand who our guests are, how they live 
their lives, what they need today and how those needs may 
change over time. Armed with this inspired insight, we work 
to create and evolve compelling restaurant experiences that 
speak to guests emotionally and physically. Each brand’s 

promise for a differentiated experience then serves to align all 
touch points a guest experiences when visiting our restaurants.
 And that’s where our Restaurant Operations expertise 
takes over. From the time guests enter our parking lot, receive 
a warm, friendly welcome, are shown to their table, enjoy their 
food, and are genuinely thanked on the way out for letting us 
serve them, we are delivering on the promise of the brand. 
And we do this through thousands of employees for millions 
of guests each week.  
 Successfully delivering on the promises we make involves 
fully staffi ng our restaurants with terrifi c people to whom we 
are providing exceptional employee experiences. That means 
employees are clear about their role in delivering on the brand 
promise. They receive the competitively superior training and 
tools they need to run great shifts – to be “brilliant with the 
basics.” And, they are treated with a level of respect and caring 
that creates strong emotional commitment and motivates 
tremendous discretionary effort.  
 In short, the brand-building expertise Darden brings 
to the table when we combine Brand Management and 
Restaurant Operations excellence is as much about inspira-
tion as it is execution…it is both art and science.
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We Bring 
Scale
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A s we work to build great brands, we also bring to 
the table strong brand-support expertise that refl ects our 
signifi cant scale – scale that is unmatched in the full-service 
restaurant industry. The resources that come with our scale 
enable us to invest in great people – people with superior 
expertise in a range of important support functions – and 
to invest in strong systems. As a result of these investments, 
we are able to support our brands more effectively and 
effi ciently than many competitors. This is an especially 
important advantage as our industry is challenged to respond 
to current cost pressures related to increasing globalization 
and the changing public policy landscape in the U.S.
 Darden is fi rst and foremost a people business, and our 
nearly 180,000 employees are our greatest competitive edge.  

Because of that, many of our brand-support investments 
are in systems that enhance our ability to attract, retain and 
develop the best people. We also invest in driving and sustaining 
competitive superiority in our supply chain capabilities. With 
a $2.4 billion supply chain we have the size and scope to 
explore innovations and initiatives that will help us become 
more effi cient and socially responsible in the way we harvest, 
process, ship and serve the high-quality, delicious food our 
guests expect. And, our scale and resources enable us to 
continue to make investments that others cannot in areas of 
our restaurant support infrastructure, including information 
technology and restaurant-level labor and food cost manage-
ment processes. 
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We Bring 
Direction
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Throughout the Company, everyone is aligned with our 
ultimate goal – to create a great company that is the best in 
our industry now and for generations. With that alignment, 
Darden brings another strength to the table – clear direction 
about our future. This clarity starts with a shared understand-
ing of what being a great company means. First, we believe it 
means being a winning organization fi nancially – one that 
consistently grows sales and earnings at competitively superior 
levels within our industry and delivers a competitively superior 
total shareholder return. Secondly, it means being a special 
place – one that everyone wants to be a part of because the 
people who work at Darden, the people who do business with 
Darden and the people who invest in Darden are able to 
fulfi ll their personal and professional goals.

 To become the kind of great company we aspire to be, 
we will continue to execute our multi-brand growth strategy by 
working to strengthen our brand-building and brand-support 
capabilities. That, in turn, enables us to strengthen our brands 
themselves. More specifi cally, we are changing how we work in 
ways that drive increased collaboration across the Company. Our 
objectives are to better ensure that brand-building expertise we 
have in any part of the Company benefi ts the entire organization; 
further increase the cost-effi ciency of our brand support to 
free additional resources for investment in brand-building; 
provide our brand leaders with more time to focus on brand 
building by pushing as much brand support as possible to 
others in the organization; and enrich the experience we offer 
our employees by ensuring that we look across all of Darden 
to help maximize their opportunity for professional growth. 
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We Bring 
Confi dence
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Finally, Darden brings to the table what we believe is 
well-supported confi dence in our long-term prospects…
confi dence that comes from being an industry pioneer and 
learning what it takes to succeed at different stages of growth 
and in different operating environments.
 We have a strong culture with a compelling core purpose: 
to nourish and delight everyone we serve – which means 
making a positive difference in the lives of our employees and 
colleagues, our guests, our vendor and community partners, 
our shareholders and all the others we touch. With the addition 
of LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille, we have a 
strong portfolio of trusted, broadly appealing brands that has 

much stronger collective sales growth potential than we’ve 
had historically. We have demonstrated expertise in building 
great brands. We have the expertise and scale to support our 
brands effectively and effi ciently, as well as a commitment to 
becoming even better at building and supporting brands.  
And, we are strongly aligned about what success looks like.
 We are confi dent that, with all Darden brings to the table – 
including our strong portfolio of brands and combination of 
expertise, scale and clear direction – we are well positioned 
to sustain strong profi table growth over the long term. And, 
we’re confi dent that we’ll do so in a way that makes a positive 
difference in the lives of all of our stakeholders. 
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 We Bring 
Responsibility

Well before corporate responsibility became a well-established component of successful business 

strategy, Bill Darden, our founder and namesake, understood and lived the principles behind it. 

He created a company that operated both profi tably and ethically; he respected and cared about his 

employees as much as he did the guests in his restaurants; he treated suppliers fairly and built mutually 

benefi cial partnerships; and he gave back to the community. These principles continue to be defi ning 

characteristics of Darden Restaurants today and reinforce our position as a neighbor, business partner 

and employer of choice.

 From funding worldwide research in support of conservation efforts to supporting the volunteer 

activities of our employees in their local communities, we are as passionate about being a good corporate 

citizen and community leader as we are about giving our guests an extraordinary dining experience. 

In particular, Darden supports programs and organizations that promote diversity, respect, fairness, 

inclusiveness and sustainability and those that provide opportunity to the underserved.

 We believe everyone should have a chance to realize their personal and professional dreams. 

The following are but a few examples of our commitment to making a positive difference in the lives of 

others – which is ultimately what our core purpose “to nourish and delight everyone we serve” is all about.

The Asian & Pacifi c Islander 
American Scholarship Fund (APIASF)

Founded in 2003 in Washington, D.C., the APIASF is the 
primary national effort to provide scholarships for Asian and 
Pacifi c Islander Americans. With grants from donors, including 
the Darden Restaurants Foundation, the organization is able 
to help Asian and Pacifi c Islander Americans have the oppor-
tunity to pursue higher education regardless of their ethnicity 
or national origin.  Scholarship recipients have hailed from 
almost every state, and APIASF specializes in working with 
these individuals and their families to make the most of their 
college opportunity.
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Orlando/Orange County COMPACT Program

Academic excellence, community involvement and building 
positive relationships are essential to educational success. 
Since its inception in 1989, the Orlando/Orange County 
COMPACT program has helped thousands of challenged 
students succeed in school and reach their potential by pairing 
them with local business professionals for one-on-one mentor-
ing. Employees from Darden’s Restaurant Support Center in 
Orlando enjoy serving as mentors at nearby Oak Ridge High 
School because they know they are helping shape their 
community’s future. Through our corporate sponsorship and 
employee-mentor relationship, Darden is committed to helping 
COMPACT continue to open the doors of opportunity for 
at-risk youth.
 

The National Disability Institute (NDI)

Working-age adults with disabilities are three times more likely 
to live in poverty and four times more likely to be unemployed 
than their non-disabled peers.  The National Disability Institute 
is a nonprofi t organization working to change that. Through 
programs like the Real Economic Impact Tour, NDI provides 
adults with disabilities the tools to modify thinking and behavior 
and move toward economic independence and sustainability.  
The Darden Restaurants Foundation is proud to partner with 
NDI to help people return to work, preserve income and build 
assets for a better, healthier economic future.

The College Fund/UNCF 
(Formerly The United Negro College Fund)

UNCF plays a critical role in enabling more than 65,000 students 
each year to attend college and get the education they want 
and deserve. In addition to providing operating funds for its 
39 member colleges, UNCF administers 400 scholarship and 
internship programs that help promising students from low- 
and moderate-income families afford college tuition, books 
and room and board.  
 Among other things, Darden’s partnership with UNCF is 
providing scholarship funds to Hospitality Management 
majors at three Florida colleges and giving them internship 
opportunities at Darden.

 Darden is committed to being of service, providing 
opportunity and making a positive difference for others in 
communities all across North America. We are proud to be 
a corporate citizen that acts ethically, responsibly and with 
a big heart in all we do. And we look forward to building on 
our tradition of caring, giving and doing.
 For more information on Darden’s corporate social 
responsibility and volunteer efforts, request a copy of the 
“Being of Service 2008” report or visit our website.

��������	
�����
�����

��������
� ��
���������������	�



 

Dr. Leonard L. Berry
Presidential Professor for Teaching 
Excellence, Distinguished Professor of 
Marketing, and M.B. Zale Chair in 
Retailing and Marketing Leadership, 
Mays Business School, 
Texas A&M University.

Odie C. Donald
President of Odie Donald Investment 
Enterprises, LLC, a private investment firm;
Retired President of DIRECTV, Inc., 
a satellite television service.

David H. Hughes
Retired Chairman of the Board of 
Hughes Supply, Inc., a building 
supply company.

Charles A. Ledsinger, Jr.
Vice Chairman and retired Chief Executive 
Officer of Choice Hotels International, 
Inc., a lodging franchisor.  

William M. Lewis, Jr.
Managing Director and Co-Chairman 
of Investment Banking for Lazard Ltd, 
an investment banking firm, since 
April 2004.

Senator Connie Mack, III
Senior Policy Advisor for King & Spalding 
LLP, a law firm, and former U.S. Senator. 

Andrew H. Madsen
President and Chief Operating Officer, 
Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Clarence Otis, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Darden Restaurants, Inc.

Michael D. Rose
Chairman of the Board of First Horizon 
National Corporation, a national 
financial services company; 
Chairman, Executive Committee, 
of Gaylord Entertainment Company, 
a diversified entertainment company.

Maria A. Sastre
Vice President, International, Latin 
America and Caribbean Sales and 
Marketing, Royal Caribbean 
International, Celebrity Cruises and 
Azamara Cruises, all units of 
Royal Caribbean Cruises Ltd., 
a global cruise line company.
  
Jack A. Smith
President of SMAT, Inc., a private 
consulting company; Founder and 
retired Chairman of the Board of 
The Sports Authority, Inc., a national 
sporting goods chain.

Rita P. Wilson
Retired President, Allstate Indemnity 
Company, a subsidiary of Allstate 
Insurance Company.
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Ronald Bojalad
Senior Vice President, 
Group Human Resources

JJ Buettgen
Senior Vice President, 
Business Development

Valerie Collins
Senior Vice President, 
Corporate Controller

David George
President, 
LongHorn Steakhouse

Eugene Lee
President, 
Specialty Restaurant Group

Kim Lopdrup
Senior Vice President,
President, Red Lobster

Daniel Lyons
Senior Vice President, 
Human Resources

Robert McAdam
Senior Vice President,
Government and 
Community Affairs

Barry Moullet
Senior Vice President, 
Supply Chain

David Pickens
Senior Vice President,
President, Olive Garden

C. Bradford Richmond
Senior Vice President, 
Chief Financial Officer

Paula Shives 
Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secretary 

Suk Singh
Senior Vice President, 
Development

Executive and Operating Teams
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Come Visit Our 
Table Soon
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Stock Performance Graph

This graph compares our total shareholder returns against the Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) 500 Stock Index 
and our industry peer group as measured by the S&P Restaurants Index. The graph assumes that $100 was 
invested in our common shares and the other indices on May 23, 2003, the last trading day for our fi scal 
year ended May 25, 2003, and that all dividends were reinvested. The companies included in the 
S&P Restaurants Index, in addition to Darden, were as follows: McDonald’s Corporation; Starbucks 
Corporation; YUM! Brands, Inc.; and Wendy’s International, Inc. The stock prices shown are historical 
and do not determine future performance.
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Comparison of Five-Year Total Return for Darden Restaurants, Inc., 
S&P 500 Stock Index and S&P Restaurants Index

 5/23/03 5/28/04 5/27/05 5/26/06 5/25/07 5/23/08

 $100.00 $123.08 $179.94 $202.63 $254.22 $181.82

 $100.00 $122.21 $133.08 $145.87 $175.97 $162.93

 $100.00 $150.71 $194.11 $219.35 $281.70 $286.14
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This discussion and analysis below for Darden Restaurants, Inc. 
(Darden, the Company, we, us or our) should be read in 
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and 
related financial statement notes found elsewhere in this report.
 We operate on a 52/53 week fiscal year, which ends on the 
last Sunday in May. Fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 each consisted 
of 52 weeks of operation. 

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Our business operates in the full-service dining segment of the 
restaurant industry, primarily in the United States. At May 25, 
2008, we operated 1,702 Red Lobster®, Olive Garden®, 
LongHorn Steakhouse®, The Capital Grille®, Bahama Breeze®, 
Seasons 52®, Hemenway’s Seafood Grille & Oyster Bar® and 
The Old Grist Mill Tavern® restaurants in the United States 
and Canada. Through subsidiaries, we own and operate all of 
our restaurants in the United States and Canada, except three. 
Those three restaurants are located in Central Florida and are 
owned by joint ventures managed by us. The joint ventures pay 
management fees to us, and we control the joint ventures’ use 
of our service marks. None of our restaurants in the United 
States or Canada are franchised. As of May 25, 2008, we fran-
chised five LongHorn Steakhouse restaurants in Puerto Rico 
to an unaffiliated franchisee, and 27 Red Lobster restaurants 
in Japan to an unaffiliated Japanese corporation, under area 
development and franchise agreements.
 On August 16, 2007, we announced that we had entered 
into an agreement to purchase the common stock of RARE 
Hospitality International, Inc. (RARE) through a tender offer 
for $38.15 per share in cash, to be followed by a merger in 
which the remaining RARE shareholders would each receive 
$38.15 per share in cash, or $1.27 billion in total purchase 
price. Additionally, as a result of the acquisition, we repaid 
RARE’s 2.5 percent convertible notes for approximately 
$134.8 million, including $9.8 million related to a conversion 
premium. RARE owned two principal restaurant concepts, 
LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille, of which 288 
and 29 locations, respectively, were in operation as of the date 
of acquisition. The acquisition was completed on October 1, 
2007 and the acquired operations are included in our consoli-
dated financial statements since the date of acquisition. 
 On May 5, 2007, we announced the closure of 54 Smokey 
Bones and two Rocky River Grillhouse restaurants as well as 
our intention to offer for sale the remaining 73 operating 
Smokey Bones restaurants. Sales declines at Smokey Bones 
led us to reevaluate our new restaurant opening strategy and 
test a new direction for the business. In fiscal 2007, we opened 
a new repositioned Smokey Bones restaurant named Rocky 
River Grillhouse, and a second Rocky River Grillhouse from a 
converted Smokey Bones. However, the Smokey Bones concept 
business model was designed to be a nationally advertised 

brand, and since it was not on a path to achieving that vision, we 
concluded it was not a meaningful growth vehicle for the Company. 
As a result of these actions, we recognized $229.5 million and 
$13.7 million of long-lived asset impairment charges and closing 
costs, respectively, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007. 
On November 30, 2007, we entered into a definitive agreement 
to sell the 73 operating Smokey Bones restaurants to Barbeque 
Integrated, Inc. (BII), an affiliate of Sun Capital Partners, Inc., 
a worldwide private investment firm, for $82.0 million, net of 
selling costs of approximately $1.8 million. On December 31, 
2007, we closed with BII on the sale of 62 of the restaurants, 
and as of February 24, 2008, we had closed on the sale of an 
additional ten restaurants for a total of 72 restaurants. The sale 
of the remaining restaurant closed on June 13, 2008. As of 
May 25, 2008, we had received $81.5 million in net cash proceeds 
related to the sale and have recognized a gain on the sale of 
$18.0 million, which is included in earnings from discontinued 
operations for fiscal 2008. Additionally, on April 28, 2007, we 
closed nine under-performing Bahama Breeze restaurants. 
We have classified the results of operations, gains and losses 
on disposition, impairment charges and closing costs of these 
Smokey Bones and Rocky River Grillhouse restaurants and 
the nine closed Bahama Breeze restaurants as discontinued 
operations in our consolidated statements of earnings and 
cash flows for all periods presented. 
 Our sales from continuing operations were $6.63 billion 
in fiscal 2008 compared to $5.57 billion in fiscal 2007. The 
19.0 percent increase was primarily driven by the acquisition 
of RARE, the addition of 39 net new Olive Gardens in fiscal 
2008 and a same-restaurant sales increase at Olive Garden. 
Olive Garden had same-restaurant sales increases in each fiscal 
quarter, bringing its string of consecutive quarters with same-
restaurant sales growth to 55. Net earnings from continuing 
operations for fiscal 2008 were $369.5 million ($2.55 per diluted 
share) compared with net earnings from continuing operations 
for fiscal 2007 of $377.1 million ($2.53 per diluted share). Net 
earnings from continuing operations for fiscal 2008 decreased 
2.0 percent and diluted net earnings per share from continuing 
operations increased 0.8 percent compared with fiscal 2007. 
The decrease in net earnings from continuing operations was 
primarily due to integration costs and purchase accounting 
adjustments related to the RARE acquisition of approximately 
$44.8 million, on a pre-tax basis, in addition to increased food 
and beverage costs, wage rates and interest costs, which were 
only partially offset by the operating profit contribution of 
LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille, same-restaurant 
sales increases at Olive Garden as well as the operating profit 
contribution of 39 net new Olive Gardens. While net earnings 
from continuing operations declined versus prior year, diluted 
earnings per share increased slightly primarily due to a reduction 
in diluted weighted average shares outstanding.
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 Our net earnings (losses) from discontinued operations 
were $7.7 million and ($175.7) million for fiscal 2008 and 2007, 
respectively. Our diluted net earnings (losses) per share from 
discontinued operations were $0.05 and ($1.18) for fiscal 2008 
and 2007, respectively. The gain on the sale of Smokey Bones 
contributed approximately $0.08 to diluted net earnings per 
share from discontinued operations in fiscal 2008. When 
combined with results from continuing operations, our diluted 
net earnings per share were $2.60 and $1.35 for fiscal 2008 
and 2007, respectively.
 In fiscal 2009, we expect a net increase of approximately 
75 to 80 restaurants. We expect combined U.S. same-restaurant 
sales growth in fiscal 2009 of approximately 2 percent for Red 
Lobster, Olive Garden and LongHorn Steakhouse. We expect 
total sales growth of between 14 percent and 15 percent compared 
to sales from continuing operations of $6.63 billion in fiscal 
2008. This sales growth includes the impact of a 53rd week 
in fiscal 2009, which we estimate will be 2 percentage points. 
Diluted net earnings per share growth from continuing opera-
tions is expected to be between 14 percent and 15 percent 
including the impact of the 53rd week of approximately two 
percentage points. Transaction and integration-related costs 
and purchase accounting adjustments are expected to favorably 
impact diluted net earnings per share growth from fiscal 2008 
to fiscal 2009 by approximately 5 percentage points. 
 In June 2008, we announced that we would pay a quarterly 
dividend of 20 cents per share on August 1, 2008. Previously, 
we had paid a quarterly dividend of 18 cents per share or 
72 cents per share on an annual basis. Based on the 20 cent 
quarterly dividend declaration, our indicated annual dividend 
is 80 cents per share, an 11 percent increase.
 Our mission is to be the best in full-service dining, now 
and for generations. We believe we can achieve this goal 
by continuing to build on our strategy to be a multi-brand 
restaurant growth company, which is grounded in:

• Competitively superior leadership;
•  Strong brand building that reflects brand management 

and restaurant operating excellence; and
•  Brand support excellence.

 We seek to increase profits by leveraging our fixed and 
semi-fixed costs with sales from new restaurants and increased 
guest traffic and sales at existing restaurants. To evaluate our 
operations and assess our financial performance, we monitor 
a number of operating measures, with a special focus on two 
key factors:

•  Same-restaurant sales – which is a year-over-year 
comparison of each period’s sales volumes for restaurants 
open at least 16 months, including recently acquired 
restaurants, absent consideration of when the restaurants 
were acquired; and

•  Restaurant earnings – which is restaurant-level 
profitability (restaurant sales, less restaurant-level 
cost of sales, marketing and depreciation). 

 Increasing same-restaurant sales can improve restaurant 
earnings because these incremental sales provide better leverage 
of our fixed and semi-fixed restaurant-level costs. A restaurant 
concept can generate same-restaurant sales increases through 
increases in guest traffic, increases in the average guest check, 
or a combination of the two. The average guest check can 
be impacted by menu price changes and by the mix of menu 
items sold. For each restaurant concept, we gather daily sales 
data and regularly analyze the guest traffic counts and the 
mix of menu items sold to aid in developing menu pricing, 
product offerings and promotional strategies. We view same-
restaurant guest counts as a measure of the long-term health 
of a restaurant concept, while increases in average check and 
menu mix may contribute more significantly to near-term 
profitability. We focus on balancing our pricing and product 
offerings with other initiatives to produce sustainable same-
restaurant sales growth.
 We compute same-restaurant sales using restaurants open 
at least 16 months because new restaurants experience a period 
of time before sales levels normalize. Sales at newly opened 
restaurants generally do not make a significant contribution to 
profitability in their initial months of operation due to operating 
inefficiencies. Our sales and expenses can be impacted significantly 
by the number and timing of the opening of new restaurants 
and the closing, relocation and remodeling of existing 
restaurants. Pre-opening expenses each period reflect the 
costs associated with opening new restaurants in current and 
future periods.
 There are significant risks and challenges that could 
impact our operations and ability to increase sales and earn-
ings. The full-service dining restaurant industry is intensely 
competitive and sensitive to economic cycles and other 
business factors, including changes in consumer tastes and 
dietary habits. Other risks and uncertainties are discussed in 
Forward-Looking Statements found elsewhere in this report.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR 
FISCAL 2008, 2007 AND 2006
The following table sets forth selected operating data as a 
percentage of sales from continuing operations for the 
52-week periods ended May 25, 2008, May 27, 2007 and May 28, 
2006. This information is derived from the consolidated state-
ments of earnings, found elsewhere in this report. Additionally, 
this information and the following analysis have been presented 
with the results of operations, gains and losses on disposition, 
impairment charges and closing costs for the Smokey Bones and 
Rocky River Grillhouse restaurants and the nine closed Bahama 
Breeze restaurants classified as discontinued operations for all 
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periods presented. The results of operations of the LongHorn 
Steakhouse, The Capital Grille, Hemenway’s Seafood Grille & 
Oyster Bar and The Old Grist Mill Tavern restaurants have been 
included for the period subsequent to the date of acquisition.

 Fiscal Years

    2008 2007 2006

Sales   100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs and expenses:
 Cost of sales:
  Food and beverage 30.1 29.0 29.3
  Restaurant labor 32.1 32.5 32.2
  Restaurant expenses 15.3 15.0 15.1

Total cost of sales, excluding 
 restaurant depreciation and 
 amortization of 3.5%, 3.3% 
 and 3.4%, respectively 77.5% 76.5% 76.6%
  Selling, general and administrative 9.7 9.7 9.4
  Depreciation and amortization 3.7 3.6 3.7
  Interest, net 1.3 0.7 0.8

   Total costs and expenses 92.2% 90.5% 90.5%

Earnings before income taxes 7.8 9.5 9.5
Income taxes (2.2)  (2.7) (2.9)

Earnings from continuing operations 5.6 6.8 6.6
Earnings (losses) from discontinued 
 operations, net of taxes 0.1 (3.2) (0.3)

Net earnings 5.7% 3.6% 6.3%

SALES
Sales from continuing operations were $6.63 billion in fiscal 
2008, $5.57 billion in fiscal 2007 and $5.35 billion in fiscal 
2006. The 19.0 percent increase in sales from continuing 
operations for fiscal 2008 was primarily due to the acquisition 
of RARE, a net increase of 39 Olive Garden restaurants, and 
U.S. same-restaurant sales increases at Olive Garden. 
 Olive Garden sales of $3.07 billion in fiscal 2008 were 
10.0 percent above last year. Olive Garden opened 39 net new 
restaurants during fiscal 2008. Annual U.S. same-restaurant sales 
for Olive Garden increased 4.9 percent due to a 3.0 percent 
increase in average guest check and a 1.9 percent increase in 
same-restaurant guest counts. Average annual sales per restaurant 
for Olive Garden were $4.9 million in fiscal 2008 compared 
to $4.7 million in fiscal 2007. Olive Garden reported its 55th 
consecutive quarter of U.S. same-restaurant sales growth at 
the end of fiscal 2008. 
 Red Lobster sales of $2.63 billion in fiscal 2008 were 
1.0 percent above last year. Annual U.S. same-restaurant sales for 
Red Lobster increased 1.1 percent due to a 2.4 percent increase 
in average guest check, partially offset by a 1.3 percent decrease 
in guest counts. Average annual sales per restaurant for Red 
Lobster were $3.9 million in fiscal 2008 compared to $3.8 million 
in fiscal 2007.

 LongHorn Steakhouse sales of $574.9 million in fiscal 2008 
(for the period October 1, 2007 through May 25, 2008) were 
6.9 percent above the comparable prior year period (which were 
included in RARE’s separately reported results of operations), 
driven by revenue from 24 net new restaurants, partially offset 
by a same-restaurant sales decrease. Annual same-restaurant 
sales for LongHorn Steakhouse decreased 1.9 percent due to a 
4.2 percent decrease in same-restaurant guest counts, partially 
offset by a 2.3 percent increase in average guest check. Average 
annual sales per restaurant for LongHorn Steakhouse were 
$2.9 million in fiscal 2008.
 The Capital Grille sales of $169.8 million in fiscal 2008 
(for the period October 1, 2007 through May 25, 2008) 
were 11.6 percent above the comparable prior year period 
(which were included in RARE’s separately reported results of 
operations), driven by revenue from four net new restaurants, 
partially offset by a same-restaurant sales decrease. Annual same-
restaurant sales for The Capital Grille decreased 1.1 percent 
due to a 4.4 percent decrease in same-restaurant guest counts, 
partially offset by a 3.3 percent increase in average guest check. 
Average annual sales per restaurant for The Capital Grille were 
$8.1 million in fiscal 2008.
 Bahama Breeze sales from continuing operations of 
$135.2 million in fiscal 2008 were 1.9 percent below last year. 
Same-restaurant sales for Bahama Breeze decreased 1.8 percent 
for fiscal 2008. Average annual sales per restaurant for Bahama 
Breeze were $5.9 million in fiscal 2008.
 The 4.0 percent increase in Company-wide sales for fiscal 
2007 versus fiscal 2006 was primarily due to a net increase of 
32 Company-owned restaurants, on a continuing operations 
basis, compared with fiscal 2006 and U.S. same-restaurant sales 
increases at Olive Garden, Red Lobster and Bahama Breeze. 
Olive Garden’s fiscal 2007 sales of $2.79 billion were 6.6 percent 
above fiscal 2006. U.S. same-restaurant sales for Olive Garden 
increased 2.7 percent in fiscal 2007 due to a 2.0 percent increase 
in average guest check and a 0.7 percent increase in same-
restaurant guest counts. Average annual sales per restaurant 
for Olive Garden were $4.7 million in fiscal 2007 compared to 
$4.6 million in fiscal 2006. Red Lobster’s sales of $2.60 billion 
in fiscal 2007 were 0.9 percent above fiscal 2006 sales. In fiscal 
2007, its U.S. same-restaurant sales increased 0.2 percent due 
to a 2.7 percent increase in average check and a 2.5 percent 
decrease in same-restaurant guest counts. Average annual sales 
per restaurant for Red Lobster were $3.8 million in fiscal 2007 
and 2006. Bahama Breeze fiscal 2007 sales from continuing 
operations of $137.9 million increased 0.9 percent from fiscal 
2006. On a continuing operations basis, Bahama Breeze same-
restaurant sales increased 0.9 percent in fiscal 2007 and average 
annual sales per restaurant for Bahama Breeze in fiscal 2007 
were $6.0 million compared to $5.9 million in fiscal 2006.
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COSTS AND EXPENSES 
Total costs and expenses from continuing operations were 
$6.11 billion in fiscal 2008, $5.04 billion in fiscal 2007 and 
$4.85 billion in fiscal 2006. As a percent of sales, total costs 
and expenses from continuing operations in fiscal 2008 were 
92.2 percent, an increase from 90.5 percent in both fiscal 
2007 and fiscal 2006. 
 Food and beverage costs increased $380.1 million, or 
23.5 percent, from $1.62 billion in fiscal 2007 to $2.00 billion 
in fiscal 2008. Food and beverage costs increased $46.1 million, 
or 2.9 percent, from $1.57 billion in fiscal 2006 to $1.62 billion 
in fiscal 2007. As a percent of sales, food and beverage costs 
increased from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 primarily as a result 
of the acquisition of RARE, whose concepts have historically 
had higher food and beverage costs, as a percent of sales, 
compared to our consolidated average prior to the acquisition. 
As a percent of sales, food and beverage costs also increased as 
a result of an increase in food costs, such as dairy, wheat, non-
perishables and seafood, partially offset by pricing increases. 
As a percent of sales, food and beverage costs decreased from 
fiscal 2006 to fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of favorable pricing 
partially offset by menu mix changes. During fiscal 2007 food 
and beverage costs, as a percent of sales, also decreased from 
fiscal 2006 as a result of the larger contribution from Olive 
Garden, which has historically had lower food and beverage 
costs, to our overall sales and operating results.
 Restaurant labor costs increased $316.5 million, or 17.5 
percent, from $1.81 billion in fiscal 2007 to $2.12 billion in 
fiscal 2008. Restaurant labor costs increased $86.1 million, 
or 5.0 percent, from $1.72 billion in fiscal 2006 to $1.81 billion 
in fiscal 2007. As a percent of sales, restaurant labor costs 
decreased in fiscal 2008 primarily as a result of the acquisition 
of RARE, whose concepts have historically had lower restaurant 
labor costs, as a percent of sales, compared to our consolidated 
average prior to the acquisition, as well as sales growth leverag-
ing. As a percent of sales, this decrease in restaurant labor costs 
was partially offset by an increase in wage rates, benefit costs 
and manager compensation. As a percent of sales, restaurant 
labor costs increased in fiscal 2007 from fiscal 2006 primarily 
as a result of an increase in wage rates and an increase in FICA 
taxes on higher reported tips, which was partially offset by the 
favorable impact of higher sales volumes. The increase in 
FICA tax expense on higher reported tips is fully offset at the 
consolidated net earnings from continuing operations level 
by a corresponding income tax credit, which reduces income 
tax expense. 
 Restaurant expenses (which include lease, property tax, 
credit card, utility, workers’ compensation, insurance, new 
restaurant pre-opening and other restaurant-level operating 
expenses) increased $183.3 million, or 22.0 percent, from 
$834.5 million in fiscal 2007 to $1.02 billion in fiscal 2008. 

Restaurant expenses increased $28.1 million, or 3.5 percent, 
from $806.4 million in fiscal 2006 to $834.5 million in fiscal 
2007. As a percent of sales, restaurant expenses increased in 
fiscal 2008 as compared to fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of 
RARE’s higher restaurant expenses as a percentage of sales 
compared to our consolidated average prior to the acquisition 
and integration costs and purchase accounting adjustments 
related to the RARE acquisition, partially offset by increased 
sales growth leveraging. As a percent of sales, restaurant expenses 
decreased in fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006 as a result 
of the favorable impact of higher sales volumes and decreases 
in our insurance and workers’ compensation expenses. 
 Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 
$104.7 million, or 19.5 percent, from $537.0 million in fiscal 
2007 to $641.7 million in fiscal 2008. Selling, general and 
administrative expenses increased $30.9 million, or 6.1 percent, 
from $506.1 million in fiscal 2006 to $537.0 million in fiscal 
2007. As a percent of sales, selling, general and administrative 
expenses were consistent from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008 
primarily as a result of transaction and integration-related 
costs and purchase accounting adjustments related to the 
RARE acquisition and increased legal costs, which were offset 
by increased sales growth leveraging. As a percent of sales, 
selling, general and administrative expenses increased in 
fiscal 2007 as compared with fiscal 2006 primarily as a result of 
the recognition of stock-based compensation expense due to 
the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
(SFAS) No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” in fiscal 2007 and 
increased marketing expenses, partially offset by the favorable 
impact of higher sales volumes and a decrease in litigation 
related costs. 
 Depreciation and amortization expense increased 
$45.3 million, or 22.6 percent, from $200.4 million in fiscal 
2007 to $245.7 million in fiscal 2008. Depreciation and 
amortization expense increased $3.4 million, or 1.7 percent, 
from $197.0 million in fiscal 2006 to $200.4 million in fiscal 
2007. As a percent of sales, depreciation and amortization 
expense increased in fiscal 2008 as a result of new restaurant 
activity, including the acquisition of RARE, which was partially 
offset by increased sales growth leveraging. As a percent of sales, 
depreciation and amortization declined from fiscal 2006 to 
fiscal 2007 primarily as a result of the continued use of fully 
depreciated, well-maintained equipment and the favorable 
impact of higher sales volumes, which were only partially 
offset by new restaurant and remodel activities. 
 Net interest expense increased $45.6 million or 113.7 percent 
from $40.1 million in fiscal 2007 to $85.7 million in fiscal 2008. 
Net interest expense decreased $3.8 million, or 8.7 percent, 
from $43.9 million in fiscal 2006 to $40.1 million in fiscal 2007. 
As a percent of sales, net interest expense increased in fiscal 
2008 compared to fiscal 2007 due mainly to an increase in 
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average long-term debt balances, primarily as a result of the 
RARE acquisition. As a percent of sales, net interest expense 
decreased in fiscal 2007 compared with fiscal 2006, as a result 
of the favorable impact of higher sales volumes and lower 
average long-term debt balances in fiscal 2007. 

INCOME TAXES
The effective income tax rates for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 
continuing operations were 28.2 percent, 29.0 percent and 
30.8 percent, respectively. The decrease in our effective rate 
for fiscal 2008 is due primarily to a decrease in our effective 
state income tax rate due to the favorable resolution of prior 
year tax matters expensed in prior years, in addition to a decrease 
in our federal effective rate, related to an increase in FICA tax 
credits for employee reported tips. The rate decrease in fiscal 
2007 was primarily due to an increase in FICA tax credits for 
employee-reported tips and a decrease in our federal effective 
income tax rate resulting from the favorable resolution of 
prior year tax matters expensed in prior years. 

NET EARNINGS AND NET EARNINGS PER SHARE 
FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net earnings from continuing operations for fiscal 2008 were 
$369.5 million ($2.55 per diluted share) compared with net 
earnings from continuing operations for fiscal 2007 of 
$377.1 million ($2.53 per diluted share) and net earnings 
from continuing operations for fiscal 2006 of $351.8 million 
($2.24 per diluted share).
 Net earnings from continuing operations for fiscal 2008 
decreased 2.0 percent and diluted net earnings per share from 
continuing operations increased 0.8 percent compared with 
fiscal 2007. The decrease in net earnings from continuing 
operations was primarily due to transaction and integration-
related costs and purchase accounting adjustments related to 
the RARE acquisition of approximately $44.8 million, on a 
pre-tax basis, in addition to increased food and beverage costs 
and interest costs, which were only partially offset by the operating 
profit contributions of LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital 
Grille. While net earnings from continuing operations declined 
slightly, diluted net earnings per share from continuing operations 
increased slightly due to a reduction in the average diluted 
shares outstanding from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2008, primarily as 
a result of the cumulative impact of our continuing repurchase 
of our common stock.
 Fiscal 2007 net earnings from continuing operations 
increased 7.2 percent and diluted net earnings per share 
increased 13.0 percent compared with fiscal 2006. The 
increases in net earnings and diluted net earnings per share from 
continuing operations were primarily due to decreases in food 

and beverage costs, restaurant expenses, depreciation and 
amortization expenses and interest expenses as a percent of 
sales, which were only partially offset by increases in restaurant 
labor and selling, general and administrative expenses as a 
percent of sales. The increase in diluted net earnings per share 
from continuing operations was also due to a reduction in the 
average diluted shares outstanding from fiscal 2006 to fiscal 
2007, primarily as a result of the cumulative impact of our 
continuing repurchase of our common stock.

EARNINGS (LOSSES) FROM 
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On an after-tax basis, earnings from discontinued operations 
for fiscal 2008 were $7.7 million ($0.05 per diluted share) 
compared with losses from discontinued operations for fiscal 
2007 of $175.7 million ($1.18 per diluted share) and losses 
from discontinued operations for fiscal 2006 of $13.6 million 
($0.08 per diluted share). During fiscal 2008, we recorded an 
$18.0 million gain on disposal related to the sale of 72 operat-
ing Smokey Bones restaurants, as described in the Overview of 
Operations section. Losses from discontinued operations for 
fiscal 2007 increased $162.1 million compared to fiscal 2006, 
primarily due to asset impairment charges and closing costs 
of $236.4 million ($146.0 million after tax) and $13.7 million 
($8.5 million after tax), respectively, primarily related to the 
decision to close or hold for sale all Smokey Bones and Rocky 
River Grillhouse restaurants and $12.7 million ($7.8 million 
after tax) and $2.7 million ($1.7 million, net of tax) of asset 
impairment charges and closing costs, respectively, related to 
the closure of nine Bahama Breeze restaurants in fiscal 2007.

SEASONALITY
Our sales volumes fluctuate seasonally. During fiscal 2008, 2007 
and 2006 our average sales per restaurant were highest in the 
spring and winter, followed by the summer, and lowest in the 
fall. Holidays, severe weather and similar conditions may impact 
sales volumes seasonally in some operating regions. Because of 
the seasonality of our business, results for any quarter are not 
necessarily indicative of the results that may be achieved for 
the full fiscal year.

IMPACT OF INFLATION
We attempt to minimize the annual effects of inflation through 
appropriate planning, operating practices and menu price 
increases. We do not believe inflation had a significant overall 
effect on our annual results of operations during fiscal 2007 
and 2006. However, we experienced higher than normal 
inflationary costs in fiscal 2008 and were able to reduce the 
annual impact utilizing these strategies.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The 
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
 Critical accounting policies are those we believe are both 
most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and 
operating results and require our most difficult, subjective or 
complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make 
estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. 
Judgments and uncertainties affecting the application of those 
policies may result in materially different amounts being reported 
under different conditions or using different assumptions. 
We consider the following policies to be most critical in 
understanding the judgments that are involved in preparing 
our consolidated financial statements.

Land, Buildings and Equipment
Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Building components are depreci-
ated over estimated useful lives ranging from seven to 40 years 
using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements, which 
are reflected on our consolidated balance sheets as a component 
of buildings, are amortized over the lesser of the expected lease 
term, including cancelable option periods, or the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets using the straight-line method. 
Equipment is depreciated over estimated useful lives ranging 
from two to 20 years, also using the straight-line method. 
 Our accounting policies regarding land, buildings and 
equipment, including leasehold improvements, include our 
judgments regarding the estimated useful lives of these assets, 
the residual values to which the assets are depreciated or 
amortized, the determination of what constitutes expected lease 
term and the determination as to what constitutes enhancing 
the value of or increasing the life of existing assets. These 
judgments and estimates may produce materially different 
amounts of reported depreciation and amortization expense 
if different assumptions were used. As discussed further below, 
these judgments may also impact our need to recognize an 
impairment charge on the carrying amount of these assets as the 
cash flows associated with the assets are realized. As discussed 
further below, these judgments may also impact our need to rec-
ognize an impairment charge on the carrying amount of these 
assets as the cash flows associated with the assets are realized, or as 
our expectations of estimated future cash flows change.

Leases
We are obligated under various lease agreements for certain 
restaurants. For operating leases, we recognize rent expense 
on a straight-line basis over the expected lease term, including 
option periods as described below. Capital leases are recorded 
as an asset and an obligation at an amount equal to the present 
value of the minimum lease payments during the lease term.
 Within the provisions of certain of our leases, there are 
rent holidays and/or escalations in payments over the base 
lease term, as well as renewal periods. The effects of the 
holidays and escalations have been reflected in rent expense on 
a straight-line basis over the expected lease term, which includes 
option periods we are reasonably assured to exercise because 
failure to exercise such options would result in an economic 
penalty to the Company. The lease term commences on the date 
when we have the right to control the use of the leased property, 
which is typically before rent payments are due under the terms 
of the lease. The leasehold improvements and property held 
under capital leases for each restaurant facility are amortized 
on the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated 
life of the asset or the same expected lease term used for lease 
accounting purposes. Many of our leases have renewal periods 
totaling five to 20 years, exercisable at our option, and require 
payment of property taxes, insurance and maintenance costs 
in addition to the rent payments. The consolidated financial 
statements reflect the same lease term for amortizing leasehold 
improvements as we use to determine capital versus operating 
lease classifications and in calculating straight-line rent expense 
for each restaurant. Percentage rent expense is generally based 
upon sales levels and is accrued at the point in time we deter-
mine that it is probable that such sales levels will be achieved. 
 Our judgments related to the probable term for each 
restaurant affect the classification and accounting for leases 
as capital versus operating, the rent holidays and escalation in 
payments that are included in the calculation of straight-line 
rent and the term over which leasehold improvements for 
each restaurant facility are amortized. These judgments may 
produce materially different amounts of depreciation, amor-
tization and rent expense than would be reported if different 
assumed lease terms were used.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
Land, buildings and equipment and certain other assets, 
including capitalized software costs and liquor licenses, are 
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset 
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and 
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of 
the assets to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to 
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be generated by the assets. Identifiable cash flows are measured at 
the lowest level for which they are largely independent of the 
cash flows of other groups of assets and liabilities, generally at the 
restaurant level. If these assets are determined to be impaired, 
the amount of impairment recognized is the amount by which 
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair value. Fair 
value is generally determined by appraisals or sales prices of 
comparable assets. Restaurant sites and certain other assets to be 
disposed of are reported at the lower of their carrying amount 
or fair value, less estimated costs to sell. Restaurant sites and 
certain other assets to be disposed of are included in assets held 
for sale when certain criteria are met. These criteria include 
the requirement that the likelihood of disposing of these assets 
within one year is probable. For assets that meet the held for sale 
criteria, we separately evaluate whether those assets also meet 
the requirements to be reported as discontinued operations. 
Principally, if we discontinue cash flows and no longer have any 
significant continuing involvement with respect to the operations 
of the assets, we classify the assets and related results of opera-
tions as discontinued. We consider guest transfer (an increase in 
guests at another location as a result of the closure of a location) 
as continuing cash flows and evaluate the significance of expected 
guest transfer when evaluating a restaurant for discontinued 
operations reporting. To the extent we dispose of enough assets 
where classification between continuing operations and discon-
tinued operations would be material to our consolidated financial 
statements, we utilize the reporting provisions for discontinued 
operations. Assets whose disposal is not probable within one year 
remain in land, buildings and equipment until their disposal is 
probable within one year.
 The judgments we make related to the expected useful 
lives of long-lived assets and our ability to realize undiscounted 
cash flows in excess of the carrying amounts of these assets 
are affected by factors such as the ongoing maintenance and 
improvements of the assets, changes in economic conditions, 
changes in usage or operating performance, desirability of the 
restaurant sites and other factors, such as our ability to sell our 
assets held for sale. As we assess the ongoing expected cash 
flows and carrying amounts of our long-lived assets, significant 
adverse changes in these factors could cause us to realize a 
material impairment charge. During fiscal 2008, we recognized 
impairment charges of $0.1 million ($0.1 million after tax), 
which is included in selling, general and administrative expenses 
on our consolidated statements of earnings. During fiscal 
2007, we recognized impairment charges of $236.4 million 
($146.0 million after tax), primarily related to the decision to 
close or hold for sale all Smokey Bones and Rocky River 
Grillhouse restaurants, and we recognized impairment charges 
of $12.7 million ($7.8 million after tax) related to the decision 
to permanently close nine Bahama Breeze restaurants. The 
impairment charges were based on a comparison of the net book 

value and the estimated fair value of the restaurants. These 
charges are included in losses from discontinued operations, 
net of tax on our consolidated statements of earnings. In fiscal 
2007, we also recognized $2.4 million ($1.5 million after tax)
 of impairment charges, included in selling, general and 
administrative expenses on our consolidated statements of 
earnings, primarily related to the permanent closing of one 
Red Lobster and one Olive Garden. During fiscal 2006, we rec-
ognized impairment charges of $8.4 million ($5.2 million after 
tax), related to the closing of three Smokey Bones restaurants 
and the impairment of two other Smokey Bones restaurants 
based on an evaluation of expected cash flows. These charges 
are included in losses from discontinued operations, net of tax, 
on our consolidated statements of earnings. During fiscal 2006, 
we also recorded charges of $1.3 million ($0.8 million after tax), 
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in our 
consolidated statements of earnings, primarily related to the 
closing of three Red Lobster and two Olive Garden restaurants. 

Valuation and Recoverability of Goodwill and 
Indefinite Lived Intangible Assets
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives represented 
$974.9 million of our $4.73 billion in total assets as of May 25, 
2008, comprised of $519.9 million and $455.0 million of goodwill 
and trademarks, respectively. We have identified LongHorn 
Steakhouse® and The Capital Grille® trademarks as indefinite 
lived intangible assets, in addition to our goodwill, after consider-
ing the expected use of the assets and the regulatory and 
economic environment within which they are being used. 
We review our goodwill and trademarks, which relate to the 
LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille restaurant 
concepts, annually, on the first day of our fourth fiscal quarter, 
for impairment, or more frequently if indicators of impairment 
exist. We continually assess whether any indicators of impair-
ment exist. A significant amount of judgment is involved in 
determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred. Such 
indicators may include: a significant decline in our expected 
future cash flows; a sustained, significant decline in our stock 
price and market capitalization; a significant adverse change in 
legal factors or in the business climate; unanticipated competi-
tion; the testing for recoverability of a significant asset group 
within a reporting unit; and/or slower growth rates, among 
others. Any adverse change in these factors could have a signifi-
cant impact on the recoverability of these assets and could have a 
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
 When required, we first test goodwill for impairment by 
comparing the fair value of the LongHorn Steakhouse and 
The Capital Grille concepts with their carrying amounts. If the 
fair value of the concepts exceeds the carrying amount of the 
concepts, goodwill is not deemed to be impaired, and no further 
testing would be necessary. If the carrying amount of these 

DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   32DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   32 7/24/08   3:08:05 PM7/24/08   3:08:05 PM



DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 33

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations

concepts were to exceed their fair value, we would perform a 
second test to measure the amount of impairment loss, if any. 
To measure the amount of any impairment loss, we would deter-
mine the implied fair value of goodwill in the same manner as if 
these concepts were being acquired in a business combination. 
Specifically, we would allocate the fair value of each of these con-
cepts to all of the assets and liabilities of each concept, including 
any unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetical calculation 
that would yield the implied fair value of goodwill. If the implied 
fair value of goodwill is less than the recorded goodwill, we 
would record an impairment charge for the difference.
 When required, we test trademarks for impairment by 
comparing the trademarks’ respective carrying values to esti-
mates of fair value, determined based on an income valuation 
model using the relief from royalty method, which requires 
assumptions related to projected revenues from our annual 
long-range plan; assumed royalty rates that could be payable 
if we did not own the trademarks; and a discount rate. Our 
trademarks are tested separately as a single unit of accounting 
as prescribed by Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue 
No. 02-7, Unit of Accounting for Testing Impairment of 
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets.
 The accounting estimates related to our goodwill and other 
indefinite lived intangible assets require us to make significant 
assumptions about fair values. Our assumptions regarding fair 
values require significant judgment about economic factors, 
industry factors and technology considerations, as well as our 
views regarding the prospects of our concepts. Changes in 
these judgments may have a significant effect on the estimated 
fair values.

Insurance Accruals
Through the use of insurance program deductibles and 
self-insurance, we retain a significant portion of expected 
losses under our workers’ compensation, employee medical and 
general liability programs. However, we carry insurance for indi-
vidual workers’ compensation and general liability claims that 
generally exceed $0.25 million. Accrued liabilities have been 
recorded based on our estimates of the anticipated ultimate 
costs to settle all claims, both reported and not yet reported.
 Our accounting policies regarding these insurance 
programs include our judgments and independent actuarial 
assumptions about economic conditions, the frequency or 
severity of claims and claim development patterns and claim 
reserve, management and settlement practices. Unanticipated 
changes in these factors may produce materially different 
amounts of reported expense under these programs.

Stock-Based Compensation 
Beginning in fiscal 2007, we account for stock-based compen-
sation in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions 

of SFAS No. 123R. We use the Black-Scholes option pricing 
model, which requires the input of subjective assumptions. 
These assumptions include estimating the length of time 
employees will retain their vested stock options before exercis-
ing them (expected term), the volatility of our common stock 
price over the expected term and the number of options 
that will ultimately not complete their vesting requirements 
(forfeitures). From year to year, our determination of these 
subjective assumptions can materially affect the estimate of 
fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, 
the related amount recognized in our consolidated statements 
of earnings during each period.

Income Taxes
We estimate certain components of our provision for income 
taxes. These estimates include, among other items, depreciation 
and amortization expense allowable for tax purposes, allowable 
tax credits for items such as taxes paid on reported employee 
tip income, effective rates for state and local income taxes 
and the tax deductibility of certain other items. We adjust our 
annual effective income tax rate as additional information on 
outcomes or events becomes available.
 Effective May 28, 2007 we adopted Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an interpretation of 
FASB Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 requires that a position 
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return be recognized 
(or derecognized) in the financial statements when it is more 
likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more than fifty percent) 
that the position would be sustained upon examination by 
tax authorities. A recognized tax position is then measured at 
the largest amount of benefit that is greater than fifty percent 
likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. 
 We base our estimates on the best available information 
at the time that we prepare the provision. We generally file 
our annual income tax returns several months after our fiscal 
year-end. Income tax returns are subject to audit by federal, 
state and local governments, generally years after the returns 
are filed. These returns could be subject to material adjustments 
or differing interpretations of the tax laws.
 The major jurisdictions in which the Company files income 
tax returns include the U.S. federal jurisdiction, Canada, and 
most states in the U.S. that have an income tax. With a few 
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, 
state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax 
authorities for years before 2001. 
 Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at 
May 25, 2008 is $24.5 million related to tax positions for 
which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts could 
materially change during the next twelve months based on 
the outcome of examinations or as a result of the expiration 
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of the statute of limitations for specific jurisdictions. Of this 
amount, approximately $19.8 million relates to items temporary 
in nature which will have no impact on our effective income 
tax rate.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Cash flows generated from operating activities provide us with 
a significant source of liquidity, which we use to finance the 
purchases of land, buildings and equipment and to repurchase 
shares of our common stock. Since substantially all of our sales 
are for cash and cash equivalents and accounts payable are 
generally due in five to 30 days, we are able to carry current 
liabilities in excess of current assets. In addition to cash flows 
from operations, we use a combination of long-term and short-
term borrowings to fund our capital needs.
 We currently manage our business and our financial ratios to 
maintain an investment grade bond rating, which allows flexible 
access to financing at reasonable costs. Currently, our publicly 
issued long-term debt carries “Baa3” (Moody’s Investors Service), 
“BBB” (Standard & Poor’s) and “BBB” (Fitch) ratings. Our com-
mercial paper has ratings of “P-3” (Moody’s Investors Service), 
“A-2” (Standard & Poor’s) and “F-2” (Fitch). These ratings are as 
of the date of this annual report and have been obtained with the 
understanding that Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s 
and Fitch will continue to monitor our credit and make future 
adjustments to these ratings to the extent warranted. The ratings 
are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold our securities, may 
be changed, superseded or withdrawn at any time and should be 
evaluated independently of any other rating.
 Our commercial paper program serves as our primary 
source of short-term financing. To support our commercial 
paper program, until September 20, 2007, we maintained 
a credit facility under a Credit Agreement dated August 16, 
2005 (Prior Credit Agreement) with a consortium of banks 
under which we could borrow up to $500.0 million. As part of 
the Prior Credit Agreement, we could request issuance of up 
to $100.0 million in letters of credit, the outstanding amount 
of which reduced the net borrowing capacity under the Prior 
Credit Agreement. The Prior Credit Agreement allowed us 
to borrow at interest rates that varied based on a spread over 
(i) LIBOR or (ii) a base rate that was the higher of the prime rate 
or one-half of one percent above the federal funds rate, at our 
option. The interest rate spread over LIBOR was determined 
by our debt rating. We could also request that loans be made 
at interest rates offered by one or more of the banks, which 
may have varied from the LIBOR or base rate. The Prior Credit 
Agreement supported our commercial paper borrowing 
program and would have expired on August 15, 2010, but was 
terminated on September 20, 2007 in connection with the new 
credit arrangements described below. We were required to pay 
a facility fee of 10 basis points per annum on the average daily 

amount of loan commitments by the consortium. The amount 
of interest and annual facility fee were subject to change based 
on our maintenance of certain debt ratings and financial ratios, 
such as maximum debt to capital ratios. Advances under the 
Prior Credit Agreement were unsecured. At May 27, 2007, no 
borrowings under the Prior Credit Agreement were outstand-
ing. However, as of May 27, 2007, there were $211.4 million of 
commercial paper and no letters of credit outstanding, which 
were backed by this facility.
 On September 20, 2007, to fund the RARE acquisition, 
we entered into (i) a $750.0 million revolving Credit Agreement 
dated as of September 20, 2007 (New Revolving Credit Agree-
ment) with Bank of America, N.A. (BOA), as administrative 
agent, and the lenders (Revolving Credit Lenders) and other 
agents party thereto, and (ii) a $1.15 billion 364-Day Credit 
Agreement dated as of September 20, 2007 (Interim Credit 
Agreement) with BOA, as administrative agent, and the lenders 
thereto. The Interim Credit Agreement became available to us 
upon the consummation of the RARE acquisition. The Interim 
Credit Agreement and the New Revolving Credit Agreement 
were used to fund the RARE acquisition. On October 11, 2007, 
we completed the issuance of $1.15 billion aggregate principal 
amount of long-term senior notes described below, the proceeds 
of which were used to fully repay the Interim Credit Agreement.
 The New Revolving Credit Agreement is a senior unsecured 
debt obligation of the Company and contains customary 
representations, affirmative and negative covenants (including 
limitations on liens and subsidiary debt, and a maximum con-
solidated lease adjusted total debt to total capitalization ratio 
of 0.75 to 1.00) and events of default usual for credit facilities 
of this type. As of May 25, 2008, we were in compliance with all 
covenants under the New Revolving Credit Agreement.
 The New Revolving Credit Agreement expires on 
September 20, 2012, and the proceeds may be used for commer-
cial paper back-up, working capital and capital expenditures, 
the refinancing of certain indebtedness, the partial financing of 
the RARE acquisition as well as general corporate purposes. The 
New Revolving Credit Agreement also contains a sub-limit of 
$150.0 million for the issuance of letters of credit. The borrowings 
and letters of credit obtained under the New Revolving Credit 
Agreement may be denominated in U.S. Dollars, Euro, Sterling, 
Yen, Canadian Dollars and each other currency approved by the 
Revolving Credit Lenders. The Company may elect to increase the 
commitments under the New Revolving Credit Agreement by up 
to $250.0 million (to an aggregate amount of up to $1.00 billion), 
subject to the Company obtaining commitments from new and 
existing lenders for the additional amounts. 
 Loans under the New Revolving Credit Agreement bear 
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus a margin determined by refer-
ence to a ratings-based pricing grid, or the base rate (which is 
defined as the higher of the BOA prime rate and the federal 
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funds rate plus 0.500 percent). Assuming a “BBB” equivalent 
credit rating level, the applicable margin under the New Revolving 
Credit Agreement will be 0.350 percent. We may also request 
that loans under the New Revolving Credit Agreement be made
at interest rates offered by one or more of the Revolving Credit 
Lenders, which may vary from the LIBOR or base rate, for up 
to $100.0 million of borrowings. The New Revolving Credit 
Agreement requires that we pay a facility fee on the total amount 
of such facility (ranging from 0.070 percent to 0.175 percent, 
based on our credit ratings) and, in the event that the outstand-
ing amounts under the applicable New Revolving Credit 
Agreement exceeds 50 percent of such New Revolving Credit 
Agreement, a utilization fee on the total amount outstanding 
under such facility (ranging from 0.050 percent to 0.150 percent, 
based on our credit ratings). As of May 25, 2008, $130.0 million 
was outstanding under the New Revolving Credit Agreement. 
In addition, $48.4 million of commercial paper was outstanding 
as of May 25, 2008, which is backed by this facility. 
 On October 11, 2007, we issued $350.0 million of unsecured 
5.625 percent senior notes due October 2012, $500.0 million 
of unsecured 6.200 percent senior notes due October 2017 
and $300.0 million of unsecured 6.800 percent senior notes 
due October 2037 (collectively, the New Senior Notes) under 
a registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC) on October 9, 2007. Discount and issuance 
costs, which were $4.3 million and $11.7 million, respectively, 
are being amortized over the terms of the New Senior Notes 
using the straight-line method, the results of which approxi-
mate the effective interest method. The interest rate payable 
on each series of the New Senior Notes will be subject to 
adjustment from time to time if the debt rating assigned to 
such series of the New Senior Notes is downgraded below a 
certain rating level (or subsequently upgraded). The maxi-
mum adjustment is 2.000 percent above the initial interest 
rate and the interest rate cannot be reduced below the initial 
interest rate. As of May 25, 2008, no such adjustments to the 
interest rates had been made. We may redeem any series of the 
New Senior Notes at any time in whole or from time to time in 
part, at the principal amount plus a make-whole premium. If 
we experience a change of control triggering event, we may be 
required to purchase the New Senior Notes from the holders.
 During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, we entered into 
treasury-lock derivative instruments with $550.0 million of 
notional value to hedge a portion of the risk of changes in 
the benchmark interest rate prior to the issuance of the New 
Senior Notes, as changes in the benchmark interest rate would 
cause variability in our forecasted interest payments. These 
instruments were all settled at the issuance of the New Senior 
Notes for a cumulative gain of $6.2 million. This amount was 
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 
and will be reclassified into earnings as an adjustment to 

interest expense as interest on the New Senior Notes or similar 
debt is incurred. A gain of $0.5 million was recognized in earn-
ings during fiscal 2008 as an adjustment to interest expense.
 During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we also entered 
into treasury-lock derivative instruments with $100.0 million 
of notional value to hedge a portion of the risk of changes 
in the benchmark interest rate associated with the expected 
issuance of the long-term debt to refinance our existing 
long-term debt due to mature in fiscal 2011, as changes in the 
benchmark interest rate will cause variability in our forecasted 
interest payments. The fair value of these outstanding treasury-
lock derivative instruments was a net gain of $2.3 million at 
May 25, 2008 and is included, net of tax of $0.9 million, in 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).
 On August 12, 2005, we issued $150.0 million of unsecured 
4.875 percent senior notes due in August 2010 and $150.0 mil-
lion of unsecured 6.000 percent senior notes due in August 
2035 under our prior shelf registration statement on file with 
the SEC. The net proceeds of $295.4 million from the issuance 
of these senior notes were used to repay at maturity our $150.0 
million of 8.375 percent senior notes on September 15, 2005 
and our $150.0 million of 6.375 percent notes on February 1, 
2006. In March 2007, we repaid, at maturity our $150.0 mil-
lion unsecured 5.750 percent medium-term notes with cash 
from operations and short-term borrowings.
 At May 25, 2008, our long-term debt consisted principally of: 

•  $150.0 million of unsecured 4.875 percent senior notes 
due in August 2010;

•  $75.0 million of unsecured 7.450 percent medium-term 
notes due in April 2011; 

•  $350.0 million of unsecured 5.625 percent senior notes 
due in October 2012;

•  $100.0 million of unsecured 7.125 percent debentures 
due in February 2016;

•  $500.0 million of unsecured 6.200 percent senior notes 
due in October 2017;

•  $150.0 million of unsecured 6.000 percent senior notes 
due in August 2035;

•  $300.0 million of unsecured 6.800 percent senior notes 
due in October 2037; and

•  An unsecured, variable rate $15.5 million commercial 
bank loan due in December 2018 that is used to sup-
port two loans from us to the Employee Stock Owner-
ship Plan portion of the Darden Savings Plan.

 Through our shelf registration statement on file with the 
SEC, we may issue an indeterminate amount of unsecured 
debt securities from time to time in one or more series, 
which may consist of notes, debentures or other evidences of 
indebtedness in one or more offerings.
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 A summary of our contractual obligations and commercial commitments at May 25, 2008, is as follows (in millions):

 Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total Less than 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 3 - 5 Years More than 5 Years

Short-term debt $ 178.4 $ 178.4 $ – $ – $ --
Long-term debt (1)   2,966.3  106.5  431.8  518.4  1,909.6
Operating leases  697.8   115.3  198.0  146.0  238.5
Purchase obligations (2)  604.7  590.7  7.0  7.0  --
Capital lease obligations (3)  114.7  4.9  10.0  10.4  89.4
Benefit obligations (4)  281.1  24.5  41.2  49.0  166.4
Unrecognized income tax benefits (5)  88.5  28.0  55.5  5.0  --

Total contractual obligations $  4,931.5 $  1,048.3 $  743.5 $  735.8 $  2,403.9

 Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period

Other Commercial Total Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Commitments Committed 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Standby letters of credit (6) $ 74.4 $ 74.4 $  -- $ -- $  --
Guarantees (7)  5.8  1.3  1.9  0.9  1.7

Total commercial commitments $ 80.2 $ 75.7 $ 1.9 $ 0.9 $ 1.7

1)   Includes interest payments associated with existing long-term debt, including the current portion. Variable-rate interest payments associated with the 
ESOP loan were estimated based on an average interest rate of 6 percent. Excludes issuance discount of $6.2 million.

2)   Includes commitments for food and beverage items and supplies, capital projects and other miscellaneous commitments.

3)   Includes total imputed interest of $53.9 million over the life of the capital lease obligations.

4)   Includes expected payments associated with our defined benefit plans, postretirement benefit plan and our non-qualified deferred compensation plan 
through fiscal 2018.

5)   Includes interest on unrecognized income tax benefits of $11.0 million.

6)   Includes letters of credit for $64.4 million of workers’ compensation and general liabilities accrued in our consolidated financial statements, letters 
of credit for $3.2 million of lease payments included in the contractual operating lease obligation payments noted above and other letters of credit 
totaling $6.8 million.

7)   Consists solely of guarantees associated with leased properties that have been assigned to third parties. We are not aware of any non-performance under 
these arrangements that would result in us having to perform in accordance with the terms of the guarantees.
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 Our fixed-charge coverage ratio, which measures the 
number of times each year that we earn enough to cover our 
fixed charges, amounted to 5.1 times and 8.6 times, on a con-
tinuing operations basis, for the fiscal years ended May 25, 2008 
and May 27, 2007, respectively. Our adjusted debt to adjusted 
total capital ratio (which includes 6.25 times the total annual 
minimum rent of $102.0 million and $64.3 million for the 
fiscal years ended May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, respectively, 
as components of adjusted debt and adjusted total capital) was 
64 percent and 50 percent at May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, 
respectively. We use the lease-debt equivalent in our adjusted 
debt to adjusted total capital ratio reported to shareholders, 
as we believe its inclusion better represents the optimal capital 
structure that we target from period to period. 
 Based on these ratios, we believe our financial condition 
is strong. The composition of our capital structure is shown in 
the following table.

(In millions, except ratios) May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007

Capital Structure
Short-term debt $ 178.4 $ 211.4
Long-term debt  1,640.5  494.1
Capital lease obligations  60.8  --
Stockholders’ equity  1,409.1  1,094.5

Total capital $ 3,288.8 $ 1,800.0

Adjustments to Capital
Short-term debt $ 178.4 $ 211.4
Long-term debt  1,640.5  494.1
Capital lease obligations  60.8  --
Lease-debt equivalent   637.5   397.0

Adjusted debt $ 2,517.2 $ 1,102.5
Stockholders’ equity  1,409.1  1,094.5

Adjusted total capital $ 3,926.3 $ 2,197.0

Capital Structure Ratios
Debt to total capital ratio  57%  39%
Adjusted debt to adjusted 
 total capital ratio  64%  50%

 Net cash flows provided by operating activities from 
continuing operations were $766.8 million, $569.8 million and 
$699.1 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Net 
cash flows provided by operating activities include net earnings 
from continuing operations of $369.5 million, $377.1 million 
and $351.8 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
Net cash flows provided by operating activities from continuing 
operations increased in fiscal 2008 primarily as a result of 
the timing of purchases of inventories and restaurant level 
services. Net cash flows provided by operating activities also 
reflect income tax payments of $119.7 million, $75.9 million 

and $126.3 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
The lower tax payments in fiscal 2007, as compared with tax 
payments in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2006, primarily relate to 
lower taxable income in fiscal 2007 caused by the closing of 
the 54 Smokey Bones, two Rocky River Grillhouse and nine 
Bahama Breeze restaurants. 
 Net cash flows used in investing activities from continuing 
operations were $1.62 billion, $289.5 million and $258.3 million 
in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Net cash flows used 
in investing activities included capital expenditures incurred 
principally to acquire RARE, build new restaurants, replace 
equipment and remodel existing restaurants. Capital expen-
ditures related to continuing operations were $429.2 million 
in fiscal 2008, compared to $345.2 million in fiscal 2007 and 
$273.5 million in fiscal 2006. In addition to the acquisition 
of RARE, the increased expenditures in fiscal 2008 and 2007 
resulted primarily from increased spending associated with 
building more new restaurants and replacement of restaurant 
equipment. During fiscal 2007, we also received $45.2 million
in cash from the sale and leaseback of our current restaurant 
support center. We estimate that our fiscal 2009 capital expendi-
tures will approximate $600 million, including approximately 
$85 million on our new restaurant support center. The overall 
cost of our new restaurant support center will be largely offset 
by various state and local tax credits and incentives and cash 
proceeds received from the sale of our current restaurant 
support center.
 Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities 
from continuing operations were $805.5 million, ($322.9) 
million and ($392.9) million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. During fiscal 2008 we completed the offering of 
$1.15 billion of New Senior Notes, resulting in net proceeds 
of $1.13 billion, which were used to repay borrowings under 
the Interim Credit Agreement, which funded the acquisition 
of RARE. Proceeds received from the New Revolving Credit 
Agreement were used to partially fund the acquisition of 
RARE and to repay the $125.0 million 2.5 percent convertible 
notes assumed from RARE. Net cash flows used in financing 
activities also included our repurchase of 5.0 million shares of 
our common stock for $159.4 million in fiscal 2008 compared 
with 9.4 million shares of our common stock for $371.2 million 
in fiscal 2007 and 11.9 million shares for $434.2 million in fiscal 
2006. As of May 25, 2008, our Board of Directors had authorized 
us to repurchase up to 162.4 million shares of our common 
stock and a total of 147.0 million shares had been repurchased 
under the authorization. The repurchased common stock is 
reflected as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. As of May 25, 
2008, our unused authorization was 15.4 million shares. During  
fiscal 2006 we completed the offering of $300.0 million in senior
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notes, resulting in net proceeds of $294.7 million, which were 
used to repay, at maturity, $300.0 million in notes outstanding. 
We received proceeds primarily from the issuance of common 
stock upon the exercise of stock options of $66.8 million, 
$56.6 million and $61.8 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. Net cash flows used in financing activities also 
included dividends paid to stockholders of $100.9 million, 
$65.7 million and $59.2 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively. The increase in dividend payments reflects the 
increase in our annual dividend rate from $0.40 per share in 
fiscal 2006, to $0.46 per share in fiscal 2007 and to $0.72 per 
share in fiscal 2008. In June 2008, the Board of Directors 
approved an increase in the quarterly dividend to $0.20 per 
share, which indicates an annual dividend of $0.80 per share 
in fiscal 2009.
 Our defined benefit and other postretirement benefit costs 
and liabilities are determined using various actuarial assump-
tions and methodologies prescribed under the SFAS No. 87, 
“Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” and No. 106, “Employers’ 
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions.” 
We use certain assumptions including, but not limited to, the 
selection of a discount rate, expected long-term rate of return 
on plan assets and expected health care cost trend rates. We 
set the discount rate assumption annually for each plan at its 
valuation date to reflect the yield of high quality fixed-income 
debt instruments, with lives that approximate the maturity 
of the plan benefits. At May 25, 2008, our discount rate was 
6.50 percent. The expected long-term rate of return on plan 
assets and health care cost trend rates are based upon several 
factors, including our historical assumptions compared with 
actual results, an analysis of current market conditions, asset 
allocations and the views of leading financial advisers and 
economists. Our assumed expected long-term rate of return on 
plan assets was 9.0 percent for each of the fiscal years reported. 
At May 25, 2008, the expected health care cost trend rates 
assumed for fiscal 2009 ranged from 8.0 percent to 9.0 percent, 
depending on the medical service category. The rates gradu-
ally decrease to 5.0 percent through fiscal 2013 and remain at 
that level thereafter. We made contributions of approximately 
$0.5 million, $0.5 million and $0.3 million in fiscal years 2008, 
2007 and 2006, respectively, to our defined benefit pension plan 
to maintain its fully funded status as of each annual valuation 
date (the most recent of which was February 29, 2008).
 The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 
component of our net periodic benefit cost is calculated based 
on the market-related value of plan assets. Our target asset 
fund allocation is 35 percent U.S. equities, 30 percent high-
quality, long-duration fixed-income securities, 15 percent 

international equities, 10 percent private equities and 10 percent 
real assets. We monitor our actual asset fund allocation to ensure 
that it approximates our target allocation and believe that our 
long-term asset fund allocation will continue to approximate 
our target allocation. Our historical ten-year rate of return on 
plan assets, calculated using the geometric method average of 
returns, is approximately 9.4 percent as of May 25, 2008.
 We have recognized net actuarial losses, net of tax, as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) for the defined benefit plans and postretirement benefit 
plan as of May 25, 2008 of $12.3 million and $6.3 million, 
respectively. These net actuarial losses represent changes in 
the amount of the projected benefit obligation and plan assets 
resulting from differences in the assumptions used and actual 
experience. The amortization of the net actuarial loss compo-
nent of our fiscal 2009 net periodic benefit cost for the defined 
benefit plans and postretirement benefit plan is expected to 
be approximately $0.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively.
 We believe our defined benefit and postretirement benefit 
plan assumptions are appropriate based upon the factors 
discussed above. However, other assumptions could also be 
reasonably applied that could differ from the assumptions used. 
A quarter-percentage point change in the defined benefit plans’ 
discount rate and the expected long-term rate of return on 
plan assets would increase or decrease earnings before income 
taxes by $0.9 million and $0.4 million, respectively. A quarter-
percentage point change in our postretirement benefit plan 
discount rate would increase or decrease earnings before 
income taxes by $0.1 million. A one-percentage point increase 
in the health care cost trend rates would increase the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) by $4.4 million at 
May 25, 2008 and the aggregate of the service cost and interest 
cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost by 
$0.5 million for fiscal 2008. A one-percentage point decrease 
in the health care cost trend rates would decrease the APBO 
by $3.9 million at May 25, 2008 and the aggregate of the 
service cost and interest cost components of net periodic 
postretirement benefit cost by $0.3 million for fiscal 2008. 
These changes in assumptions would not significantly impact 
our funding requirements.
 We are not aware of any trends or events that would 
materially affect our capital requirements or liquidity. We 
believe that our internal cash-generating capabilities, borrow-
ings available under our shelf registration for unsecured debt 
securities and short-term commercial paper program should be 
sufficient to finance our capital expenditures, debt maturities, 
stock repurchase program and other operating activities 
through fiscal 2009. 
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
We are not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that 
have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future 
material effect on our financial condition, changes in financial 
condition, sales or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, 
capital expenditures or capital resources.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
Our total current assets were $467.9 million at May 25, 2008, 
compared with $545.4 million at May 27, 2007. The decrease 
resulted primarily from a decrease in assets held for sale 
related primarily to the sale of Smokey Bones to BII, partially 
offset by increases in current liabilities related to the addition 
of RARE.
 Our total current liabilities were $1.14 billion at May 25, 
2008, compared with $1.07 billion at May 27, 2007. The increase 
in current liabilities resulted primarily from an increase in our 
level of operations due to the acquisition of RARE, partially 
offset by the effects of the adoption of FIN 48 and the related 
reclassification of reserves for uncertain tax positions to non-
current liabilities, and a reduction in liabilities associated with 
assets held for sale related to the sale of Smokey Bones to BII.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES 
ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to a variety of market risks, including fluctuations 
in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, compensa-
tion and commodity prices. To manage this exposure, we 
periodically enter into interest rate, foreign currency exchange, 
equity forwards and commodity instruments for other than
trading purposes (see Notes 1 and 11 of the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements, included elsewhere in this report).
 We use the variance/covariance method to measure value 
at risk, over time horizons ranging from one week to one 
year, at the 95 percent confidence level. At May 25, 2008, our 
potential losses in future net earnings resulting from changes 
in foreign currency exchange rate instruments, commodity 
instruments, equity forwards and floating rate debt interest 
rate exposures were approximately $12.5 million over a 
period of one year (including the impact of the interest 
rate swap agreements discussed in Note 11 of the Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements, included elsewhere in this 
report). The value at risk from an increase in the fair value of 
all of our long-term fixed rate debt, over a period of one year, 
was approximately $159.4 million. The fair value of our long-
term fixed rate debt during fiscal 2008 averaged $1.22 billion, 
with a high of $1.69 billion and a low of $468.4 million. Our 
interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact 
of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows by target-
ing an appropriate mix of variable and fixed rate debt.  

APPLICATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value 
Measures.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures 
about fair value measures required under other accounting 
pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as 
to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. For 
financial assets and liabilities, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007, which will require 
us to adopt these provisions in fiscal 2009. For nonfinancial 
assets and liabilities, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2008, which will require us to 
adopt these provisions in fiscal 2010. We do not believe the 
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a significant impact on 
our consolidated financial statements.
 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 “The 
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” 
SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report 
selected financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. 
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value 
option has been elected are reported in earnings at each 
subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007, which will require 
us to adopt these provisions in fiscal 2009. We do not believe 
the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a significant impact on 
our consolidated financial statements.
 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, 
“Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141R provides 
companies with principles and requirements on how an 
acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements 
the identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and any 
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree as well as the recogni-
tion and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business 
combination. SFAS No. 141R also requires certain disclosures 
to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the 
nature and financial effects of the business combination. 
Acquisition costs associated with the business combination 
will generally be expensed as incurred. SFAS No. 141R is 
effective for business combinations occurring in fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2008, which will require us to 
adopt these provisions for business combinations occurring 
in fiscal 2010 and thereafter. Early adoption of SFAS No. 
141R is not permitted. We do not believe the adoption of 
SFAS No. 141R will have a significant impact on our consoli-
dated financial statements; however, the application of this 
standard will significantly change how we account for future 
business combinations.
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 In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures 
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS 
No. 161 provides companies with requirements for enhanced 
disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities 
to enable investors to better understand their effects on a 
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows. These requirements include the disclosure of the fair 
values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a 
tabular format. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after November 15, 2008, which will require us to adopt 
these provisions in fiscal 2009. Early adoption of SFAS No. 161 
is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS No. 
161 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
 In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 
EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in 
Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” 
FSP EITF 03-6-1 provides that unvested share-based payment 
awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or 
dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating 
securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings 
per share pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class 
method is an earnings allocation method for computing 
earnings per share when an entity’s capital structure includes 
either two or more classes of common stock or common stock 
and participating securities. It determines earnings per share 
based on dividends declared on common stock and participat-
ing securities (i.e., distributed earnings) and participation 
rights of participating securities in any undistributed earnings. 
FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2008, which will require us to adopt these pro-
visions in fiscal 2010 and will require the recast of all previously 
reported earnings per share data. We are currently evaluating 
the impact FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have on our consolidated 
financial statements.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements included in this report and other materials 
filed or to be filed by us with the SEC (as well as information 
included in oral or written statements made or to be made by 
us) may contain statements that are forward-looking within 
the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 
1995, as codified in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended. Words or phrases such as “believe,” “plan,” 
“will,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate,” and “project” and similar 
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. 
All of these statements, and any other statements in this report 
that are not historical facts, are forward-looking. These forward-
looking statements are based on assumptions concerning important 
factors, risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect 
anticipated results in the future and, accordingly, could cause 
the actual results to differ materially from those expressed in the 
forward-looking statements. These factors, risks and uncertainties 
include, but are not limited to those discussed below and in 
Part I, Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended May 25, 2008:

•   The intensely competitive nature of the restaurant 
industry, especially pricing, service, location, personnel 
and type and quality of food; 

•   Economic and business factors, both specific to the 
restaurant industry and generally, that are largely out 
of our control, including changes in consumer prefer-
ences, demographic trends, severe weather conditions 
including hurricanes, a protracted economic slowdown 
or worsening economy, energy prices, interest rates, 
industry-wide cost pressures and public safety conditions, 
including actual or threatened armed conflicts or 
terrorist attacks;

•   The price and availability of food, ingredients and 
utilities, including the general risk of inflation; 

•   The impact of shortages or interruptions in the 
delivery of food and other supplies;
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•   Labor and insurance costs, including increased labor 
costs as a result of federal and state-mandated increases 
in minimum wage rates and increased insurance 
costs as a result of increases in our current insurance 
premiums;

•   The loss of key personnel or difficulties recruiting and 
retaining qualified personnel;

•   A material information technology interruption or 
security failure;

•   Increased advertising and marketing costs;
•   Higher-than-anticipated costs to open, close, relocate 

or remodel restaurants;
•   Litigation by employees, consumers, suppliers, 

shareholders or others, regardless of whether the 
allegations made against us are valid or we are 
ultimately found liable;

•   Unfavorable publicity relating to food safety or other 
concerns;

•   A lack of suitable new restaurant locations or a 
decline in the quality of the locations of our current 
restaurants; 

•   Federal, state and local regulation of our business, 
including laws and regulations relating to our 
relationships with our employees, zoning, land use, 
environmental matters and liquor licenses; 

•   Growth objectives, including lower-than-expected 
sales and profitability of newly-opened restaurants, 
our expansion of newer concepts that have not yet 
proven their long-term viability, our ability to develop 
new concepts, risks associated with growth through 
acquisitions, and our ability to manage risks relating to 
the opening of new restaurants, including real estate 
development and construction activities, union activi-
ties, the issuance and renewal of licenses and permits, 
the availability and cost of funds to finance growth and 
our ability to hire and train qualified personnel;

•   Our plans to expand newer concepts like Bahama 
Breeze and Seasons 52 that have not yet proven their 
long-term viability;

•   Our ability to combine and integrate the business 
of RARE into our operations in a successful and 
timely manner and to achieve synergies following the 
completion of the acquisition, including the ultimate 
realization of goodwill;

•   The impact of the substantial indebtedness we incurred 
in connection with the acquisition of RARE; and

•   A failure of our internal controls over financial 
reporting.

 Since it is not possible to foresee all such factors, risks and 
uncertainties, investors should not consider these factors to 
be a complete list of all risks or uncertainties.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT’S 
RESPONSIBILITIES
The management of Darden Restaurants, Inc. is responsible 
for the fairness and accuracy of the consolidated financial 
statements. The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles, using management’s best estimates 
and judgments where appropriate. The financial information 
throughout this report is consistent with our consolidated 
financial statements.
 Management has established a system of internal controls 
that provides reasonable assurance that assets are adequately 
safeguarded and transactions are recorded accurately, in all 
material respects, in accordance with management’s authoriza-
tion. We maintain a strong audit program that independently 
evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls. 
Our internal controls provide for appropriate segregation of 
duties and responsibilities and there are documented policies 
regarding utilization of our assets and proper financial reporting. 
These formally stated and regularly communicated policies set 
high standards of ethical conduct for all employees.
 The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors meets 
at least quarterly to determine that management, internal 
auditors and the independent registered public accounting 
firm are properly discharging their duties regarding internal 
control and financial reporting. The independent registered 
public accounting firm, internal auditors and employees have 
full and free access to the Audit Committee at any time.
 KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting 
firm, is retained to audit our consolidated financial statements 
and the effectiveness of our internal control over financial 
reporting. Their reports follow.

Clarence Otis, Jr.
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL 
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act 
of 1934, as amended). The Company’s internal control over 
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance 
to the Company’s management and Board of Directors 
regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published 
financial statements. 
 Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over 
financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
  Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of May 25, 2008. 
In making this assessment, management used the criteria set 
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control – Integrated 
Framework. Management has concluded that, as of May 25, 2008, 
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was 
effective based on these criteria. 
 The Company’s independent registered public accounting 
firm KPMG LLP, has issued an audit report on the effectiveness 
of our internal control over financial reporting, which follows. 
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darden Restaurants, Inc.
We have audited Darden Restaurants, Inc.’s internal control 
over financial reporting as of May 25, 2008, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (COSO). Darden Restaurants, Inc.’s management 
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness 
of internal control over financial reporting, included in the 
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control 
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial 
reporting based on our audit.
 We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in 
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an under-
standing of internal control over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal 
control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary 
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.
 A company’s internal control over financial reporting is 
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

 Because of its inherent limitations, internal control 
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstate-
ments. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness 
to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.
 In our opinion, Darden Restaurants, Inc. maintained, 
in all material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of May 25, 2008, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
 We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States), the consolidated balance sheets of Darden Restaurants, 
Inc. as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the related 
consolidated statements of earnings, changes in stockholders’ 
equity and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), 
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period 
ended May 25 2008, and our report dated July 17, 2008 
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated 
financial statements.

Orlando, Florida
July 17, 2008
Certified Public Accountants 

Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   43Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   43 7/22/08   9:23:33 PM7/22/08   9:23:33 PM



44 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Darden Restaurants, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets of Darden Restaurants, Inc. and subsidiaries as of 
May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the related consolidated 
statements of earnings, changes in stockholders’ equity and 
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows 
for each of the years in the three year period ended May 25, 2008. 
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and 
financial statement schedules based on our audits.
 We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards 
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United 
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.
 In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Darden Restaurants, Inc. and subsidiaries 
as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three 
year period ended May 25, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

 As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Company changed its method of accounting 
for uncertainty in income taxes in 2008 by adopting FASB 
Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes –
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109, and changed its method 
of accounting for share-based compensation by adopting 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), 
Share-Based Payment, and accounting for defined benefit pension 
and other postretirement plans by adopting Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 158, Employers’ Accounting 
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans, in 2007.   
 We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of 
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), 
Darden Restaurants, Inc.’s internal control over financial 
reporting as of May 25, 2008, based on criteria established in 
Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO), and our report dated July 17, 2008 expressed an 
unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of Darden Restaurants, 
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting.

Orlando, Florida
July 17, 2008
Certified Public Accountants

R eport of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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 Fiscal Year Ended

(In millions, except per share data) May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006

Sales   $  6,626.5 $  5,567.1 $  5,353.6
Costs and expenses:
 Cost of sales:
  Food and beverage  1,996.2  1,616.1  1,570.0
  Restaurant labor  2,124.7  1,808.2  1,722.1
  Restaurant expenses  1,017.8  834.5  806.4

Total cost of sales, excluding restaurant depreciation 
 and amortization of $230.0, $186.4 and $181.1, respectively $  5,138.7 $  4,258.8 $  4,098.5
  Selling, general and administrative  641.7  537.0  506.1
  Depreciation and amortization  245.7  200.4  197.0
  Interest, net  85.7  40.1  43.9

Total costs and expenses $  6,111.8 $  5,036.3 $  4,845.5

Earnings before income taxes  514.7  530.8  508.1
Income taxes  (145.2)  (153.7)  (156.3)

Earnings from continuing operations $ 369.5 $ 377.1 $ 351.8
Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations, 
 net of tax expense (benefit) of $3.0, ($112.9) and ($12.1), respectively  7.7  (175.7)  (13.6)

Net earnings $ 377.2 $ 201.4 $ 338.2

Basic net earnings per share:
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35           
 Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations  0.06  (1.23)  (0.09)         

 Net earnings $ 2.69 $ 1.40 $ 2.26

Diluted net earnings per share:
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.55 $  2.53 $  2.24
 Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations  0.05  (1.18)  (0.08)         

 Net earnings $ 2.60 $ 1.35 $ 2.16

Average number of common shares outstanding:
 Basic   140.4  143.4  149.7
 Diluted  145.1  148.8  156.9

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   45DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   45 7/24/08   3:08:56 PM7/24/08   3:08:56 PM



46 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(In millions)   May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007

Assets
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents   $ 43.2 $ 30.2
 Receivables, net    69.5  46.4
 Inventories    216.7  209.6
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets    46.7  33.5
 Deferred income taxes    91.8  81.7
 Assets held for sale    –  144.0

  Total current assets   $ 467.9 $ 545.4
Land, buildings and equipment, net    3,066.0  2,184.4
Goodwill     519.9  –
Trademarks    455.0  –
Other assets    221.8  151.0

  Total assets   $ 4,730.6 $ 2,880.8

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
 Accounts payable   $ 245.1 $ 178.0
 Short-term debt    178.4  211.4
 Accrued payroll    129.3  108.5
 Accrued income taxes    2.4  75.9
 Other accrued taxes    55.4  43.4
 Unearned revenues    160.5  109.9
 Other current liabilities    365.1   305.0 
 Liabilities associated with assets held for sale    –  42.3

  Total current liabilities   $ 1,136.2 $ 1,074.4
Long-term debt, less current portion    1,634.3  491.6
Deferred income taxes    197.6  25.8
Deferred rent    139.0  127.1
Obligations under capital leases, net of current installments    59.9  –
Other liabilities     154.5  67.4

  Total liabilities   $ 3,321.5 $ 1,786.3

Stockholders’ equity:
 Common stock and surplus, no par value. Authorized 500.0 shares; issued 279.8 and 
  277.7 shares, respectively; outstanding 140.5 and 141.4 shares, respectively  $ 2,074.9 $ 1,904.3
 Preferred stock, no par value. Authorized 25.0 shares; none issued and outstanding   –  –
 Retained earnings     2,096.0  1,820.4
 Treasury stock, 139.3 and 136.3 shares, at cost, respectively    (2,724.0)   (2,576.5) 
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    (20.7)  (32.8)
 Unearned compensation    (17.0)  (20.6)
 Officer notes receivable    (0.1)  (0.3)

  Total stockholders’ equity   $ 1,409.1 $ 1,094.5

  Total liabilities and stockholders' equity   $ 4,730.6 $ 2,880.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

 Common   Accumulated Other   Total
      Stock and Retained Treasury Comprehensive Unearned Officer Notes Stockholders’
(In millions, except per share data) Surplus Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Compensation Receivable Equity

Balances at May 29, 2005  $1,703.3 $1,405.7 $(1,784.8) $  (8.9) $(41.6) $(0.7) $1,273.0

Comprehensive income:
 Net earnings  – 338.2 – – – – 338.2
 Other comprehensive income (loss):
  Foreign currency adjustment  – – – 3.9 – – 3.9
  Change in fair value of derivatives, 
   net of tax of  $0.4 – – – (0.5) – – (0.5)
    Total comprehensive income         341.6
Cash dividends declared ($0.40 per share) – (59.2) –  – – – (59.2)
Stock option exercises (3.9 shares) 49.3 – 6.3  – – – 55.6
Issuance of restricted stock (0.4 shares), net
 of forfeiture adjustments 13.5 – – – (13.5)  – –
Stock-based compensation – – – – 7.4  – 7.4
ESOP note receivable repayments – – – – 3.5 – 3.5
Income tax benefits credited to equity 34.3 – – – – – 34.3
Purchases of common stock for treasury (11.9 shares)  – – (434.2) – – – (434.2)
Issuance of treasury stock under Employee Stock 
 Purchase Plan and other plans (0.2 shares) 6.0 – 1.5 – – – 7.5
Repayment of officer notes – – – – – 0.3 0.3
Balances at May 28, 2006  $1,806.4 $1,684.7 $(2,211.2) $  (5.5) $(44.2) $(0.4) $1,229.8
Comprehensive income:
 Net earnings  – 201.4 – – – – 201.4
 Other comprehensive income (loss):
  Foreign currency adjustment  – – – 0.5 – – 0.5
  Change in fair value of derivatives,
   net of tax of 1.9 – – – 4.0 – – 4.0
    Total comprehensive income         205.9
Adjustment related to adoption of SFAS No. 158, 
 net of tax of $19.6 – – – (31.8) – – (31.8)
Cash dividends declared ($0.46 per share) – (65.7) –  – – – (65.7)
Stock option exercises (3.6 shares) 46.1 – 4.8  – – – 50.9
Reclassification of unearned compensation 
 (transition of SFAS 123(R)) (20.2) – – – 20.2 – –
Stock-based compensation 26.2 – – – – – 26.2
ESOP note receivable repayments – – – – 3.3 – 3.3
Income tax benefits credited to equity 40.0 – – – – – 40.0
Purchases of common stock for treasury (9.4 shares) – – (371.2) – – – (371.2)
Issuance of treasury stock under Employee Stock 
 Purchase Plan and other plans (0.2 shares) 5.8 – 1.1 – 0.1 – 7.0
Repayment of officer notes – – – – – 0.1 0.1
Balances at May 27, 2007 $1,904.3 $1,820.4 $(2,576.5) $(32.8) $(20.6) $(0.3) $1,094.5
Comprehensive income:
 Net earnings – 377.2 – – – – 377.2
 Other comprehensive income (loss):
  Foreign currency adjustment  – – –  3.3 – – 3.3
  Change in fair value of derivatives,
   net of tax of $2.6 – – – 0.7  – – 0.7
  Benefit plans, net of tax of $5.0  – – –  8.1 – –  8.1
   Total comprehensive income         389.3
Adjustment related to adoption of FIN 48, 
 net of tax of $0.4 – (0.7) – – – – (0.7)
Cash dividends declared ($0.72 per share) – (100.9) –  – – – (100.9)
Stock option exercises (3.3 shares) 53.6  – 7.9  – – – 61.5
Stock-based compensation 46.6 – – – – – 46.6
Stock-based awards included in cost of 
 RARE acquisition 40.5 – – – – – 40.5
ESOP note receivable repayments – – – – 3.6 – 3.6
Income tax benefits credited to equity 23.5 – – – – – 23.5
Purchases of common stock for treasury (5.0 shares) – – (159.4) – – – (159.4)
Issuance of treasury stock under Employee
 Stock Purchase Plan and other plans (0.2 shares) 6.4 – 4.0 – –  – 10.4
Repayment of officer notes – – – – – 0.2 0.2
Balances at May 25, 2008 $2,074.9 $2,096.0 $(2,724.0) $(20.7) $(17.0) $(0.1) $1,409.1

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

 Fiscal Year Ended

(In millions)  May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006
Cash flows – operating activities
 Net earnings  $  377.2 $  201.4 $  338.2
 (Earnings) losses from discontinued operations, net of tax benefit  (7.7)  175.7  13.6
 Adjustments to reconcile net earnings from continuing operations to cash flows:
  Depreciation and amortization  245.7  200.4  197.0
  Asset impairment charges, net  –  2.4  1.3
  Amortization of loan costs  2.3  1.7  3.0
  Stock-based compensation expense  48.9      31.6      12.5
  Change in current assets and liabilities  53.7  (20.5)  127.3
  Contribution to postretirement plan  (1.2)  (0.8)  (0.4)
  Loss on disposal of land, buildings and equipment  2.2  3.1  2.4
  Change in cash surrender value of trust-owned life insurance  4.6  (10.4)  (6.0)
  Deferred income taxes  31.1  (27.1)  (30.7)
  Change in deferred rent  12.8  2.5  4.8
  Change in other liabilities  (17.0)  3.3  2.5
  Income tax benefits credited to equity  –  –  34.3
  Income tax benefits from exercise of stock-based compensation credited to goodwill  8.0  –  –
  Other, net  6.2  6.5  (0.7)
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations $  766.8 $  569.8 $  699.1
Cash flows – investing activities
 Sale of short-term investments  6.3  –  –
 Purchases of land, buildings and equipment  (429.2)  (345.2)  (273.5)
 Proceeds from disposal of land, buildings and equipment  5.9  57.9  20.6
 Cash used in business combination, net of cash acquired  (1,198.1)  –  –
 Proceeds from trust-owned life insurance  1.9  –  –
 Increase in other assets  (2.5)  (2.2)  (5.4)
Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations $ (1,615.7) $ (289.5) $ (258.3)
Cash flows – financing activities
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock  66.8  56.6  61.8
 Income tax benefits credited to equity  23.5  40.0  –
 Dividends paid  (100.9)  (65.7)  (59.2)
 Purchases of treasury stock  (159.4)  (371.2)  (434.2)
 ESOP note receivable repayments  3.6  3.3  3.6
 Proceeds from Interim Credit Agreement  1,150.0  –  –
 Repayment of Interim Credit Agreement  (1,150.0)  –  –
 (Payments) proceeds from issuance of short-term debt  (33.0)  167.4  44.0
 Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt  1,150.0  –  294.7
 Payments of debt issuance costs  (16.0)  –  –
 Repayment of long-term debt  (3.6)  (153.3)  (303.6)
 Repayment of acquired convertible notes  (125.0)  –  –
 Principal payments on capital leases  (0.5)  –  –
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities of continuing operations $ 805.5 $ (322.9) $ (392.9)
Cash flows – discontinued operations
 Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities of discontinued operations  (32.6)  36.6  17.9
 Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities of discontinued operations  89.0  (6.1)  (66.3)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued operations $ 56.4 $ 30.5 $ (48.4)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  13.0  (12.1)  (0.5)
Cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year  30.2  42.3  42.8
Cash and cash equivalents – end of year $ 43.2 $ 30.2 $ 42.3

Cash flows from changes in current assets and liabilities
 Receivables  (1.5)  (5.9)  (0.7)
 Inventories  9.5  (14.2)  37.0
 Prepaid expenses and other current assets  (2.6)  (5.6)  (2.1)
 Accounts payable  38.6  (23.6)  29.4
 Accrued payroll  –  (8.2)  7.9
 Accrued income taxes  (30.6)  11.1  12.4
 Other accrued taxes  2.1  0.7  2.5
 Unearned revenues  2.8  11.8  11.5
 Other current liabilities  35.4  13.4  29.4
Change in current assets and liabilities $ 53.7 $ (20.5) $ 127.3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

OPERATIONS AND PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include 
the operations of Darden Restaurants, Inc. and its wholly owned 
subsidiaries (Darden, the Company, we, us or our). We own 
and operate the Red Lobster®, Olive Garden®, LongHorn 
Steakhouse®, The Capital Grille®, Bahama Breeze®, Seasons 
52®, Hemenway’s Seafood Grille & Oyster Bar® and The Old 
Grist Mill Tavern® restaurant concepts located in the United 
States and Canada. Through subsidiaries, we own and operate 
all of our restaurants in the United States and Canada, except 
three. Those three restaurants are located in Central Florida 
and are owned by joint ventures managed by us. The joint 
ventures pay management fees to us, and we control the joint 
ventures’ use of our service marks. None of our restaurants 
in the United States or Canada are franchised. As of May 25, 
2008, we franchised five LongHorn Steakhouse restaurants in 
Puerto Rico to an unaffiliated franchisee, and 27 Red Lobster 
restaurants in Japan to an unaffiliated Japanese corporation, 
under area development and franchise agreements. All 
significant inter-company balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
On October 1, 2007, we completed the acquisition of RARE 
Hospitality International, Inc. (RARE) for $1.27 billion in 
total consideration. The acquisition principally included the 
LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille restaurant 
concepts, of which, 288 and 29 locations, respectively, were in 
operation as of the date of the acquisition. The results of opera-
tions, financial position and cash flows are included in our 
consolidated financial statements as of the date of acquisition 
as for all periods subsequent. See Note 2 – Acquisition of RARE 
Hospitality International, Inc. for additional information.
 During fiscal 2007, we closed or were holding for sale all 
Smokey Bones and Rocky River Grillhouse restaurants and 
closed nine Bahama Breeze restaurants. Consistent with the 
discontinued operations reporting provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting 
for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” and 
Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-13, “Applying the 
Conditions in Paragraph 42 of SFAS No. 144 in Determining 
Whether to Report Discontinued Operations,” we determined 
that we had or would discontinue all significant cash flows and 
continuing involvement with respect to these Smokey Bones, 
Rocky River Grillhouse and Bahama Breeze operations noted 
above and consider these to be discontinued operations. 

Therefore, for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, all gains and losses 
on disposition, impairment charges and disposal costs, along 
with the sales, costs and expenses and income taxes attribut-
able to these restaurants have been aggregated to a single 
caption entitled earnings (losses) from discontinued opera-
tions, net of tax on our consolidated statements of earnings 
for all periods presented. We have not allocated any general 
corporate overhead to amounts presented in discontinued 
operations, nor have we elected to allocate interest costs. See 
Note 3 – Discontinued Operations for additional information.
 Unless otherwise noted, amounts and disclosures throughout 
these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements relate to our 
continuing operations.

FISCAL YEAR
We operate on a 52/53 week fiscal year, which ends on the last 
Sunday in May. Fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 all consisted of 52 
weeks of operation. 

USE OF ESTIMATES
We prepare our consolidated financial statements in confor-
mity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The 
preparation of these financial statements requires us to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the 
reported amounts of sales and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments such as 
U.S. treasury bills, taxable municipal bonds and money market 
funds that have an original maturity of three months or less. 
Amounts receivable from credit card companies are also 
considered cash equivalents because they are both short-term 
and highly liquid in nature and are typically converted to cash 
within three days of the sales transaction.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts, 
represents their estimated net realizable value. Provisions for 
doubtful accounts are recorded based on historical collection 
experience and the age of the receivables. Accounts receivable 
are written off when they are deemed uncollectible. See Note 4 – 
Receivables, Net for additional information.

INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of food and beverages and are valued at the 
lower of weighted-average cost or market. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT, NET
Land, buildings and equipment are recorded at cost less 
accumulated depreciation. Building components are depreci-
ated over estimated useful lives ranging from seven to 40 years 
using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements, which 
are reflected on our consolidated balance sheets as a component 
of buildings, are amortized over the lesser of the expected lease 
term, including cancelable option periods, or the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets using the straight-line method. 
Equipment is depreciated over estimated useful lives ranging from 
two to ten years also using the straight-line method. Depreciation 
and amortization expense from continuing operations associated 
with buildings and equipment amounted to $235.5 million, 
$192.8 million and $189.9 million, in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 
2006, respectively. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we had losses 
on disposal of land, buildings and equipment of $2.2 million, 
$3.1 million and $2.4 million, respectively, which were included 
in selling, general and administrative expenses. See Note 6 – 
Land, Buildings and Equipment, Net for additional information.

CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE COSTS
Capitalized software, which is a component of other assets, is 
recorded at cost less accumulated amortization. Capitalized software 
is amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful 
lives ranging from three to ten years. The cost of capitalized 
software as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, amounted to 
$65.3 million and $62.6 million, respectively. Accumulated amorti-
zation as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, amounted to $37.9 
million and $32.2 million, respectively. Amortization expense 
associated with capitalized software amounted to $7.6 million, 
$7.3 million and $6.6 million, in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, 
respectively, and is included in depreciation and amortization 
in our accompanying consolidated statements of earnings.

TRUST-OWNED LIFE INSURANCE
In August 2001, we caused a trust that we previously had 
established to purchase life insurance policies covering certain 
of our officers and other key employees (trust-owned life insur-
ance or TOLI). The trust is the owner and sole beneficiary 
of the TOLI policies. The policies were purchased to offset a 
portion of our obligations under our non-qualified deferred 
compensation plan. The cash surrender value for each policy 
is included in other assets while changes in cash surrender values 
are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

LIQUOR LICENSES
The costs of obtaining non-transferable liquor licenses that are 
directly issued by local government agencies for nominal fees 
are expensed as incurred. The costs of purchasing transferable 
liquor licenses through open markets in jurisdictions with a 
limited number of authorized liquor licenses are capitalized 

as indefinite lived intangible assets and included in other 
assets. Annual liquor license renewal fees are expensed over 
the renewal term. 

GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLES
We account for goodwill and other intangibles in accordance 
with SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which 
provides that goodwill and indefinite lived intangibles should 
not be amortized, but shall be tested for impairment annually or 
more frequently if circumstances indicate potential impairment, 
through a comparison of fair value to its carrying amount. 
Goodwill is tested for impairment as part of a two step process. 
The first step of the impairment test requires the identification 
of the reporting units, and comparison of the fair value of 
each of these reporting units to the respective carrying value. 
The fair value of the reporting units is determined based on 
valuation techniques using the best information that is available, 
such as discounted cash flow projections. If the carrying value 
is less than the fair value, no impairment exists and the second 
step is not performed. If the carrying value is higher than the 
fair value, there is an indication that impairment may exist and 
the second step must be performed to compute the amount 
of the impairment. In the second step, the impairment is 
computed by comparing the implied fair value of reporting 
unit goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. 
SFAS No. 142 requires goodwill to be tested for impairment 
annually at the same time every year, and when an event 
occurs or circumstances change such that it is reasonably 
possible that an impairment may exist. Annual impairment 
tests will be performed in the fourth quarter of each year. 
At May 25, 2008, we had goodwill of $519.9 million.
 We evaluate the useful lives of our other intangible assets, 
primarily intangible assets associated with the RARE acquisition, 
to determine if they are definite or indefinite-lived. Reaching 
a determination on useful life requires significant judgments 
and assumptions regarding the future effects of obsolescence, 
demand, competition, other economic factors (such as the 
stability of the industry, legislative action that results in an 
uncertain or changing regulatory environment, and expected 
changes in distribution channels), the level of required 
maintenance expenditures, and the expected lives of other 
related groups of assets.
 Our indefinite-lived intangible assets, primarily the value 
assigned to the trademarks acquired from RARE, also are tested 
for impairment annually and whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be 
recoverable. We estimate the fair value of the trademarks based 
on an income valuation model using the relief from royalty 
method, which requires assumptions related to projected 
revenues from our annual long-range plan; assumed royalty 
rates that could be payable if we did not own the trademarks; 
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and a discount rate. At May 25, 2008, we had trademarks of 
$455.0 million.
 Definite-lived intangible assets include the value of acquired 
below-market leases of $23.8 million, net of accumulated 
amortization of $1.5 million, and other definite-lived intangibles 
of $6.7 million, net of accumulated amortization of $6.6 million,
which are included in other assets in our consolidated balance 
sheet. Included in other liabilities in our consolidated balance 
sheet is $8.3 million of value related to above-market leases, 
net of accumulated amortization of $0.4 million. Definite-lived 
intangibles are amortized on a straight-line basis over estimated 
useful lives of one to 20 years. Amortization expense related 
to below-market leases and above-market leases for fiscal 2008 
was $1.5 million and $0.4 million, respectively, and is included 
in restaurant expenses as a component of rent expense on our 
consolidated statements of earnings. Amortization of other 
amortizable intangibles was $2.6 million, $0.3 million and 
$0.5 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and is 
included in depreciation and amortization expenses in our 
consolidated statements of earnings. Amortization of other 
intangibles will be approximately $1.5 million in fiscal 2009 
and $0.4 million in fiscal 2010 through 2013.

IMPAIRMENT OR DISPOSAL OF 
LONG-LIVED ASSETS
Land, buildings and equipment and certain other assets, 
including definite-lived intangible assets, capitalized software 
costs and liquor licenses, are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. 
Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a 
comparison of the carrying amount of the assets to the future 
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by 
the assets. Identifiable cash flows are measured at the lowest 
level for which they are largely independent of the cash 
flows of other groups of assets and liabilities, generally at the 
restaurant level. If such assets are determined to be impaired, 
the impairment recognized is measured by the amount by 
which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds their fair 
value. Fair value is generally determined based on appraisals 
or sales prices of comparable assets. Restaurant sites and 
certain other assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower 
of their carrying amount or fair value, less estimated costs to 
sell. Restaurant sites and certain other assets to be disposed of 
are included in assets held for disposal when certain criteria 
are met. These criteria include the requirement that the likeli-
hood of disposing of these assets within one year is probable. 
Assets not meeting the “held for sale” criteria remain in land, 
buildings and equipment until their disposal is probable 
within one year.

 We account for exit or disposal activities, including 
restaurant closures, in accordance with SFAS No. 146, 
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” 
Such costs include the cost of disposing of the assets as well 
as other facility-related expenses from previously closed 
restaurants. These costs are generally expensed as incurred. 
Additionally, at the date we cease using a property under an 
operating lease, we record a liability for the net present value 
of any remaining lease obligations, net of estimated sublease 
income. Any subsequent adjustments to that liability as a result 
of lease termination or changes in estimates of sublease income 
are recorded in the period incurred. Upon disposal of the 
assets, primarily land, associated with a closed restaurant, any 
gain or loss is recorded in the same caption within our con-
solidated statements of earnings as the original impairment.

INSURANCE ACCRUALS
Through the use of insurance program deductibles and 
self-insurance, we retain a significant portion of expected losses 
under our workers’ compensation, employee medical and 
general liability programs. However, we carry insurance for 
individual workers’ compensation and general liability claims 
that generally exceed $0.25 million. Accrued liabilities have 
been recorded based on our estimates of the anticipated ulti-
mate costs to settle all claims, both reported and unreported.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue from restaurant sales is recognized when food and 
beverage products are sold. Unearned revenues represent 
our liability for gift cards that have been sold but not yet 
redeemed. We recognize revenue from our gift cards when 
the gift card is redeemed by the customer or the likelihood of 
redemption, based upon our historical redemption patterns, 
becomes remote. Revenues from the sales of franchises are 
recognized as income when substantially all of our material 
obligations under the franchise agreement have been performed. 
Continuing royalties, which are a percentage of net sales of 
franchised restaurants, are accrued as income when earned. 
Sales taxes collected from customers and remitted to govern-
mental authorities are presented on a net basis within net sales 
on our consolidated statements of earnings.

FOOD AND BEVERAGE COSTS
Food and beverage costs include inventory, warehousing and 
related purchasing and distribution costs. Vendor allowances 
received in connection with the purchase of a vendor’s products 
are recognized as a reduction of the related food and beverage 
costs as earned. Advance payments are made by the vendors 
based on estimates of volume to be purchased from the vendors 
and the terms of the agreement. As we make purchases from 
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the vendors each period, we recognize the pro rata portion of 
allowances earned as a reduction of food and beverage costs for 
that period. Differences between estimated and actual purchases 
are settled in accordance with the terms of the agreements. 
Vendor agreements are generally for a period of one year or 
more and payments received are initially recorded as long-term 
liabilities. Amounts which are expected to be earned within one 
year are recorded as current liabilities.

INCOME TAXES
We provide for federal and state income taxes currently payable 
as well as for those deferred because of temporary differences 
between reporting income and expenses for financial statement 
purposes versus tax purposes. Federal income tax credits are 
recorded as a reduction of income taxes. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attrib-
utable to differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective 
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using 
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the 
years in which those temporary differences are expected to 
be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and 
liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in earnings in the 
period that includes the enactment date. Interest recognized in 
accordance with reserves for uncertain tax positions is included 
in interest, net in our consolidated statements of earnings. 
A corresponding liability for accrued interest is included as a 
component of other current liabilities in our consolidated 
balance sheets. Penalties, when incurred, are recognized in 
selling, general and administrative expenses.
 Effective May 28, 2007, we adopted Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 48, “Account-
ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes – an interpretation of FASB 
Statement No. 109.” FIN 48 requires that a position taken or 
expected to be taken in a tax return be recognized (or derecog-
nized) in the financial statements when it is more likely than not 
(i.e., a likelihood of more than fifty percent) that the position 
would be sustained upon examination by tax authorities. A 
recognized tax position is then measured at the largest amount 
of benefit that is greater than fifty percent likely of being realized 
upon ultimate settlement. Upon adoption, we recognized an 
additional liability of $1.1 million ($0.7 million after tax) for 
uncertain tax positions, including interest, which was accounted 
for as a cumulative decrease to the balance of beginning retained 
earnings. See Note 16 – Income Taxes for additional information. 
 Income tax benefits credited to equity relate to tax benefits 
associated with amounts that are deductible for income tax 
purposes but do not affect earnings. These benefits are principally 
generated from employee exercises of non-qualified stock 
options and vesting of employee restricted stock awards. 
See Note 16 – Income Taxes for additional information.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND 
HEDGING ACTIVITIES
We use financial and commodities derivatives to manage interest 
rate, compensation and commodities pricing risks inherent 
in our business operations. Our use of derivative instruments 
is currently limited to interest rate hedges; equity forwards 
contracts and commodities futures and options contracts. These 
instruments are structured as hedges of forecasted transactions 
or the variability of cash flows to be paid related to a recognized 
asset or liability (cash flow hedges). We do not enter into deriva-
tive instruments for trading or speculative purposes, where 
changes in the cash flows of the derivative are not expected to 
offset changes in cash flows related to a forecasted transaction. 
However, we have entered into equity forwards to economically 
hedge changes in the fair value of employee investments in our 
non-qualified deferred compensation plan and we have not 
elected hedge accounting for these instruments. All derivatives 
are recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. For those 
derivative instruments for which we intend to elect hedge 
accounting, on the date the derivative contract is entered into, 
we document all relationships between hedging instruments 
and hedged items, as well as our risk-management objective and 
strategy for undertaking the various hedge transactions. This 
process includes linking all derivatives designated as cash flow 
hedges to specific assets and liabilities on the consolidated balance 
sheet or to specific forecasted transactions. We also formally 
assess, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, 
whether the derivatives used in hedging transactions are highly 
effective in offsetting changes in cash flows of hedged items.
  Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are highly 
effective, and are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges 
are recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) until 
earnings are affected by the variability in cash flows of the 
designated hedged item. Where applicable, we discontinue 
hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the 
derivative is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the 
cash flows of the hedged item or the derivative is terminated. 
Any changes in the fair value of a derivative where hedge 
accounting has not been elected, where there is ineffectiveness 
or where the originally forecasted cash flows are no longer 
probable of occurring are recognized immediately in earnings. 
Cash flows related to derivatives are included in operating 
activities. See Note 11 – Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities for additional information.

LEASES
For operating leases, we recognize rent expense on a straight-
line basis over the expected lease term, including cancelable 
option periods where failure to exercise the options would 
result in an economic penalty to the Company. Differences 
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between amounts paid and amounts expensed are recorded 
as deferred rent. Capital leases are recorded as an asset and 
an obligation at an amount equal to the present value of the 
minimum lease payments during the lease term. Within the 
provisions of certain of our leases, there are rent holidays and 
escalations in payments over the base lease term, as well as 
renewal periods. The effects of the holidays and escalations 
have been reflected in rent expense on a straight-line basis 
over the expected lease term, which includes cancelable 
option periods where failure to exercise such options would 
result in an economic penalty to the Company. The lease term 
commences on the date when we have the right to control the 
use of the leased property, which is typically before rent pay-
ments are due under the terms of the lease. Many of our leases 
have renewal periods totaling five to 20 years, exercisable at 
our option and require payment of property taxes, insurance 
and maintenance costs in addition to the rent payments. 
The consolidated financial statements reflect the same lease 
term for amortizing leasehold improvements as we use to 
determine capital versus operating lease classifications and 
in calculating straight-line rent expense for each restaurant. 
Percentage rent expense is generally based on sales levels and 
is accrued at the point in time we determine that it is probable 
that such sales levels will be achieved. 

PRE-OPENING EXPENSES
Non-capital expenditures associated with opening new 
restaurants are expensed as incurred. 

ADVERTISING
Production costs of commercials are charged to operations 
in the fiscal period the advertising is first aired. The costs 
of programming and other advertising, promotion and 
marketing programs are charged to operations in the fiscal 
period incurred. Advertising expense, related to continuing 
operations, included in selling, general and administrative 
expenses, amounted to $257.8 million, $230.0 million and 
$223.0 million in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Effective May 29, 2006, we adopted the provisions of SFAS 
No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which requires companies 
to recognize in the financial statements the cost of employee 
services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments 
based on the grant date fair value of those awards. Previously, 
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” 

encouraged, but did not require, that stock-based compensation 
be recognized as an expense in companies’ financial statements. 
Accordingly, we elected to account for our stock-based 
compensation plans under an intrinsic value method that 
required compensation expense to be recorded only if, on the 
date of grant, the current market price of our common stock 
exceeded the exercise price the employee must pay for the 
stock. Our practice is to grant stock options at the fair market 
value of our underlying stock on the date of grant. Accordingly, 
prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), no compensation 
expense had been recognized for stock options granted under 
any of our stock plans because the exercise price of all options 
granted was equal to the current market value of our stock on 
the grant date. Subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), 
during fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, we recognized $26.8 million 
($16.7 million net of tax) and $17.1 million ($10.6 million net 
of tax), respectively, in incremental stock-based compensation 
expense related to stock options and benefits granted under our 
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, discussed below, which reduced 
our basic and diluted net earnings per share from continuing 
operations by $0.12 in fiscal 2008 and $0.08 in fiscal 2007.
 Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), benefits of tax 
deductions in excess of recognized stock-based compensation 
expense were reported as operating cash flows. Under SFAS 
No. 123(R), such excess tax benefits are reported as financing 
cash flows. Although total cash flows are not impacted and 
remain unchanged from what would have been reported under 
prior accounting standards, due to the adoption of SFAS No. 
123(R) net cash flows provided by operating activities were 
reduced by $23.5 million and $40.0 million during fiscal 2008 
and fiscal 2007, respectively, and net financing cash flows 
were increased by $23.5 million and $40.0 million during fis-
cal 2008 and fiscal 2007, respectively, due to the classification 
of these tax benefits as a financing activity as opposed to an 
operating activity.
 We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) according to the modified 
prospective transition method and use the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model to estimate the fair value of awards. 
Under the modified prospective transition method, we recog-
nize compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the 
remaining employee service period for new awards granted 
after the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R) and for unvested 
awards granted prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123(R). 
In accordance with the modified prospective transition 
method, financial statements issued for periods prior to the 
adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) have not been restated. 
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 Had we determined compensation expense for our stock 
options and benefits granted under our Employee Stock Purchase 
Plan for fiscal 2006 based on the fair value at the grant date as 
prescribed under SFAS No. 123, our earnings from continuing 
operations and net earnings from continuing operations per 
share, excluding pro-forma stock-based compensation expense 
from discontinued operations, would have been reduced to the 
pro forma amounts indicated below:

(in millions, except per share data)

Earnings from continuing operations    $351.8
 Add: Stock-based compensation expense included 
  in reported net earnings, net of related tax effects   5.1
 Deduct: Total stock-based compensation expense 
  determined under fair value based method for all 
  awards, net of related tax effects    (18.4) 

 Pro forma    $338.5

Basic net earnings per share from continuing operations 
 As reported    $  2.35
 Pro forma    $ 2.26
Diluted net earnings per share from continuing operations
 As reported    $ 2.24
 Pro forma    $ 2.16

 To determine pro forma net earnings, reported net earnings 
have been adjusted for compensation expense associated with 
stock options granted that are expected to vest and benefits 
granted under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan. Total stock-
based compensation expense also includes costs related to 
restricted stock and other forms of stock-based compensation 
granted to our employees that have always been required to be 
recognized in our financial statements. See Note 18 – Stock-
Based Compensation for further discussion. The preceding 
pro forma results were determined using the Black-Scholes 
option-pricing model. The weighted-average fair value of non-
qualified stock options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 
2006 used in computing compensation expense in fiscal 2008 
and 2007 and pro-forma compensation expense in fiscal 2006 
was $14.05, $13.87 and $10.68, respectively. The dividend yield 
was calculated by dividing the current annualized dividend 
by the option exercise price. The expected volatility was 
determined using historical stock prices. The risk-free interest 
rate was the rate available on zero coupon U.S. government 
obligations with a term approximating the expected life of 
each grant. The expected life was estimated based on the 
exercise history of previous grants, taking into consideration 
the remaining contractual period for outstanding awards. 
The weighted-average assumptions used in the Black-Scholes 
model to record stock-based compensation in fiscal 2008 

and 2007 and to derive the pro forma results for fiscal 2006, 
disclosed above, were as follows:
 Stock Options
 Granted in Fiscal Year

    2008  2007  2006

Risk-free interest rate 4.63% 5.08%  3.91%
Expected volatility of stock 32.6% 34.5%  30.0%
Dividend yield 1.6% 1.3%  1.2%
Expected option life 6.4 years 6.4 years  6.0 years

NET EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic net earnings per share are computed by dividing net 
earnings by the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding for the reporting period. Diluted net earnings per 
share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities 
or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or 
converted into common stock. Outstanding stock options, 
restricted stock, benefits granted under our Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan and performance stock units granted by us 
represent the only dilutive effect reflected in diluted weighted-
average shares outstanding. These stock-based compensation 
instruments do not impact the numerator of the diluted net 
earnings per share computation.
 The following table presents the computation of basic and 
diluted earnings per common share:

 Fiscal Year

(in millions, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006

Earnings from continuing operations $369.5 $ 377.1 $ 351.8
Earnings (loss) from discontinued 
 operations 7.7 (175.7)  (13.6)

Net earnings $377.2  $ 201.4 $ 338.2

Average common shares 
 outstanding – Basic  140.4  143.4 149.7
Effect of dilutive stock-based 
 compensation 4.7  5.4  7.2 

Average common shares 
 outstanding – Diluted 145.1  148.8 156.9

Basic net earnings per share:
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35
  Earnings (loss) from discontinued 
  operations 0.06 (1.23) (0.09)

 Net earnings $ 2.69 $ 1.40 $ 2.26

Diluted net earnings per share:
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.55 $ 2.53 $ 2.24
 Earnings (loss) from discontinued 
  operations 0.05 (1.18) (0.08)

 Net earnings $ 2.60  $ 1.35 $ 2.16
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 Options to purchase 3.2 million shares, 1.8 million shares 
and 0.1 million shares of common stock were excluded from 
the calculation of diluted net earnings per share for fiscal 
2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, because the effect would 
have been anti-dilutive. 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Comprehensive income (loss) includes net earnings and other 
comprehensive income (loss) items that are excluded from net 
earnings under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Other comprehensive income (loss) items include foreign 
currency translation adjustments, the effective unrealized 
portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges and the 
amortization of unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses 
related to our pension and other postretirement plans. See 
Note 13 – Stockholders’ Equity for additional information.

FOREIGN CURRENCY 
The Canadian dollar is the functional currency for our Canadian 
restaurant operations. Assets and liabilities denominated in 
Canadian dollars are translated into U.S. dollars using the 
exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Results of 
operations are translated using the average exchange rates 
prevailing throughout the period. Translation gains and 
losses are reported as a separate component of accumulated 
other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholders’ equity. 
Aggregate cumulative translation losses were $1.0 million and 
$4.3 million at May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, respectively. 
Gains and losses from foreign currency transactions were not 
significant for fiscal 2008, 2007 or 2006. 

SEGMENT REPORTING
As of May 25, 2008, we operated the Red Lobster, Olive Garden, 
LongHorn Steakhouse, The Capital Grille, Bahama Breeze, 
Seasons 52, Hemenway’s Seafood Grille & Oyster Bar and The 
Old Grist Mill Tavern restaurant concepts in North America 
as operating segments. The concepts operate principally in the 
U.S. within the full-service dining industry, providing similar 
products to similar customers. The concepts also possess similar 
economic characteristics, resulting in similar long-term expected 
financial performance characteristics. Revenues from external 
customers are derived principally from food and beverage 
sales. We do not rely on any major customers as a source of 
revenue. We believe we meet the criteria for aggregating our 
operating segments into a single reporting segment.

APPLICATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair 
Value Measures.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a 
framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures 
about fair value measures required under other accounting 

pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as 
to whether or not an instrument is carried at fair value. For 
financial assets and liabilities, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007, which will require 
us to adopt these provisions in fiscal 2009. For nonfinancial 
assets and liabilities, SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after November 15, 2008, which will require us to 
adopt these provisions in fiscal 2010. We do not believe the 
adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a significant impact on our 
consolidated financial statements.
 In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 “The Fair 
Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.” 
SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report 
selected financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value. 
Unrealized gains and losses on items for which the fair value 
option has been elected are reported in earnings at each 
subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal 
years beginning after November 15, 2007, which will require 
us to adopt these provisions in fiscal 2009. We do not believe 
the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a significant impact on 
our consolidated financial statements.
 In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business 
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141R provides companies with 
principles and requirements on how an acquirer recognizes 
and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets 
acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest 
in the acquiree as well as the recognition and measurement of 
goodwill acquired in a business combination. SFAS No. 141R 
also requires certain disclosures to enable users of the financial 
statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the 
business combination. Acquisition costs associated with the 
business combination will generally be expensed as incurred. 
SFAS No. 141R is effective for business combinations occurring 
in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008, which will 
require us to adopt these provisions for business combinations 
occurring in fiscal 2010 and thereafter. Early adoption of SFAS 
No. 141R is not permitted. We do not believe the adoption of 
SFAS No. 141R will have a significant impact on our consoli-
dated financial statements; however, the application of this 
standard will significantly change how we account for future 
business combinations.
 In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, “Disclosures 
about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”  SFAS 
No. 161 provides companies with requirements for enhanced 
disclosures about derivative instruments and hedging activities 
to enable investors to better understand their effects on a 
company’s financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows. These requirements include the disclosure of the fair 
values of derivative instruments and their gains and losses in a 
tabular format.  SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after November 15, 2008, which will require us to adopt 
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these provisions in fiscal 2009. Early adoption of SFAS No. 161 
is permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact SFAS 
No. 161 will have on our consolidated financial statements.
 In June 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) 
EITF 03-6-1, “Determining Whether Instruments Granted in 
Share-Based Payment Transactions Are Participating Securities.” 
FSP EITF 03-6-1 provides that unvested share-based payment 
awards that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividends or 
dividend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) are participating 
securities and shall be included in the computation of earnings 
per share pursuant to the two-class method. The two-class 
method is an earnings allocation method for computing 
earnings per share when an entity’s capital structure includes 
either two or more classes of common stock or common stock 
and participating securities. It determines earnings per share 
based on dividends declared on common stock and participating 
securities (i.e., distributed earnings) and participation rights 
of participating securities in any undistributed earnings. 
FSP EITF 03-6-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2008, which will require us to adopt these 
provisions in fiscal 2010 and will require the recast of all 
previously reported earnings per share data. We are currently 
evaluating the impact FSP EITF 03-6-1 will have on our consoli-
dated financial statements.

NOTE 2 
ACQUISITION OF RARE HOSPITALITY 
INTERNATIONAL, INC.

On October 1, 2007, we completed the acquisition of all of the 
outstanding common stock of RARE for an aggregate purchase 
price, including fees, expenses, and the fair value of our vested 
stock options and restricted stock issued to RARE employees 
in exchange for their outstanding vested stock options and 
restricted stock, of $1.27 billion, which is summarized below 
(amounts in millions):

Payment to RARE shareholders in cash   $1,191.6
Conversion of RARE stock-based awards   40.5
Direct acquisition costs   13.5
Restructuring and other employee costs   9.9
RARE debt conversion premium   9.8

 Total    $1,265.3

 Additionally, as a result of the acquisition, we repaid RARE’s 
2.5 percent convertible notes for $134.8 million, including 
$9.8 million related to the conversion premium, which was 
included in the purchase price. The acquired operations, which 
included 288 LongHorn Steakhouse restaurants, 29 The Capital 
Grille restaurants, one Hemenway’s Seafood Grille & Oyster Bar 
restaurant, and one The Old Grist Mill Tavern, as well as the 

rights associated with the four franchised LongHorn Steakhouse 
restaurants in Puerto Rico, are included in the results of 
operations of our consolidated financial statements from the 
date of acquisition and will continue to operate under their 
trademarked names.
 Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets 
and liabilities of RARE were recorded at their respective fair 
values as of the date of the acquisition. We are in the process 
of confirming, through internal studies and third-party valu-
ations, the fair value of these assets, including land, buildings 
and equipment, intangible assets, and certain liabilities. The 
fair values set forth below are based on preliminary valuations 
and, given the size of the acquisition, are subject to adjust-
ment as additional information is obtained. Such additional 
information includes, but may not be limited to, the following: 
valuations and physical counts of land, buildings and equip-
ment and plans relative to the disposition of certain assets and 
liabilities acquired. We expect to complete this process during 
the first quarter of fiscal 2009, which may result in adjustments 
to goodwill, in addition to the allocation of goodwill to the 
applicable reporting units. 
 The following table summarizes the preliminary estimate 
of fair value assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities 
assumed and related deferred income taxes as of the date 
of acquisition, reflecting adjustments through May 25, 2008 
(amounts in millions):

Current assets   $   87.7
Land, buildings and equipment   654.2
Goodwill (non-amortizable)   527.9
Trademarks (non-amortizable)   455.0
Other assets (including $12.6 of non-amortizable 
 liquor licenses)   63.2

  Total assets acquired   $1,788.0

Current liabilities   114.9
Other liabilities   407.8

  Total liabilities assumed   $   522.7

  Net assets acquired   $1,265.3

 The excess of the purchase price over the aggregate fair 
value of net assets acquired was allocated to goodwill. Of the 
$527.9 million recorded as goodwill, $11.1 is expected to be 
deductible as operating expenses for tax purposes. The acquisition 
of RARE is a major step in advancing our strategy of growing 
our portfolio of brands in the casual dining industry through 
internal development and acquisitions. The portion of the 
purchase price attributable to goodwill represents benefits 
expected as a result of the acquisition, including sales growth 
opportunities driven primarily by increased advertising effective-
ness and cost synergies, driven primarily by supply chain and 
purchasing integration and consolidation of corporate and 

DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   56DAR-011_FIN 3.0.indd   56 7/24/08   3:09:47 PM7/24/08   3:09:47 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 57

restaurant support infrastructure. During the period subsequent 
to the acquisition, $8.0 million of tax benefits related to the 
exercise of converted stock-based compensation was charged 
against goodwill related to the portion of the value of the awards 
that was included in the purchase price.
 Trademarks, which primarily relate to LongHorn Steakhouse 
and The Capital Grille, have an indefinite life based on the 
expected use of the assets and the regulatory and economic 
environment within which they are being used. These trademarks 
represent highly respected brands with positive connotations 
and we intend to cultivate and protect the use of these brands. 
Goodwill and trademarks are not amortized but are reviewed 
annually for impairment or more frequently if indicators of 
impairment exist. A portion of the acquired lease portfolio 
represented favorable operating leases, compared with current 
market conditions, and a portion represented unfavorable 
operating leases, compared with current market conditions. 
The fair value of the favorable leases totaled $25.3 million, is 
recorded in other assets and, after considering renewal periods, 
has an estimated weighted average life of approximately 16 years. 
The fair value of the unfavorable leases totaled $8.7 million, 
is recorded in other liabilities and has an estimated weighted 
average life of approximately 19 years. The fair value of both the 
favorable and unfavorable leases is amortized to rent expense 
on the straight-line basis over the lives of the related leases.
 As a result of the RARE acquisition, we accrued $4.7 million 
in employee termination benefits and $5.2 million in employee 
relocation benefits, both of which were included in the cost of 
the acquisition, and are expected to be paid out during fiscal 
2008 and 2009. 
 The following is a reconciliation of accrued employee 
termination and employee relocation benefit costs from 
October 1, 2007 (date of acquisition) to May 25, 2008, which 
are included in other current liabilities in the accompanying 
consolidated balance sheets:

    Balance at    Balance at
(in millions)  October 1, 2007 Adjustments Payments  May 25, 2008

Employee 
 terminations $ 4.7 $   – $(3.3) $1.4
Employee 
 relocations 6.1 (0.9) (2.8) 2.4

Total  $10.8 $(0.9) $(6.1) $3.8

 Included as part of the purchase price were $31.9 million 
and $8.6 million of fair value related to our stock options and 
restricted stock, respectively, issued to RARE employees in 
exchange for their outstanding RARE vested stock options 
and restricted stock.

 The following pro forma information assumes the RARE 
acquisition occurred as of the beginning of each period pre-
sented. The pro forma results are not necessarily indicative of 
what actually would have occurred had the acquisition been 
in effect for the periods presented.

 Fiscal Year Ended

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions, except per share data)  2008 2007

Sales    $6,986.5 $6,559.8
Earnings from continuing operations  $   384.4 $   420.3
Net earnings  $   389.6 $   237.5
Diluted net earnings per share from 
 continuing operations  $   2.65 $   2.82
Diluted net earnings per share  $   2.68 $   1.60

NOTE 3
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On April 28, 2007, we closed nine under-performing Bahama 
Breeze restaurants to focus more on the profitable locations 
and position the concept for new unit growth. As a result of 
these closures, we recorded long-lived asset impairment charges 
of $12.7 million in fiscal 2007, as well as expenses of $1.3 million 
to accrue for ongoing contractual operating lease obligations, 
$0.6 million in restaurant-level closing costs, $0.5 million in 
employee termination benefits and $0.3 million in other costs.
 On May 5, 2007, we announced the closure of 54 Smokey 
Bones and two Rocky River Grillhouse restaurants as well as our 
intention to offer for sale the remaining 73 operating Smokey 
Bones restaurants. During fiscal 2007, we recorded long-lived 
asset impairment charges of $236.4 million, $229.5 million of 
which was recorded during the fourth quarter as a result of 
these actions, as well as expenses of $4.9 million to accrue for 
ongoing contractual operating lease obligations, $3.9 million 
in other asset write-offs, $2.3 million in employee termination 
benefits, $1.3 million in restaurant-level closing costs, and 
$1.3 million in other costs. On November 30, 2007, we entered 
into a definitive agreement to sell the 73 operating Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill restaurants to Barbeque Integrated, 
Inc. (BII), an affiliate of Sun Capital Partners, Inc., a worldwide 
private investment firm, for $82.0 million, net of selling costs 
of approximately $1.8 million. On December 31, 2007, we 
closed with BII on the sale of 62 of the restaurants, and as of 
February 24, 2008, we had closed on the sale of an additional 
ten restaurants for a total of 72 restaurants. The sale of the 
remaining restaurant closed on June 13, 2008. As of May 25, 
2008, we received $81.5 million in net cash proceeds related to 
the sale and have recognized a gain on the sale of $18.0 million, 
which is included in earnings from discontinued operations 
for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008.
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 For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, all gains and losses on 
disposition, impairment charges and disposal costs, along with 
the sales, costs and expenses and income taxes attributable 
to these restaurants have been aggregated to a single caption 
entitled earnings (losses) from discontinued operations, net of 
tax in our consolidated statements of earnings for all periods 
presented. Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations, 
net of taxes on our accompanying consolidated statements of 
earnings are comprised of the following:

 Fiscal Year Ended

    May 25,  May 27, May 28, 
(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

Sales   $120.7 $   357.9 $367.0
Earnings (losses) before 
 income taxes $ 10.7 $(288.6) $(25.7)
Income tax (expense) benefit (3.0) 112.9 12.1

Net earnings (losses) from 
 discontinued operations $  7.7 $(175.7) $(13.6)

 As of May 25, 2008, the remaining assets associated with 
the abandoned restaurants reported as discontinued operations 
upon their closure in fiscal 2007 no longer met the criteria to 
be classified as held for sale as we do not believe it is likely the 
remaining assets will be sold within one year. 
 The following is a detail of the assets and liabilities associated 
with the restaurants reported as discontinued operations and 
classified as held for sale in our accompanying consolidated 
balance sheet as of May 27, 2007 at fair value with comparative 
amounts of the assets, which were abandoned in fiscal 2007, 
but have not been sold as of May 25, 2008:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Current assets  $    –  $ 44.6
Land, buildings and equipment, net  25.3 97.1
Other assets  – 2.3

Total assets  $25.3 $144.0

Current liabilities  $     –  $ 37.1
Other liabilities  – 5.2

Total liabilities  $     –  $ 42.3

 The following is a reconciliation of accrued exit and disposal 
costs from May 27, 2007 to May 25, 2008, which are included 
in other current liabilities on the accompanying consolidated 
balance sheets and are expected to be paid in fiscal 2009:

    Balance at    Balance at
(in millions)  May 27, 2007 Adjustments Payments  May 25, 2008

Lease termination 
 costs  $6.2 $    0.5 $(3.4) $3.3
Other exit costs 1.0 (1.0) – –

Total   $7.2 $(0.5) $(3.4) $3.3

NOTE 4
RECEIVABLES, NET

Our accounts receivable is primarily comprised of receivables 
from national storage and distribution companies with which 
we contract to provide services that are billed to us on a per-case 
basis. In connection with these services, certain of our inventory 
items are conveyed to these storage and distribution companies 
to transfer ownership and risk of loss prior to delivery of the 
inventory to our restaurants. We reacquire these items when 
the inventory is subsequently delivered to our restaurants. 
These transactions do not impact the consolidated statements 
of earnings. Receivables from national storage and distribution 
companies amounted to $21.5 million and $19.3 million at 
May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, respectively. In addition, at 
the end of fiscal 2008, a vendor owed us $18 million as part of 
an up-front three year service agreement, which is included in 
accounts receivable and was collected subsequent to May 25, 
2008. This amount is also included in long-term liabilities, with 
the amount expected to be earned within one year recognized 
in other current liabilities. The amount earned each period, 
related to the upfront vendor payment, will be reflected as a 
reduction to restaurant expenses. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts associated with all of our receivables amounted to 
$3.6 million at May 25, 2008 and $1.6 million at May 27, 2007.

NOTE 5
ASSET IMPAIRMENT, NET

During fiscal 2008 we recorded less than $0.1 million of long-lived 
asset impairment charges. During fiscal 2007, we recorded 
$2.6 million of long-lived asset impairment charges primarily 
related to the permanent closure of one Red Lobster and one 
Olive Garden restaurant. During fiscal 2007, we also recorded 
$0.2 million of gains related to the sale of previously impaired 
restaurants. During fiscal 2006, we recorded $1.5 million of 
long-lived asset impairment charges primarily related to the 
closing of three Red Lobster and two Olive Garden restaurants. 
During fiscal 2006, we also recorded $0.2 million of gains related 
to the sale of previously impaired restaurants. These costs are 
included in selling, general and administrative expenses as 
a component of earnings from continuing operations in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of earnings for fiscal 
2008, 2007 and 2006. Impairment charges were measured based 
on the amount by which the carrying amount of these assets 
exceeded their fair value. Fair value is generally determined 
based on appraisals or sales prices of comparable assets and 
estimates of future cash flows.
 The results of operations for all Red Lobster and Olive 
Garden restaurants permanently closed in fiscal 2008, 2007 and 
2006 that would otherwise have met the criteria for discontinued 
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operations reporting are not material to our consolidated 
financial position, results of operations or cash flows and, 
therefore, have not been presented as discontinued operations.

NOTE 6 
LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT, NET

The components of land, buildings and equipment, net, are 
as follows:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Land   $   751.8 $  595.8
Buildings  2,846.4 2,299.7
Equipment  1,187.2 996.5
Assets under capital leases  68.6 –
Construction in progress  137.7 69.4

Total land, buildings and equipment  4,991.7 3,961.4
Less accumulated depreciation 
 and amortization  (1,923.4) (1,777.0)
Less depreciation associated with assets 
 under capital leases  (2.3) –

Land, buildings, and equipment, net  $   3,066.0 $   2,184.4

 On August 24, 2006, we completed the sale and leaseback 
of our Restaurant Support Center (RSC) for $45.2 million. The 
RSC houses all of our executive offices, shared service functions 
and concept administrative personnel. The transaction was 
completed in anticipation of moving the RSC to a new facility 
approximately three years from the date of sale. As a result of 
the sale and subsequent leaseback of the RSC, we recorded a 
$15.2 million deferred gain, which is being recognized over 
the three-year leaseback period on a straight-line basis. During 
fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007, we recognized gains of $5.1 million 
and $2.8 million, respectively, on the sale of the RSC, which is 
included as a reduction of selling, general and administrative 
expenses in our consolidated statements of earnings.

NOTE 7
OTHER ASSETS

The components of other assets are as follows:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Pension over-funding  $ 26.8 $ 17.1
Trust-owned life insurance  53.8 60.3
Capitalized software costs, net  27.4 30.4
Liquor licenses  38.5 23.6
Value of acquired below-market leases  23.8 –
Loan costs  19.6 8.6
Miscellaneous  31.9 11.0

Total other assets  $221.8 $151.0

NOTE 8 
SHORT-TERM DEBT

Short-term debt at May 25, 2008 consisted of $48.4 million and 
$130.0 million of unsecured commercial paper borrowings 
with original maturities of one month or less and borrowings 
under the New Revolving Credit Agreement (as defined in 
Note 10 – Long-Term Debt), respectively. As of May 25, 2008, 
commercial paper borrowings and borrowings under the New 
Revolving Credit Agreement bore interest rates of 2.85 percent 
and 3.14 percent, respectively. As of May 27, 2007, short-term 
debt consisted of unsecured commercial paper borrowings of 
$211.4 million.

NOTE 9
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

The components of other current liabilities are as follows:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Non-qualified deferred compensation plan  $143.8 $146.9
Sales and other taxes   52.6 42.3
Insurance-related  56.0 54.4
Miscellaneous  57.7 31.7
Employee benefits  36.0 18.1
Accrued interest  19.0 11.6

Total other current liabilities  $365.1 $305.0

NOTE 10
LONG-TERM DEBT

The components of long-term debt are as follows: 

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

4.875% senior notes due August 2010  $   150.0 $150.0
7.450% medium-term notes due April 2011  75.0 75.0
5.625% senior notes due October 2012  350.0 –
7.125% debentures due February 2016  100.0 100.0
6.200% senior notes due October 2017  500.0 –
6.000% senior notes due August 2035  150.0 150.0
6.800% senior notes due October 2037  300.0 –
ESOP loan with variable rate of interest (2.864% 
 at May 25, 2008) due December 2018  15.5 19.1

Total long-term debt  1,640.5 494.1
Less issuance discount  (6.2) (2.5)

Total long-term debt less issuance discount  1,634.3 491.6
Less current portion  – –

Long-term debt, excluding current portion  $1,634.3 $491.6
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 Until September 20, 2007, we maintained a credit facility 
under a Credit Agreement dated August 16, 2005 (Prior Credit 
Agreement) with a consortium of banks under which we can 
borrow up to $500.0 million. As part of the Prior Credit Agreement, 
we could request issuance of up to $100.0 million in letters of 
credit, the outstanding amount of which reduced the net bor-
rowing capacity under the Prior Credit Agreement. The Prior 
Credit Agreement allowed us to borrow at interest rates that 
varied based on a spread over (i) LIBOR or (ii) a base rate that 
was the higher of the prime rate or one-half of one percent 
above the federal funds rate, at our option. The interest rate 
spread over LIBOR was determined by our debt rating. We 
could also request that loans be made at interest rates offered 
by one or more of the banks, which may have varied from the 
LIBOR or base rate. The Prior Credit Agreement supported our 
commercial paper borrowing program and would have expired 
on August 15, 2010, but was terminated on September 20, 2007 in 
connection with the new credit arrangements described below. 
 On September 20, 2007, to fund the RARE acquisition, we 
entered into (i) a $750.0 million revolving Credit Agreement 
dated as of September 20, 2007 (New Revolving Credit Agree-
ment) with Bank of America, N.A. (BOA), as administrative 
agent, and the lenders (Revolving Credit Lenders) and other 
agents party thereto, and (ii) a $1.15 billion 364-Day Credit 
Agreement dated as of September 20, 2007 (Interim Credit 
Agreement) with BOA, as administrative agent, and the lenders 
thereto. The Interim Credit Agreement became available to 
us upon the consummation of the RARE acquisition. The 
Interim Credit Agreement and the New Revolving Credit 
Agreement were used to fund the RARE acquisition. On 
October 11, 2007, we completed the issuance of $1.15 billion 
aggregate principal amount of long-term senior notes described 
below, the proceeds of which were used to fully repay the Interim 
Credit Agreement.
 The New Revolving Credit Agreement is a senior unsecured 
debt obligation of the Company and contains customary 
representations, affirmative and negative covenants (including 
limitations on liens and subsidiary debt, and a maximum con-
solidated lease adjusted total debt to total capitalization ratio 
of 0.75 to 1.00) and events of default usual for credit facilities 
of this type. As of May 25, 2008, we were in compliance with all 
covenants under the New Revolving Credit Agreement.
 The New Revolving Credit Agreement expires on 
September 20, 2012, and the proceeds may be used for com-
mercial paper back-up, working capital and capital expenditures, 
the refinancing of certain indebtedness, the partial financing 
of the RARE acquisition as well as general corporate purposes. 
The New Revolving Credit Agreement also contains a sub-limit 
of $150.0 million for the issuance of letters of credit. The 
borrowings and letters of credit obtained under the New 
Revolving Credit Agreement may be denominated in U.S. 

Dollars, Euro, Sterling, Yen, Canadian Dollars and each other 
currency approved by the Revolving Credit Lenders. The 
Company may elect to increase the commitments under the 
New Revolving Credit Agreement by up to $250.0 million 
(to an aggregate amount of up to $1.0 billion), subject to the 
Company obtaining commitments from new and existing 
lenders for the additional amounts. 
 Loans under the New Revolving Credit Agreement bear 
interest at a rate of LIBOR plus a margin determined by 
reference to a ratings-based pricing grid, or the base rate 
(which is defined as the higher of the BOA prime rate and 
the federal funds rate plus 0.500 percent). Assuming a “BBB” 
equivalent credit rating level, the applicable margin under the 
New Revolving Credit Agreement will be 0.350 percent. We 
may also request that loans under the New Revolving Credit 
Agreement be made at interest rates offered by one or more of 
the Revolving Credit Lenders, which may vary from the LIBOR 
or base rate, for up to $100.0 million of borrowings. The New 
Revolving Credit Agreement requires that we pay a facility fee 
on the total amount of such facility (ranging from 0.070 percent 
to 0.175 percent, based on our credit ratings) and, in the event 
that the outstanding amounts under the applicable New 
Revolving Credit Agreement exceeds 50 percent of such New 
Revolving Credit Agreement, a utilization fee on the total 
amount outstanding under such facility (ranging from 0.050 
percent to 0.150 percent, based on our credit ratings). As of 
May 25, 2008, $130.0 million was outstanding under the New 
Revolving Credit Agreement. In addition, $48.4 million of 
commercial paper was outstanding as of May 25, 2008, which is 
backed by this facility. 
 On October 11, 2007, we issued $350.0 million of unsecured 
5.625 percent senior notes due October 2012, $500.0 million 
of unsecured 6.200 percent senior notes due October 2017 and 
$300.0 million of unsecured 6.800 percent senior notes due 
October 2037 (collectively, the New Senior Notes) under a 
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission on October 9, 2007. Discount and issuance costs, 
which were $4.3 million and $11.7 million, respectively, are 
being amortized over the terms of the New Senior Notes 
using the straight-line method, the results of which approxi-
mate the effective interest method. The interest rate payable 
on each series of the New Senior Notes will be subject to 
adjustment from time to time if the debt rating assigned to 
such series of the New Senior Notes is downgraded below a 
certain rating level (or subsequently upgraded). The maximum 
adjustment is 2.000 percent above the initial interest rate and 
the interest rate cannot be reduced below the initial interest 
rate. As of May 25, 2008, no such adjustments to the interest 
rates had been made. We may redeem any series of the New 
Senior Notes at any time in whole or from time to time in part, 
at the principal amount plus a make-whole premium. If we 
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experience a change of control triggering event, we may be 
required to purchase the New Senior Notes from the holders.
 All of our long-term debt currently outstanding is expected 
to be repaid entirely at maturity with interest being paid semi-
annually over the life of the debt. The aggregate maturities 
of long-term debt for each of the five fiscal years subsequent 
to May 25, 2008, and thereafter are $0.0 million in 2009 and 
2010, $225.0 million in 2011, $0.0 million in 2012, $350.0 million 
in 2013 and $1.06 billion thereafter.

NOTE 11
DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND 
HEDGING ACTIVITIES

We use interest rate-related derivative instruments to manage 
our exposure on debt instruments, as well as commodities 
derivatives to manage our exposure to commodity price 
fluctuations. We also use equity-related derivative instruments 
to manage our exposure on cash compensation arrangements 
indexed to the market price of our common stock. By using 
these instruments, we expose ourselves, from time to time, 
to credit risk and market risk. Credit risk is the failure of the 
counterparty to perform under the terms of the derivative 
contract. When the fair value of a derivative contract is posi-
tive, the counterparty owes us, which creates credit risk for 
us. We minimize this credit risk by entering into transactions 
with high quality counterparties. Market risk is the adverse 
effect on the value of a financial instrument that results from 
a change in interest rates, commodity prices, or the market 
price of our common stock. We minimize this market risk by 
establishing and monitoring parameters that limit the types 
and degree of market risk that may be undertaken.

OPTION CONTRACTS AND COMMODITY SWAPS
During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we entered into option con-
tracts and commodity swaps to reduce the risk of natural gas 
price fluctuations. To the extent these derivatives are effective 
in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash flows, changes in 
the derivatives’ fair value are not included in current earnings 
but are included in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss). These changes in fair value are subsequently reclassified 
into earnings as a component of restaurant expenses when the 
natural gas is purchased and used by us in our operations. Net 
gains (losses) of $0.4 million, ($4.6) million and $4.3 million 
related to these derivatives were reclassified to earnings during 
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively, in connection with 
the settlement of our contracts. As of May 25, 2008, we were 
party to natural gas commodity swaps with aggregate notional 
values of $11.3 million. The fair value of these contracts was 
a net gain of $0.1 million at May 25, 2008 and is expected 
to be reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive 

income (loss) into restaurant expenses during fiscal 2009. To 
the extent that these derivatives are no longer highly effective 
in offsetting changes in cash flows related to our purchases 
of natural gas, hedge accounting would be discontinued 
and future changes in their fair value would be immediately 
recognized in current earnings.
 During fiscal 2008, we entered into commodity swaps to 
reduce the risk of fluctuations in the price we pay for butter 
during fiscal 2009. To the extent these derivatives are effective 
in offsetting the variability of the hedged cash flows, changes 
in the derivatives’ fair value are not included in current earn-
ings but are included in accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss). These changes in fair value will subsequently be 
reclassified into earnings as a component of food and beverage 
expenses when the butter is purchased and used by us in our 
operations. As of May 25, 2008, we were party to butter com-
modity swaps with aggregate notional values of $5.8 million. 
The fair value of these contracts was a net gain of $0.1 million 
at May 25, 2008 and is expected to be reclassified from accu-
mulated other comprehensive income (loss) into restaurant 
expenses during fiscal 2009. To the extent that these derivatives 
are no longer highly effective in offsetting changes in cash 
flows related to our purchases of natural gas, hedge accounting 
would be discontinued and future changes in their fair value 
would be immediately recognized in current earnings.
 The fair value of outstanding derivatives is included in 
other current assets or other current liabilities. At May 25, 
2008, the fair value of our outstanding commodity swaps was 
$0.2 million and is included in other current assets in our 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. As of May 25, 
2008, the maximum length of time over which we are hedging 
our exposure to the variability in future cash flows related to 
the purchase of natural gas and butter is six months. 

INTEREST RATE LOCK AGREEMENT
During the second quarter of fiscal 2008, we entered into 
treasury-lock derivative instruments with $550.0 million of 
notional value to hedge a portion of the risk of changes in 
the benchmark interest rate prior to the issuance of the New 
Senior Notes, as changes in the benchmark interest rate 
would cause variability in our forecasted interest payments. 
These instruments were all settled at the issuance of the 
New Senior Notes for a cumulative gain of $6.2 million. This 
amount was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) and will be reclassified into earnings as an 
adjustment to interest expense as interest on the New Senior 
Notes or similar debt is incurred. A gain of $0.5 million was 
recognized in earnings during fiscal 2008 as an adjustment to 
interest expense.
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 During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we entered into 
treasury-lock derivative instruments with $100.0 million of 
notional value to hedge a portion of the risk of changes in the 
benchmark interest rate associated with the expected issuance 
of long-term debt to refinance our existing long-term debt due 
to mature in fiscal 2011, as changes in the benchmark interest 
rate will cause variability in our forecasted interest payments. 
The fair value of these outstanding treasury-lock derivative 
instruments was a net gain of $2.3 million at May 25, 2008 and 
is expected to be reclassified from accumulated other compre-
hensive income (loss) into earnings as an adjustment to interest 
expense as interest is incurred on the long-term debt expected 
to be issued in fiscal 2011.

INTEREST RATE SWAPS
During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004, we entered into interest rate 
swap agreements (swaps) to hedge the risk of changes in inter-
est rates on the cost of a future issuance of fixed-rate debt. The 
swaps, which had a $100.0 million notional principal amount 
of indebtedness, were used to hedge a portion of the interest 
payments associated with $150.0 million of unsecured 4.875 
percent senior notes due in August 2010, which were issued in 
August 2005. The swaps were settled at the time of the related 
debt issuance with a net loss of $1.2 million being recognized 
in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The 
net loss on the swaps is being amortized into earnings as an 
adjustment to interest expense over the same period in which 
the related interest costs on the related debt issuance are being 
recognized in earnings. Losses of $0.2 million were recognized 
in earnings during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 as an adjustment 
to interest expense. 
 We also had interest rate swaps with a notional amount of 
$200.0 million, which we used to convert variable rates on our 
long-term debt to fixed rates effective May 30, 1995, related to 
the issuance of our $150.0 million 6.375 percent notes due 
February 2006 and our $100.0 million 7.125 percent debentures 
due February 2016. We received the one-month commercial 
paper interest rate and paid fixed-rate interest ranging from 
7.51 percent to 7.89 percent. The swaps were settled during 
January 1996 at a cost to us of $27.7 million. A portion of the 
cost was recognized as an adjustment to interest expense over 
the term of our 10-year 6.375 percent notes that were settled at 
maturity in February 2006. The remaining portion continues 
to be recognized as an adjustment to interest expense over the 
term of our 20-year 7.125 percent debentures due 2016. A loss 
of $0.6 million was recognized in earnings during fiscal 2008, 
2007 and 2006 as an adjustment to interest expense.

EQUITY FORWARDS
During fiscal 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we entered into equity 
forward contracts to hedge the risk of changes in future cash 
flows associated with the unvested, unrecognized Darden stock 
units granted during fiscal 2008, 2007, 2006 and 2005 (see 
Note 18 – Stock-Based Compensation for additional information). 
The equity forward contracts will be settled at the end of the 
vesting periods of their underlying Darden stock units, which 
range between four and five years. In total, the equity forward 
contracts are indexed to 0.6 million shares of our common 
stock, at varying forward rates between $19.52 per share 
and $41.17 per share, have a $16.9 million notional amount 
and can only be net settled in cash. To the extent the equity 
forward contracts are effective in offsetting the variability of 
the hedged cash flows, changes in the fair value of the equity 
forward contracts are not included in current earnings but are 
reported as accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). 
A deferred loss of $0.2 million related to the equity forward 
contracts was recognized in accumulated other comprehen-
sive income (loss) at May 25, 2008. As the Darden stock units 
vest, we will effectively de-designate that portion of the equity 
forward contract that no longer qualifies for hedge accounting 
and changes in fair value associated with that portion of the 
equity forward contract will be recognized in current earnings. 
(Losses) gains of ($2.5) million, $2.5 million and $1.0 million 
were recognized in earnings as a component of restaurant 
labor during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. 
 During fiscal 2006 and 2008, we entered into equity forward 
contracts to hedge the risk of changes in future cash flows 
associated with employee-directed investments in Darden 
stock within the non-qualified deferred compensation plan 
(see Note 17 – Retirement Plans for additional information). 
The equity forward contracts are indexed to 0.2 million shares 
of our common stock at forward rates between $23.41 and 
$37.44 per share, have $6.3 million in notional value, can only 
be net settled in cash and expire between fiscal 2011 and 2013. 
We did not elect hedge accounting with the expectation that 
changes in the fair value of the equity forward contracts would 
offset changes in the fair value of the Darden stock investments 
in the non-qualified deferred compensation plan within net 
earnings in our consolidated statements of earnings. (Losses) 
gains of ($0.6) million, $0.9 million and ($0.1) million related 
to the equity forward contracts were recognized in net earnings 
during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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NOTE 12
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair values of cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and short-term debt approximate their carrying amounts 
due to their short duration. 
 The carrying value and fair value of long-term debt at 
May 25, 2008 was $1.63 billion and $1.62 billion, respectively. 
The carrying value and fair value of long-term debt at May 27, 
2007 was $491.6 million and $496.3 million, respectively. The 
fair value of long-term debt is determined based on market 
prices or, if market prices are not available, the present value 
of the underlying cash flows discounted at our incremental 
borrowing rates. 

NOTE 13 
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TREASURY STOCK
On June 16, 2006, our Board of Directors authorized an 
additional share repurchase authorization totaling 25.0 million 
shares in addition to the previous authorization of 137.4 million 
shares, bringing our total authorizations to 162.4 million. 
In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we purchased treasury stock 
totaling $159.4 million, $371.2 million and $434.2 million, 
respectively. At May 25, 2008, a total of 147.0 million shares 
had been repurchased under the authorizations. The 
repurchased common stock is reflected as a reduction of 
stockholders’ equity.

STOCK PURCHASE/LOAN PROGRAM
We have share ownership guidelines for our officers. To assist 
them in meeting these guidelines, we implemented the 1998 
Stock Purchase/Option Award Loan Program (Loan Program) 
in conjunction with our Stock Option and Long-Term Incentive 
Plan of 1995. The Loan Program provided loans to our officers 
and awarded two options for every new share purchased, up to 
a maximum total share value equal to a designated percentage 
of the officer’s base compensation. Loans are full recourse 
and interest bearing, with a maximum principal amount of 
75 percent of the value of the stock purchased. The stock 
purchased is held on deposit with us until the loan is repaid. 
The interest rate for loans under the Loan Program is fixed 
and is equal to the applicable federal rate for mid-term loans 
with semi-annual compounding for the month in which the 
loan originates. Interest is payable on a weekly basis. Loan 
principal is payable in installments with 25 percent, 25 percent 

and 50 percent of the total loan due at the end of the fifth, 
sixth and seventh years of the loan, respectively. Effective 
July 30, 2002, and in compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002, we no longer issue new loans under the Loan 
Program. We account for outstanding officer notes receivable 
as a reduction of stockholders’ equity. 

STOCKHOLDERS’ RIGHTS PLAN
Under our Rights Agreement dated May 16, 2005, each share 
of our common stock has associated with it one right to 
purchase one-thousandth of a share of our Series A Participating 
Cumulative Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $120 per 
share, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances to 
prevent dilution. The rights are exercisable when, and are not 
transferable apart from our common stock until, a person or 
group has acquired 15 percent or more, or makes a tender 
offer for 15 percent or more, of our common stock. If the 
specified percentage of our common stock is then acquired, 
each right will entitle the holder (other than the acquiring 
company) to receive, upon exercise, common stock of either 
us or the acquiring company having a value equal to two times 
the exercise price of the right. The rights are redeemable 
by our Board of Directors under certain circumstances and 
expire on May 25, 2015. 

ACCUMULATED OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
The components of accumulated other comprehensive 
income (loss) are as follows:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Foreign currency translation adjustment  $  (1.0) $ (4.3)
Unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives, net of tax 4.5 3.8
SFAS No. 158 benefit plan funding position, 
 net of tax  (24.2) (32.3)

Total accumulated other comprehensive 
 income (loss)  $(20.7) $(32.8)

 Reclassification adjustments associated with pre-tax net 
derivative gains (losses) realized in net earnings for fiscal 2008, 
2007 and 2006 amounted to ($1.8) million, ($1.3) million and 
$5.0 million, respectively. The amortization of the unrecognized 
net actuarial loss component of our fiscal 2009 net periodic 
benefit cost for the defined benefit plans and postretirement 
benefit plan is expected to be approximately $0.4 million and 
$0.6 million, respectively.
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NOTE 14 
LEASES 

An analysis of rent expense incurred related to restaurants in 
continuing operations is as follows:

 Fiscal Year

(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

Restaurant minimum rent $ 88.1 $64.3 $59.9
Restaurant percentage rent 7.7 4.6 4.6
Restaurant rent averaging expense 8.6 (2.5) 5.4
Transportation equipment 2.9 2.8 2.3
Office equipment 1.2 1.1 1.1
Office space 6.8 5.3 1.3
Warehouse space 0.4 0.3 0.3

Total rent expense $115.7 $75.9 $74.9

 Rent expense included in discontinued operations was 
$4.5 million, $4.4 million and $9.2 million for fiscal 2008, 2007 
and 2006, respectively. The annual future lease commitments 
under capital lease obligations and noncancelable operating 
leases, including those related to restaurants reported as 
discontinued operations, for each of the five fiscal years 
subsequent to May 25, 2008 and thereafter is as follows:

Fiscal Year  Capital Operating

2009    $   4.9 $115.3
2010    5.0 104.9
2011    5.0 93.1
2012    5.1 79.9
2013    5.3 66.1
Thereafter  89.4 238.5

Total future lease commitments  114.7 $697.8

Less imputed interest (at 6.5%)  (53.9)

Present value of future lease commitments  60.8
Less current maturities  (0.9)

Obligations under capital leases, 
 net of current maturities  $ 59.9

NOTE 15 
INTEREST, NET

The components of interest, net, are as follows:

 Fiscal Year

(in millions)  2008  2007  2006

Interest expense $89.2 $43.6 $48.9
Imputed interest on capital leases 2.6 – –
Capitalized interest (4.9) (2.9) (1.9)
Interest income (1.2) (0.6) (3.1)

Interest, net $85.7 $40.1 $43.9

 Capitalized interest was computed using our average 
borrowing rate. We paid $73.6 million, $35.8 million and 
$40.3 million for interest (net of amounts capitalized) in 
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

NOTE 16 
INCOME TAXES

Total income tax expense for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was 
allocated as follows:

 Fiscal Year

(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

Earnings from continuing 
 operations $145.2 $    153.7 $156.3
Earnings (losses) from 
 discontinued operations 3.0 (112.9) (12.1)

Total consolidated income 
 tax expense $148.2 $     40.8 $144.2

 The components of earnings before income taxes from 
continuing operations and the provision for income taxes 
thereon are as follows: 

 Fiscal Year

(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

Earnings from continuing 
 operations before income taxes:
  U.S. $509.6 $524.9 $500.6
  Canada 5.1 5.9 7.5

Earnings from continuing 
 operations before income taxes $514.7 $530.8 $508.1

Income taxes: 
 Current:
  Federal $ 98.3 $172.9 $158.9
  State and local 21.0 33.2 28.1
  Canada 0.1 0.1 0.1

  Total current $119.4 $206.2 $187.1
 Deferred (principally U.S.) 25.8 (52.5) (30.8)

Total income taxes $145.2 $153.7 $156.3

 During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we paid income taxes of 
$119.7 million, $75.9 million and $126.3 million, respectively. 
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 The following table is a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory 
income tax rate to the effective income tax rate from continuing 
operations included in the accompanying consolidated statements 
of earnings: 

 Fiscal Year

(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

U.S. statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State and local income taxes, 
 net of federal tax benefits 2.7 3.3 3.1
Benefit of federal income tax credits (7.9) (6.1) (5.1)
Other, net (1.6) (3.2) (2.2)

Effective income tax rate 28.2% 29.0% 30.8%

 As of May 25, 2008, we had estimated current federal income 
taxes payable of $2.4 million, which is included in our accompany-
ing consolidated balance sheet as income taxes payable and 
estimated current state income taxes receivable of $4.9 million, 
which is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets 
in our accompanying consolidated balance sheet.
 As of May 28, 2007, upon adoption of FIN 48, we had gross 
unrecognized tax benefits of $64.1 million, which represents 
the aggregate tax effect of the differences between tax return 
positions and benefits recognized in our consolidated financial 
statements. At May 25, 2008, we had $77.5 million of unrecognized 
tax benefits. Of this total, approximately $29.9 million, after 
considering the federal impact on state issues, would favorably 
affect the effective tax rate if resolved in our favor. A reconcilia-
tion of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax 
benefits follows:

(in millions)

Balance upon adoption of FIN 48   $64.1
Additions to tax positions due to acquisition of RARE  23.3
Additions to tax positions recorded during the current year 4.2
Additions to tax positions recorded during prior years  1.4
Reductions to tax positions recorded during prior years  (3.2)
Reductions to tax positions due to settlements with 
 taxing authorities   (4.1)
Reductions to tax positions due to statute expiration  (8.2)

Balance at May 25, 2008   $77.5

 We recognize accrued interest related to unrecognized 
tax benefits in interest expense. Penalties, when incurred, are 
recognized in selling, general and administrative expense. The 
Company accrued approximately $6.0 million for the payment 
of interest as of the date of adoption of FIN 48. During fiscal 
2008, we recognized $2.0 million of interest expense associated 
with unrecognized tax benefits. Additionally, the balance of 
interest accrued increased by approximately $3.0 million due 
to the acquisition of RARE. At May 25, 2008, we had $11.0 million 
accrued for the payment of interest associated with unrecog-
nized tax benefits.

 The major jurisdictions in which the Company files income 
tax returns include the U.S. federal jurisdiction, Canada, and 
most states in the U.S. that have an income tax. With a few 
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, 
state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax 
authorities for years before 2001. 
 Included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at 
May 25, 2008 is $24.5 million related to tax positions for which 
it is reasonably possible that the total amounts could materially 
change during the next twelve months based on the outcome 
of examinations or as a result of the expiration of the statute 
of limitations for specific jurisdictions. Of this amount, 
approximately $19.8 million relates to items temporary in nature 
which will have no impact on our effective income tax rate.
 The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

     May 25, May 27, 
(in millions)  2008 2007

Accrued liabilities  $  59.1 $     18.1
Compensation and employee benefits  141.4 118.6
Deferred rent and interest income  35.6 31.8
Asset disposition  3.5 0.6
Other   7.2 6.1

 Gross deferred tax assets  $ 246.8 $    175.2

Trademarks and other acquisition 
 related intangibles  (182.1) –
Buildings and equipment  (145.1) (99.0)
Prepaid pension costs  (10.3) (4.7)
Prepaid interest  (1.0) (1.1)
Capitalized software and other assets  (11.4) (10.1)
Other   (2.7) (4.4)

 Gross deferred tax liabilities  $(352.6) $(119.3)

 Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets  $(105.8) $  55.9

 A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is provided 
when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of 
the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Realization is 
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income or 
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities during the periods in 
which those temporary differences become deductible. We 
consider the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, 
projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies 
in making this assessment. At May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, 
no valuation allowance has been recognized for deferred 
tax assets because we believe that sufficient projected future 
taxable income will be generated to fully utilize the benefits of 
these deductible amounts.

Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   65Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   65 7/22/08   9:23:37 PM7/22/08   9:23:37 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

66 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 

NOTE 17 
RETIREMENT PLANS

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS AND POSTRETIREMENT 
BENEFIT PLAN
Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate 
in a retirement plan. We sponsor non-contributory defined 
benefit pension plans, that have been frozen, for a group of 
salaried employees in the United States, in which benefits are 
based on various formulas that include years of service and 
compensation factors; and for a group of hourly employees 
in the United States, in which a fixed level of benefits is pro-
vided. Pension plan assets are primarily invested in U.S., inter-
national and private equities, long duration fixed-income 
securities and real assets. Our policy is to fund, at a minimum, 
the amount necessary on an actuarial basis to provide for 
benefits in accordance with the requirements of the Employee 
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. We 
also sponsor a contributory postretirement benefit plan that 
provides health care benefits to our salaried retirees. During 
fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we funded the defined benefit 
pension plans in the amounts of $0.5 million, $0.5 million and 

$0.3 million, respectively. We expect to contribute approximately 
$0.4 million to our defined benefit pension plans during fiscal 
2009. During fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we funded the 
postretirement benefit plan in the amounts of $1.2 million, 
$0.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively. We expect to 
contribute approximately $0.6 million to our postretirement 
benefit plan during fiscal 2009.
 Effective May 27, 2007, we implemented the recognition 
and measurement provisions of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ 
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretire-
ment Plans (an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 
106 and 132R).” The purpose of SFAS No. 158 is to improve 
the overall financial statement presentation of pension and 
other postretirement plans, but SFAS No. 158 does not impact 
the determination of net periodic benefit cost or measurement 
of plan assets or obligations. SFAS No. 158 requires companies 
to recognize the over or under-funded status of the plan as an 
asset or liability as measured by the difference between the fair 
value of the plan assets and the benefit obligation and requires 
any unrecognized prior service costs and actuarial gains and 
losses to be recognized as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss). 

 The following provides a reconciliation of the changes in the plan benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets and the funded 
status of the plans as of February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007 (in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 158, we will be 
required to value our plan assets and funded status as of the end of our fiscal year starting in fiscal 2009 and the adoption of the 
requirement is considered to have minimal impact on our financial condition):

 Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan

(in millions) 2008  2007 2008  2007

Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 177.7 $ 168.3 $ 20.1 $ 17.7
 Service cost  6.1  6.0  0.7  0.7
 Interest cost  9.7  9.0  1.2  1.0
  Plan amendments  0.7  –  –  (0.3)
 Participant contributions  –  –  0.4  0.2
 Benefits paid  (8.6)  (7.2)  (1.4)  (0.8)
 Actuarial (gain) loss   (15.9)   1.6   4.7   1.6

Benefit obligation at end of period $ 169.7 $ 177.7 $ 25.7 $ 20.1

Change in Plan Assets:
Fair value at beginning of period $ 189.7 $ 175.3 $ – $ –
 Actual return on plan assets  10.2  21.2  –  –
 Employer contributions  0.4  0.4  1.0  0.6
 Participant contributions  –  –  0.4  0.2
 Benefits paid   (8.6)   (7.2)   (1.4)   (0.8)

Fair value at end of period $ 191.7 $ 189.7 $ – $ –

Reconciliation of the Plan’s Funded Status:
Funded status at end of period $ 22.0 $ 12.0 $ (25.7) $ (20.1)
Contributions for March to May   0.1   0.1   0.3   0.2

Prepaid (accrued) benefit costs $ 22.1 $ 12.1 $ (25.4) $ (19.9)
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 The following is a detail of the net funded status of each of our plans of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007 and a reconciliation of 
the amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007:

 Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan

(in millions) 2008  2007 2008  2007

Components of the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Non-current assets $ 26.8 $ 17.1 $  – $ –
Current liabilities  (0.4)  –  (0.6)  –
Non-current liabilities  (4.3)  (5.0)  (24.8)  (19.9)

Net amounts recognized $ 22.1 $ 12.1 $ (25.4) $ (19.9)

Amounts Recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax:
Unrecognized prior service cost $ 0.4 $ 0.1 $ (0.2) $ (0.2)
Unrecognized actuarial loss  12.3  21.9  6.3  3.5

Net amounts recognized $ 12.7 $ 22.0 $ 6.1 $ 3.3

 The accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans was $164.7 million and $171.1 million at May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, 
respectively. The accumulated benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for pension plans with accumulated benefit obligations 
in excess of plan assets were $4.9 million and $0.0 million, respectively, at February 29, 2008 and $5.1 million and $0.0 million, 
respectively, at February 28, 2007. The projected benefit obligation for pension plans with projected benefit obligations in excess 
of plan assets approximated their accumulated benefit obligation at February 29, 2008 and February 28, 2007.
 The following table presents the weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations and net expense: 

 Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan

 2008  2007 2008  2007

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit 
 obligations at May 25 and May 27 (1)

  Discount rate  6.50%  5.80%  6.50%  5.80%
  Rate of future compensation increases  3.75%  3.75%   N/A    N/A 

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net expense 
 for fiscal years ended May 25 and May 27 (2)

Discount rate  5.80%  5.75%  5.80%  5.75%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets  9.00%  9.00%   N/A   N/A
Rate of future compensation increases  3.75%  3.75%   N/A   N/A

(1) Determined as of the end of fiscal year.

(2) Determined as of the beginning of fiscal year.
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 We set the discount rate assumption annually for each of the 
plans at their valuation dates to reflect the yield of high-quality 
fixed-income debt instruments, with lives that approximate the 
maturity of the plan benefits. The expected long-term rate of return 
on plan assets and health care cost trend rates are based upon 
several factors, including our historical assumptions compared 
with actual results, an analysis of current market conditions, asset 
fund allocations and the views of leading financial advisers and 
economists. Our target asset fund allocation is 35 percent U.S. 
equities, 30 percent high-quality, long-duration fixed-income 
securities, 15 percent international equities, 10 percent real 
assets and 10 percent private equities. We monitor our actual 
asset fund allocation to ensure that it approximates our target 
allocation and believe that our long-term asset fund allocation 
will continue to approximate our target allocation. The defined 
benefit pension plans have the following asset fund alloca-
tions at their measurement dates of February 29, 2008 and 
February 28, 2007, respectively:
 
Asset Fund Classification  2008 2007

U.S. equities  32% 39%
High-quality, long-duration 
 fixed-income securities  25% 20%
International equities  18% 19%
Real assets  12% 12%
Private equities  13% 10%

Total    100% 100%

 For fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, we have used an expected 
long-term rate of return on plan assets for our defined benefit 
plan of 9.0 percent. Our historical ten-year rate of return on 
plan assets, calculated using the geometric method average of 
returns, is approximately 9.4 percent as of May 25, 2008.
 The discount rate and expected return on plan assets 
assumptions have a significant effect on amounts reported for 
defined benefit pension plans. A quarter percentage point 
change in the defined benefit plans’ discount rate and the 
expected long-term rate of return on plan assets would increase 
or decrease earnings before income taxes by $0.9 million and 
$0.4 million, respectively. 
 The assumed health care cost trend rate increase in the 
per-capita charges for benefits ranged from 8 percent to 9 
percent for fiscal 2009, depending on the medical service 
category. The rates gradually decrease to 5 percent through 
fiscal 2013 and remain at that level thereafter.
 The assumed health care cost trend rate has a significant 
effect on amounts reported for retiree health care plans. 
A one percentage point variance in the assumed health 
care cost trend rate would increase or decrease the total of 
the service and interest cost components of net periodic 
postretirement benefit cost by $0.5 million and $0.3 million, 
respectively, and would increase or decrease the accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation by $4.4 million and 
$3.9 million, respectively.

 Components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows:

 Defined Benefit Plans Postretirement Benefit Plan

(in millions) 2008  2007 2006 2008  2007 2006

Service cost  $  6.1  $  6.0  $  5.2 $  0.7 $  0.7 $  0.7
Interest cost   9.7   9.0   8.1   1.2   1.0   0.9
Expected return on plan assets   (14.8)   (13.7)   (13.2)   –   –   –
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost   0.1   0.1   0.1  (0.1)   –   –
Recognized net actuarial loss   4.3   5.4   5.3   0.3   0.2   0.2

Net periodic benefit cost   $  5.4  $  6.8  $  5.5 $  2.1 $  1.9 $  1.8

 The amortization of the net actuarial loss component of our fiscal 2009 net periodic benefit cost for the defined benefit plans 
and postretirement benefit plan is expected to be approximately $0.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively.
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 The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

    Defined  Postretirement
(in millions) Benefit Plans  Benefit Plan

2009    $ 8.8 $0.6
2010    9.4 0.7
2011    9.7 0.8
2012    10.2 0.9
2013    10.7 1.0
2014-2018  63.2  6.6

POSTEMPLOYMENT SEVERANCE PLAN
We accrue for postemployment severance costs in accordance 
with SFAS No. 112, “Employers’ Accounting for Postemploy-
ment Benefits – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 
43,” and use guidance found in SFAS No. 106, “Employers’ 
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions,” 
to measure the cost recognized in our consolidated financial 
statements. As a result, we use the provisions of SFAS No. 158 to 
recognize actuarial gains and losses related to our postemploy-
ment severance accrual as a component of accumulated other 
comprehensive income (loss). As of May 25, 2008 and May 27, 
2007, $5.4 million and $7.0 million, respectively, of unrecognized 
actuarial losses related to our postemployment severance plan 
were included in accumulated other comprehensive income 
(loss) on a net of tax basis.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
We have a defined contribution plan covering most employees 
age 21 and older. We match contributions for participants with 
at least one year of service up to six percent of compensation, 
based on our performance. The match ranges from a minimum 
of $0.25 to $1.20 for each dollar contributed by the participant. 
The plan had net assets of $469.0 million at May 25, 2008 and 
$618.8 million at May 27, 2007. Expense recognized in fiscal 
2008, 2007 and, 2006 was $1.3 million, $0.8 million and 
$1.4 million, respectively. Employees classified as “highly 
compensated” under the Internal Revenue Code are not 
eligible to participate in this plan. Instead, highly compensated 
employees are eligible to participate in a separate non-qualified 
deferred compensation plan. This plan allows eligible employees 
to defer the payment of all or part of their annual part of their 
annual salary and bonus and provides for awards that approximate 
the matching contributions and other amounts that participants 
would have received had they been eligible to participate in our 
defined contribution and defined benefit plans. Amounts payable 
to highly compensated employees under the non-qualified 
deferred compensation plan totaled $143.8 million and 
$146.9 million at May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, respectively. 
These amounts are included in other current liabilities.

 The defined contribution plan includes an Employee 
Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP). This ESOP originally borrowed 
$50.0 million from third parties, with guarantees by us, and 
borrowed $25.0 million from us at a variable interest rate. 
The $50.0 million third party loan was refinanced in 1997 
by a commercial bank’s loan to us and a corresponding loan 
from us to the ESOP. Compensation expense is recognized 
as contributions are accrued. In addition to matching plan 
participant contributions, our contributions to the plan are 
also made to pay certain employee incentive bonuses. Fluctua-
tions in our stock price impact the amount of expense to be 
recognized. Contributions to the plan, plus the dividends 
accumulated on allocated and unallocated shares held by the 
ESOP, are used to pay principal, interest and expenses of the 
plan. As loan payments are made, common stock is allocated 
to ESOP participants. In fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006, the ESOP 
incurred interest expense of $0.9 million, $1.2 million and 
$1.1 million, respectively, and used dividends received of 
$4.4 million, $3.6 million and $3.0 million, respectively, and 
contributions received from us of $0.0 million, $0.7 million 
and $1.7 million, respectively, to pay principal and interest on 
our debt.
 ESOP shares are included in average common shares 
outstanding for purposes of calculating net earnings per share. 
At May 25, 2008, the ESOP’s debt to us had a balance of 
$15.5 million with a variable rate of interest of 2.864 percent 
and is due to be repaid no later than December 2014. The 
number of our common shares held in the ESOP at May 25, 
2008 approximated 6.8 million shares, representing 3.9 million 
allocated shares and 2.9 million suspense shares.
 At the end of fiscal 2005, the ESOP borrowed $1.6 million 
from us at a variable interest rate and acquired an additional 
0.05 million shares of our common stock, which were held in 
suspense within the ESOP at May 29, 2005. The loan, which 
had a variable interest rate of 2.864 percent at May 25, 2008, 
is due to be repaid no later than December 2018. The shares 
acquired under this loan are accounted for in accordance with 
Statement of Position (SOP) 93-6, “Employers Accounting for 
Employee Stock Ownership Plans.” Fluctuations in our stock 
price are recognized as adjustments to common stock and 
surplus when the shares are committed to be released. These 
ESOP shares are not considered outstanding until they are 
committed to be released and, therefore, have been excluded 
for purposes of calculating basic and diluted net earnings per 
share at May 25, 2008. The fair value of these shares at May 25, 
2008 was $1.5 million.
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 As part of the RARE acquisition, we assumed RARE’s 
employee benefit plans. We intend to merge these plans 
into our existing employee benefit plans during fiscal 2009. 
However, from the date of acquisition, through May, 25, 2008, 
we maintained RARE’s benefit plans as they had operated prior 
to the acquisition. As of the date of acquisition, RARE provided 
its employees who met minimum service requirements with 
retirement benefits under a 401(k) plan (RARE Plan). Under 
the RARE Plan, eligible employees may make contributions of 
between 1 percent and 20 percent of their annual compensation 
to one or more investment funds. Officers and highly compen-
sated employees did not participate in the RARE Plan. Quarterly 
matching contributions were made in an amount equal to 
50 percent of the first 5 percent of employee compensation 
contributed, resulting in a maximum annual company contribu-
tion of 2.5 percent of employee compensation. For the period 
from the date of acquisition through the end of fiscal 2008, we 
incurred expense under the RARE Plan of $0.6 million.
 Effective January 1, 2000, RARE implemented the 
Supplemental Deferred Compensation Plan (Supplemental 
Plan), a nonqualified plan which allowed officers and highly 
compensated employees to defer receipt of a portion of their 
compensation and contribute such amounts to one or more 
investment funds. The maximum aggregate amount deferred 
under the Supplemental Plan and the RARE Plan could not 
exceed the lesser of 20 percent of annual compensation or 
$50,000. Quarterly matching contributions were made in an 
amount equal to 50 percent of the first 5 percent of employee 
compensation contributed, with a maximum annual company 
contribution of the lesser of 2.5 percent of employee compensa-
tion or $5,750. For the period from the date of acquisition 
through the end of fiscal 2008, we incurred expense under the 
Supplemental Plan of $0.4 million. Upon the acquisition of 
RARE, all unvested company contributions to both the RARE 
Plan and the Supplemental Plan were immediately vested, 
however, contributions subsequent to the date of acquisition 
vest according to the plans’ provisions. Company contribu-
tions vest at a rate of 20 percent each year beginning after 
the employee’s first year of service and are made in the form 
of cash. The Company entered into a rabbi trust agreement 
to protect the assets of the Supplemental Plan. Participants’ 
accounts are comprised of their contribution; the company’s 
matching contribution and each participant’s share of earnings 
or losses in the Supplemental Plan. In accordance with EITF No. 
97-14, “Accounting for Deferred Compensation Arrangements 
Where Amounts Are Held in a Rabbi Trust and Invested,” the 
accounts of the rabbi trust are reported in our consolidated 
financial statements. Our consolidated balance sheet includes 
the investments in other assets and the offsetting obligation 
is included in other liabilities. As of May 25, 2008, the balance 
of the Supplemental Plan was $13.2 million. The Supplemental 

Plan investments are considered trading securities and are 
reported at fair value with the realized and unrealized holding 
gains and losses related to these investments, as well as the 
offsetting compensation expense, recorded in selling, general 
and administrative expenses.

NOTE 18 
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

We maintain two active stock option and stock grant plans under 
which new awards may still be issued, known as the Darden 
Restaurants, Inc. 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (2002 Plan) and the 
RARE Hospitality International, Inc. Amended and Restated 2002 
Long-Term Incentive Plan (RARE Plan). We also have three other 
stock option and stock grant plans under which we no longer 
can grant new awards, although awards outstanding under 
the plans may still vest and be exercised in accordance with 
their terms: the Stock Plan for Directors (Director Stock 
Plan), the Stock Option and Long-Term Incentive Plan of 
1995 (1995 Plan) and the Restaurant Management and 
Employee Stock Plan of 2000 (2000 Plan). All of the plans are 
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board 
of Directors. The 2002 Plan provides for the issuance of up to 
9.55 million common shares in connection with the granting 
of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock 
appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units (RSUs), 
stock awards and other stock-based awards to key employees 
and non-employee directors. The RARE Plan provides for the 
issuance of up to 3.9 million common shares in connection with 
the granting of non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options 
and restricted stock to employees. Awards under the RARE Plan 
are only permitted to be granted to employees who were 
employed by RARE as of the date of acquisition and continued 
their employment with the Company. The Director Stock Plan 
provided for the issuance of up to 0.375 million common 
shares out of our treasury in connection with the granting of 
non-qualified stock options, restricted stock and RSUs to non-
employee directors. No new awards could be granted under 
the Director Stock Plan after September 30, 2000. The Director 
Compensation Plan provided for the issuance of 0.1 million 
shares common shares out of our treasury to non-employee 
directors of the Board. No new awards may be granted under the 
Director Compensation Plan after September 30, 2005. The 1995 
Plan provided for the issuance of up to 33.3 million common 
shares in connection with the granting of non-qualified stock 
options, restricted stock or RSUs to key employees. The 2000 
Plan provided for the issuance of up to 5.4 million shares of 
common stock out of our treasury as non-qualified stock options, 
restricted stock or RSUs. Under all of these plans, stock options 
are granted at a price equal to the fair value of the shares at 
the date of grant for terms not exceeding ten years and have 
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various vesting periods at the discretion of the Compensation 
Committee. Outstanding options generally vest over one to four 
years. Restricted stock and RSUs granted under the 1995 Plan, 
the 2000 Plan and the 2002 Plan generally vest over periods 
ranging from three to five years and no sooner than one year 
from the date of grant. The restricted period for certain grants 
may be accelerated based on performance goals established by 
the Compensation Committee.
 On June 20, 2008, the Board of Directors adopted amendments 
to the 2002 Plan subject to approval by our shareholders at the 
September 2008 annual meeting of shareholders. If approved by 
the shareholders, the amendments, among other things, would 
increase the maximum number of shares authorized for issuance 
under the 2002 Plan from 9.55 million to 12.70 million. On 
June 19, 2008, the Compensation Committee of the Board of 
Directors approved amendments to the RARE Plan, to provide 
a “fungible share pool” approach to manage authorized shares 
under the RARE Plan. On June 16, 2006, the Board of Directors 
adopted amendments to the 2002 Plan, which were approved 
by our shareholders at the September 2006 annual meeting of 
shareholders. The amendments, among other things, implemented 
a “fungible share pool” approach to manage authorized shares 
in order to improve the flexibility of awards going forward, and 
eliminated the limits on the number of restricted stock and RSU 
awards and the number of awards to non-employee directors, 
and provided that, in determining the number of shares 
available for grant, a formula will be applied such that all future 
awards other than stock options and stock appreciation rights 
will be counted as double the number of shares covered by 
such award.
 On December 15, 2005, the Board of Directors approved 
the Director Compensation Program, effective as of October 1, 
2005, for Non-Employee Directors. The Director Compensation 
Program provides for payments to non-employee directors of: 
(a) an annual retainer and meeting fees for regular or special 
Board meetings and committee meetings; (b) an initial award of 
non-qualified stock options to purchase 12.5 thousand shares of 
common stock upon becoming a director of the Company for 
the first time; (c) an additional award of non-qualified stock 

options to purchase 3.0 thousand shares of common stock 
annually upon election or re-election to the Board; and (d) an 
annual award of common stock with a fair market value of 
$0.1 million on the date of grant. Directors may elect to have 
their cash compensation paid in any combination of current 
or deferred cash, common stock or salary replacement options. 
Deferred cash compensation may be invested on a tax-deferred 
basis in the same manner as deferrals under our non-qualified 
deferred compensation plan. Prior to the date of grant, directors 
may elect to have their annual stock award paid in the form of 
common stock or cash, or a combination thereof, or deferred. 
To the extent directors elect to receive cash or cash settled 
awards, the value of the awards are carried as a liability on our 
consolidated balance sheet at fair value until such time as it is 
settled. All stock options and other stock or stock-based awards 
that are part of the compensation paid or deferred pursuant 
to the Director Compensation Program are awarded under 
the 2002 Plan.
 The Director Compensation Program was amended, effective 
September 1, 2008, to eliminate payment of meeting fees for 
regular Board meetings, as well as the initial and annual grant of 
stock options. As of September 1, 2008, our Director Compensa-
tion Program provides for payments to non-employee directors 
of: (a) an annual retainer and meeting fees for special Board 
meetings and committee meetings; (b) an additional annual 
retainer for committee chairs; and (c) an annual award of common 
stock with a fair market value of $0.1 million on the date of grant.
 Stock-based compensation expense included in continuing 
operations for fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was as follows:

 Fiscal Year

(in millions) 2008 2007 2006

Stock options $25.2 $15.8 $    –
Restricted stock/restricted stock units 12.9 5.2 7.0
Darden stock units 4.2 5.6 4.2
Performance stock units 4.1 2.6 –
Employee stock purchase plan 1.6 1.3 –
Director compensation program/other 0.9 1.1 1.3

     $48.9 $31.6 $12.5

 The following table presents a summary of our stock option activity as of and for the year ended May 25, 2008:

  Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Aggregate
 Options Exercise Price Remaining Intrinsic Value
  (in millions) Per Share Contractual Life (Yrs) (in millions)

Outstanding beginning of period 16.1 $21.93

Options granted 2.0  40.36
RARE options converted 2.4 29.38
Options exercised (3.3)  21.04
Options cancelled (0.5)  21.87

Outstanding end of period 16.7 $25.38 5.38 $424.3

Exercisable  11.4 $20.75 4.17  $237.5
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 The weighted-average fair value of non-qualified stock 
options granted during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 used in 
computing compensation expense in fiscal 2008 and fiscal 
2007 and pro-forma compensation expense in fiscal 2006 was 
$14.05, $13.87 and $10.68, respectively. The total intrinsic 
value of options exercised during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 
was $57.9 million, $97.8 million and $86.6 million, respectively. 
Cash received from option exercises during fiscal 2008 and 
fiscal 2007 was $61.5 million and $50.9 million, respectively. 
Stock options have a maximum contractual period of ten years 
from the date of grant. We settle employee stock option exercises 
with authorized but unissued shares of Darden common stock 
or treasury shares we have acquired through our ongoing share 
repurchase program.
 Pursuant to the acquisition of RARE, we converted employee 
stock options to purchase 2.7 million outstanding shares of 
RARE common stock to options to purchase 2.4 million shares 
of Darden common stock. RARE options converted at approxi-
mately an 89 percent ratio based on a formula set forth in the 
merger agreement governing this acquisition. The conversion 
of these options and the related fiscal 2008 activity is included 
in the rollforward above. As of May 25, 2008, 1.3 million of these 
options remained outstanding. The total value of the options 
was $42.9 million, $31.9 million of which was included in the 
cost of the acquisition, as this value related to vested awards as 
of the acquisition date. The remaining $11.0 million relates 
to the value of the unvested awards that is being charged as 
an expense subsequent to the acquisition. From the date of 
acquisition through May 25, 2008, included in total stock option 
expense, we recognized $9.3 million ($5.7 million net of tax) 
of stock-based compensation expense as a result of the incre-
mental value associated with the vested awards, incremental 
vesting of the awards and accelerated vesting of certain awards 
granted in the merger agreement. The remaining $1.7 million 
will be recognized as compensation expense over the remaining 
service period of the related awards.
 As of May 25, 2008, there was $34.2 million of unrecognized 
compensation cost related to unvested stock options granted 
under our stock plans. This cost is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted-average period of 1.5 years. The total fair value 
of stock options that vested during fiscal 2008 was $20.8 million.
 Restricted stock and RSUs are granted at a value equal to 
the market price of our common stock on the date of grant. 
Restrictions lapse with regard to restricted stock, and RSUs are 
settled in shares, at the end of their vesting periods, which is 
generally four years. 

 The following table presents a summary of our restricted stock 
and RSU activity as of and for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008:

       Weighted-Average
     Shares  Grant Date Fair
     (in millions)  Value Per Share

Outstanding beginning of period 1.2 $25.98

Shares granted 0.3  39.55
RARE shares converted 0.4 43.00
Shares vested (0.4)  32.96
Shares cancelled (0.1)  28.97

Outstanding end of period 1.4 $31.40

 As of May 25, 2008, there was $20.6 million of unrecognized 
compensation cost related to unvested restricted stock and 
RSUs granted under our stock plans. This cost is expected to 
be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.1 years. The 
total fair value of restricted stock and RSUs that vested during 
fiscal 2008, 2007 and, 2006 was $13.1 million, $5.4 million and 
$5.2 million, respectively.
 Pursuant to the acquisition of RARE, we converted 0.5 million 
outstanding shares of RARE employee restricted stock and per-
formance-based restricted stock units to 0.4 million shares of 
Darden restricted stock. The RARE restricted shares converted 
at approximately an 89 percent ratio based on a formula set 
forth in the merger agreement. The conversion of these shares 
and the related fiscal 2008 activity is included in the rollforward 
above. As of May 25, 2008, 0.2 million of these shares remained 
outstanding. The total value of the restricted shares was 
$16.8 million, $8.6 million of which was included in the cost 
of the acquisition as this value related to vested awards as of 
the acquisition date. The remaining $8.2 million relates to the 
value of the unvested awards and will be charged to expense 
subsequent to the acquisition. From the date of acquisition 
through May 25, 2008, included in the total restricted stock 
and RSU expense, we recognized $3.7 million ($2.3 million 
net of tax) of stock-based compensation expense as a result of 
incremental vesting of the awards and accelerated vesting of 
certain awards granted in the merger agreement. The remain-
ing $4.5 million will be recognized as compensation expense 
over the remaining service period of the related awards.
 Darden stock units are granted at a value equal to the 
market price of our common stock on the date of grant and 
will be settled in cash at the end of their vesting periods, which 
range between four and five years, at the then market price 
of our common stock. Compensation expense is measured 
based on the market price of our common stock each period, 
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is amortized over the vesting period and the vested portion is 
carried as a liability in our accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets. We also entered into equity forward contracts to hedge 
the risk of changes in future cash flows associated with the 
unvested, unrecognized Darden stock units granted during fis-
cal 2008, 2007 and 2006 (see Note 11 – Derivative Instruments 
and Hedging Activities for additional information).
 The following table presents a summary of our Darden stock 
unit activity as of and for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008: 

       Weighted-Average
     Units  Fair Value
     (in millions)  Per Unit

Outstanding beginning of period 1.0 $45.32

Units granted 0.2  42.46
Units vested –  –
Units cancelled (0.1) 39.31

Outstanding end of period 1.1 $31.74

 As of May 25, 2008, there was $14.7 million of unrecognized 
compensation cost related to Darden stock units granted under 
our incentive plans. This cost is expected to be recognized 
over a weighted-average period of 3.0 years. Darden stock 
units with a fair value of $0.1 million vested during fiscal 2008.
 The following table presents a summary of our performance 
stock unit activity as of and for the fiscal year ended May 25, 2008:

       Weighted-Average
     Units  Fair Value
     (in millions)  Per Unit

Outstanding beginning of period 0.3 $36.13

Units granted 0.3  42.20
Units vested (0.1)  35.98
Units cancelled – –

Outstanding end of period 0.5 $39.43

 The performance stock units vest over a period of five years 
following the date of grant, and the annual vesting target for 
each fiscal year is 20.0 percent of the total number of units 
covered by the award. The number of units that actually vests 
each year will be determined based on the achievement of 
Company performance criteria set forth in the award agreement 
and may range from zero to 150.0 percent of the annual target. 
These awards may be settled in cash or shares of common stock, 
at the election of the Company on the date of grant. The Company 
has elected to settle all performance stock units granted through 
May 25, 2008 in shares of common stock. Holders will receive 
one share of common stock for each performance stock unit 
that vests. Compensation expense is measured based on grant 
date fair value. As of May 25, 2008, there was $12.7 million of 
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested perfor-
mance stock units granted under our stock plans. This cost is 
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 

4.3 years. The total fair value of performance stock units that 
vested in fiscal 2008 was  $1.1 million.
 We maintain an Employee Stock Purchase Plan to provide 
eligible employees who have completed one year of service 
(excluding senior officers subject to Section 16(b) of the Secu-
rities Exchange Act of 1934, and certain other employees who 
are employed less than full time or own five percent or more 
of our capital stock or that of any subsidiary) an opportunity 
to invest up to $5.0 thousand per calendar quarter to purchase 
shares of our common stock, subject to certain limitations. 
Under the plan, up to an aggregate of 3.6 million shares are 
available for purchase by employees at a purchase price that 
is 85.0 percent of the fair market value of our common stock 
on either the first or last trading day of each calendar quarter, 
whichever is lower. Cash received from employees pursuant 
to the plan during fiscal 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $6.6 million, 
$5.8 million and $6.2 million, respectively.

NOTE 19 
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As collateral for performance on contracts and as credit 
guarantees to banks and insurers, we were contingently liable 
for guarantees of subsidiary obligations under standby letters of 
credit. At May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, we had $64.4 million 
and $75.0 million, respectively, of standby letters of credit related 
to workers’ compensation and general liabilities accrued in our 
consolidated financial statements. At May 25, 2008 and May 27, 
2007, we had $10.0 million and $10.4 million, respectively, of 
standby letters of credit related to contractual operating lease 
obligations and other payments. All standby letters of credit are 
renewable annually. 
 At May 25, 2008 and May 27, 2007, we had $5.8 million and 
$0.9 million, respectively, of guarantees associated with leased 
properties that have been assigned to third parties. These 
amounts represent the maximum potential amount of future 
payments under the guarantees. The fair value of these potential 
payments discounted at our pre-tax cost of capital at May 25, 2008 
and May 27, 2007, amounted to $4.2 million and $0.7 million, 
respectively. We did not accrue for the guarantees, as the 
likelihood of the third parties defaulting on the assignment 
agreements was deemed to be less than probable. In the event 
of default by a third party, the indemnity and default clauses in 
our assignment agreements govern our ability to recover from 
and pursue the third party for damages incurred as a result of 
its default. We do not hold any third-party assets as collateral 
related to these assignment agreements, except to the extent 
that the assignment allows us to repossess the building and per-
sonal property. These guarantees expire over their respective 
lease terms, which range from fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2017.

Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   73Darden_FINCIAL.cglaindd   73 7/22/08   9:23:38 PM7/22/08   9:23:38 PM



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

74 DARDEN RESTAURANTS, INC. 

 We are subject to private lawsuits, administrative 
proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of 
our business. A number of these lawsuits, proceedings and 
claims may exist at any given time. These matters typically 
involve claims from guests, employees and others related to 
operational issues common to the restaurant industry, and 
can also involve infringement of, or challenges to, our trade-
marks. While the resolution of a lawsuit, proceeding or claim 
may have an impact on our financial results for the period 
in which it is resolved, we believe that the final disposition 
of the lawsuits, proceedings and claims in which we are cur-
rently involved, either individually or in the aggregate, will 
not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, 
results of operations or liquidity. The following is a brief 
description of the more significant of these matters. In view 
of the inherent uncertainties of litigation, the outcome of 
any unresolved matter described below cannot be predicted 
at this time, nor can the amount of any potential loss be 
reasonably estimated. 
 Like other restaurant companies and retail employers, in 
a few states we have been faced with allegations of purported 
class-wide wage and hour violations. In January 2004, a for-
mer food server filed a purported class action in California 
state court alleging that Red Lobster’s “server banking” poli-
cies and practices (under which servers settle guest checks 
directly with customers throughout their shifts, and turn in 
collected monies at the shift’s end) improperly required her 
and other food servers and bartenders to make up cash short-
ages and walkouts in violation of California law. The case was 
ordered to arbitration. As a procedural matter, the arbitrator 
ruled that class-wide arbitration is permissible under our dis-
pute resolution program. In January 2007, plaintiffs’ counsel 
filed in California state court a second purported class action 
lawsuit on behalf of servers and bartenders alleging that 
Olive Garden’s server banking policy and its alleged failure to 
pay split shift premiums violated California law. Although we 
believed that our policies and practices were lawful and that 
we had strong defenses to both cases, following mediation 
with the plaintiffs, we reached a tentative resolution of the 
matters during the third quarter of fiscal 2008. As a result, we 
accrued approximately $4.0 million in legal settlement costs 
during the nine months ended February 24, 2008, which we 
expect to be paid in fiscal 2009. No additional reserves have 
been taken in connection with this settlement. 

 In August 2007, an action was filed in California state court 
by a former Olive Garden server alleging that Olive Garden’s 
scheduling practices resulted in failure to properly pay reporting 
time (minimum shift) pay as well as to pay minimum wage, to 
provide itemized wage statements, and to timely pay employees 
upon the termination of their employment. The complaint sought 
to have the suit certified as a class action. Although we believed 
that our policies and practices were lawful and we had strong 
defenses, following mediation with the plaintiffs during the 
fourth quarter of fiscal 2008, we reached a preliminary settle-
ment of this matter under which we would pay $0.7 million. 
We expect to pay the settlement amount during fiscal 2009 at 
the completion of the settlement process. 
 On March 13, 2008, a purported class action complaint 
alleging violation of the federal securities laws was filed by an 
institutional shareholder against Darden and certain of our 
current officers, one of whom is also a director, in the United 
States District Court for the Middle District of Florida. The 
complaint was filed on behalf of all purchasers of Darden’s 
common stock between June 19, 2007 and December 18, 2007 
(the “Class”). The complaint alleges that during that period, 
the defendants issued false and misleading statements in press 
releases and public filings that misrepresented and failed 
to disclose certain information, and that as a result, had no 
reasonable basis for statements about Darden’s prospects and 
guidance for fiscal 2008. The complaint alleges claims under 
Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 and Rule 10b-5 thereunder. The plaintiff seeks to recover 
unspecified damages on behalf of the Class. We intend to 
vigorously defend our position in this action.
 By letter dated May 9, 2008, a putative shareholder 
demanded that our Board of Directors take action to remedy 
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty to the Corporation by 
certain officers and directors. The letter contains similar 
allegations to those in the purported class action described 
above regarding the alleged issuance of false and misleading 
statements and omissions regarding the Corporation’s finan-
cial results and sales growth. The board has formed a special 
litigation committee to evaluate the claims in the letter. 
 

NOTE 20
SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On June 20, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a cash 
dividend of twenty cents per share to be paid August 1, 2008 
to all shareholders of record as of the close of business on 
July 10, 2008.
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NOTE 21 
QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes unaudited quarterly data for fiscal 2008 and fiscal 2007:

 Fiscal 2008 – Quarters Ended 

(in millions) Aug. 26 Nov. 25  Feb. 24 May 25  Total

Sales    $1,467.5  $1,522.0 $1,811.4 $1,825.5 $6,626.5
Earnings before income taxes 151.9 59.2 156.9 146.6 514.7 
Earnings from continuing operations 106.6 44.1 115.6 103.3 369.5
Losses from discontinued operations, net of tax  (0.7)  (0.6)  10.4  (1.5) 7.7
Net earnings 105.9 43.5 126.0 101.8 377.2

Basic net earnings per share: 
 Earnings from continuing operations 0.76 0.31 0.82 0.74 2.63
 (Losses) earnings from discontinued operations  (0.01)  0.00  0.08  (0.01)  0.06
 Net earnings 0.75 0.31 0.90 0.73 2.69

Diluted net earnings per share: 
 Earnings from continuing operations 0.73 0.30 0.80 0.72 2.55
 (Losses) earnings from discontinued operations  (0.01)  0.00  0.08  (0.01)  0.05
 Net earnings 0.72 0.30 0.88 0.71 2.60

Dividends paid per share  0.18 0.18  0.18 0.18 0.72
Stock price:
 High   47.08 44.78 40.45 37.45 47.08
 Low  38.93 38.93 20.99 28.20 20.99

 Fiscal 2007 – Quarters Ended 

(in millions) Aug. 27 Nov. 26  Feb. 25 May 27(1)  Total

Sales    $1,359.6 $1,298.1 $1,449.5 $1,459.8 $5,567.1
Earnings before income taxes 139.4 96.6  157.4  137.3 530.8 
Earnings from continuing operations  93.3 67.6 117.7 98.5  377.1
Losses from discontinued operations, net of tax  (4.8)  (5.9)  (11.3)  (153.6) (175.7)
Net earnings (loss) 88.5 61.7  106.4  (55.1) 201.4

Basic net earnings per share: 
 Earnings from continuing operations  0.64 0.46 0.82  0.70 2.63
 Losses from discontinued operations  (0.03)  (0.04)  (0.08)  (1.09) (1.23)
 Net earnings (loss)  0.61 0.42 0.74  (0.39) 1.40

Diluted net earnings per share: 
 Earnings from continuing operations   0.62 0.45 0.79 0.67 2.53
 Losses from discontinued operations  (0.03)  (0.04)  (0.07)  (1.05) (1.18)
 Net earnings (loss)  0.59 0.41 0.72  (0.38) 1.35

Dividends paid per share – 0.23  – 0.23 0.46
Stock price:
 High   39.40 44.19 42.71 45.88 45.88
 Low  33.29 35.24 38.32 39.08 33.29

(1)  During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007, we closed 54 Smokey Bones, two Rocky River Grillhouse and nine Bahama Breeze restaurants resulting in impairment costs and 
closure costs of in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2007 of $229.5 million and $16.4 million, respectively. The amounts are included in losses from discontinued operations, 
net of tax, in the table above.
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 Fiscal Year Ended

    May 25,  May 27, May 28, May 29, May 30,
(In millions, except per share data) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004(2)

Operating Results (1)

Sales    $ 6,626.5  $ 5,567.1  $ 5,353.6  $ 4,977.6  $ 4,794.7
Costs and expenses:
 Cost of sales:
 Food and beverage  1,996.2   1,616.1   1,570.0   1,490.3   1,456.9
 Restaurant labor  2,124.7   1,808.2   1,722.1   1,594.2   1,528.6
 Restaurant expenses   1,017.8   834.5   806.4   742.8   728.4
Total cost of sales, excluding restaurant depreciation and amortization(3) $ 5,138.7  $ 4,258.8 $ 4,098.5 $ 3,827.3 $ 3,713.9
Selling, general and administrative  641.7   537.0   506.1   469.3   480.3(4)

Depreciation and amortization  245.7   200.4   197.0   194.7   196.9
Interest, net  85.7   40.1   43.9   44.7   44.9
Total costs and expenses  $ 6,111.8  $ 5,036.3  $ 4,845.5  $ 4,536.0  $ 4,436.0 
Earnings before income taxes   514.7   530.8   508.1   441.6   358.7 
Income taxes   (145.2)   (153.7)   (156.3)   (141.7)  (116.2) 
Earnings from continuing operations $ 369.5  $ 377.1  $ 351.8  $ 299.9  $ 242.5 
Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations, net of 
 tax benefit of $(3.0), $112.9, $12.1, $8.3 and $10.6  7.7  (175.7)  (13.6)  (9.3)  (15.3)
Net earnings   $ 377.2  $ 201.4  $ 338.2  $ 290.6  $ 227.2 
Basic net earnings per share: 
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35 $ 1.91 $ 1.48 
 Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations $ 0.06 $ (1.23) $ (0.09) $ (0.06) $ (0.09)
 Net Earnings $ 2.69 $ 1.40 $ 2.26 $ 1.85 $ 1.39 
Diluted net earnings per share:
 Earnings from continuing operations $ 2.55 $ 2.53 $ 2.24 $ 1.84 $ 1.43 
 Earnings (losses) from discontinued operations $ 0.05 $ (1.18) $ (0.08) $ (0.06) $ (0.09)
 Net Earnings $ 2.60  $ 1.35  $ 2.16 $ 1.78 $ 1.34 
Average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic     140.4  143.4  149.7  156.7  163.5
Diluted    145.1  148.8  156.9  163.4  169.7

Financial Position
Total assets $ 4,730.6  $ 2,880.8  $ 3,010.2  $2,937.8  $2,780.3 
Land, buildings and equipment, net  3,066.0   2,184.4   2,446.0   2,351.5   2,250.6 
Working capital (deficit)  (668.3)  (529.0)  (648.5)  (637.3)  (337.2)
Long-term debt, less current portion  1,634.3   491.6   494.7   350.3   653.3 
Stockholders’ equity  1,409.1   1,094.5   1,229.8   1,273.0   1,175.3 
Stockholders’ equity per outstanding share  10.03  7.74  8.37  8.25  7.42

Other Statistics
Cash flows from operations (1) $ 766.8  $ 569.8  $ 699.1  $ 550.0  $ 492.0 
Capital expenditures (1) (5)  1,627.3   345.2   273.5   210.4   269.3 
Dividends paid  100.9   65.7   59.2   12.5   13.0 
Dividends paid per share  0.72  0.46  0.40  0.08  0.08
Advertising expense (1)  257.8   230.0   223.0   206.5   208.8 
Stock price:
 High    47.08  45.88  42.75  33.11  25.60
 Low    20.99  33.29  28.80  19.30  17.80
 Close  $ 31.74  $ 45.32  $ 36.51  $ 32.80  $ 22.50 

Number of employees  178,200  156,500  157,300  150,100  141,300
Number of restaurants  1,702  1,397  1,427  1,381  1,325

(1)   Consistent with our consolidated financial statements, information has been presented on a continuing operations basis.  Accordingly, the activities related to Smokey Bones, Rocky River Grillhouse 
and the nine Bahama Breeze restaurants closed in fiscal 2007 have been excluded.

(2)   Fiscal year 2004 consisted of 53 weeks while all other fiscal years presented on this summary consisted of 52 weeks.

(3)   Excludes restaurant depreciation and amortization of $230.0, $186.4, $181.1, $180.2 and $182.6, respectively.

(4)   Asset impairment charges of $28.1 are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.  These charges relate primarily to 10 Bahama Breeze restaurants that were impaired during 
fiscal 2004.

(5)    Fiscal 2008 includes net cash used in the acquisition of RARE Hospitality International, Inc. of $1.20 billion in addition to $429.2 million of capital expenditures related principally to building 
new restaurants and replacing old restaurants and equipment.

Five-Year Financial Summary
Financial Review 2008
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Shareholder Information

COMPANY ADDRESS
Darden Restaurants, Inc.
5900 Lake Ellenor Drive
Orlando, FL 32809
(407) 245-4000

MAILING ADDRESS
Darden Restaurants, Inc. 
P.O. Box 593330
Orlando, FL 32859-3330

WEBSITE ADDRESSES
www.darden.com
www.redlobster.com
www.olivegarden.com
www.longhornsteakhouse.com
www.thecapitalgrille.com
www.bahamabreeze.com
www.seasons52.com

TRANSFER AGENT, REGISTRAR AND 
DIVIDEND PAYMENTS
Wells Fargo Shareowner Services
161 N. Concord Exchange
South St. Paul, MN 55075-1139
Phone: (877) 602-7596 or (651) 450-4064
www.wellsfargo.com/com/shareowner_services
Address correspondence as appropriate to the 
attention of:
 Address Changes
 Stock Transfers
 Shareholder Services

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED 
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
KPMG LLP
111 North Orange Avenue
Suite 1600
Orlando, FL 32801
Phone: (407) 423-3426

FORM 10-K REPORT
Shareholders may request a free copy of our Form 10-K, 
including schedules but excluding exhibits, by writing to:
Investor Relations, Darden Restaurants, Inc. 
P.O. Box 593330, Orlando, FL 32859-3330

SHAREHOLDER REPORTS/INVESTOR INQUIRIES
Shareholders seeking information about Darden Restaurants 
are invited to contact the Investor Relations Department at 
(800) 832-7336. Shareholders may request to receive, free of 
charge, copies of quarterly earnings releases.
 Information may also be obtained by visiting our website 
at www.darden.com. Annual reports, SEC filings, press releases, 
and other Company news are readily available on the website.
 Our website also includes corporate governance information, 
including our Corporate Governance Guidelines, Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics, and board committee charters, 
including the charters for our Audit, Compensation and 
Nominating and Governance Committees. We believe we are 
in compliance with the applicable corporate governance listing 
standards of the New York Stock Exchange, as of the date of 
this report.

DARDEN RESTAURANTS 
BEING OF SERVICE REPORT
To receive a copy of the 2008 Darden Restaurants Being Of 
Service Report, mail a request to the Foundation Administrator, 
Darden Restaurants, Inc., P.O. Box 593330, Orlando, FL 32859-
3330, or visit our website at www.darden.com. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held at 10:00 a.m. 
Eastern Daylight Savings Time on Friday, September 12, 2008, 
at the Hyatt Regency Orlando International Airport, 
9300 Airport Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32827.
 As of the close of business on July 21, 2008, we had 
37,144 registered shareholders of record. 

MARKETS
New York Stock Exchange
Stock Exchange Symbol: DRI

CERTIFICATIONS
We have filed as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 10-K 
for the year ended May 25, 2008, the Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer certifications required by Section 302 
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We have also submitted the 
required annual Chief Executive Officer certification to the 
New York Stock Exchange. 

 

In alignment with Darden’s commitment to sustainability, parts of this 
report have been printed on paper that is manufactured with 100% 

post-consumer waste and the rest of this report is printed on paper with at least 
10% post consumer recycled fiber. These forests are certified to a responsibly 
managed forest management standard.
 Diversity is both a core value and a competitive advantage for Darden. 
As an example of our continuing commitment to diversity, this annual report was 
designed by a woman-owned company, Corporate Reports Inc. of Atlanta, GA.

LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS continued 2008 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Fiscal Year Ended
(In Millions, Except Per Share Amounts) May 25, 2008 May 27, 2007 May 28, 2006

Sales  $ 6,626.5 $ 5,567.1  $ 5,353.6
Earnings from Continuing Operations $ 369.5 $ 377.1  $ 351.8
Earnings (Loss) from Discontinued Operations $ 7.7 $ (175.7) $ (13.6)
Net Earnings $ 377.2 $ 201.4  $ 338.2
Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations:
 Basic $ 2.63 $ 2.63 $ 2.35
 Diluted $ 2.55 $ 2.53 $ 2.24
Net Earnings per Share:
 Basic $ 2.69 $ 1.40  $ 2.26
 Diluted $ 2.60 $ 1.35  $ 2.16
Dividends Paid per Share $ 0.72 $ 0.46  $ 0.40
Average Shares Outstanding:
 Basic  140.4  143.4  149.7
 Diluted  145.1  148.8  156.9

•  Established a Specialty Restaurant Group that focuses on those 
brand-building considerations which distinguish our smaller 
brands from our larger ones, and that provides the smaller 
brands with senior management and support leadership in a cost-
effective manner.

•  Continued to increase the effi ciency and effectiveness of the 
brand support we provide by creating new “Centers of Excellence” 
in several areas to consolidate work that was previously done in mul-
tiple brands into single cross-enterprise units – reducing the cost 
of support and providing brand leaders with more time to focus on 
brand building.

•  Launched an Organic Growth effort within our new Business 
Development Group to better ensure that we fully capture the inno-
vative, longer-term brand extension opportunities available to our 
existing brands.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financially, our results from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 
were competitively superior in what was clearly a challenging indus-
try environment. 

•  Sales from continuing operations increased 19 percent to $6.63 
billion for fi scal 2008, which refl ects the addition of LongHorn 
Steakhouse and The Capital Grille as well as new restaurant growth at 
Olive Garden and same-restaurant sales growth at Olive Garden and 
Red Lobster. 

•  Net earnings from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$369.5 million, a 2 percent decrease from net earnings from
continuing operations of $377.1 million in fi scal 2007. Diluted net
earnings per share from continuing operations for fi scal 2008 were
$2.55, a 1 percent increase from diluted net earnings per share of 
$2.53 in fi scal 2007. Net earnings from continuing operations in 
fi scal 2008 include the acquisition and integration costs and 

purchase accounting adjustments related to the acquisition of RARE; 
these were approximately $44.8 million before income taxes, or 
19 cents per share.

•  Excluding acquisition and integration costs and purchase account-
ing adjustments related to the RARE acquisition, diluted net earnings 
per share from continuing operations were $2.74 in fi scal 2008, an 
increase of 8 percent compared to diluted net earnings per share 
from continuing operations of $2.53 in fi scal 2007.

•  In fi scal 2008, net earnings from discontinued operations were 
$7.7 million, and diluted net earnings per share from discontin-
ued operations were $0.05, related primarily to the sale of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill in January 2008, which resulted in a gain. 
Including earnings from discontinued operations, combined net 
earnings were $377.2 million in fi scal 2008, 87 percent above the 
combined net earnings of $201.4 million in fi scal 2007. Including 
earnings from discontinued operations, combined diluted net 
earnings per share were $2.60 in fi scal 2008 compared to $1.35 in 
fi scal 2007.

•  Olive Garden’s total sales were a record $3.07 billion, up 10 percent 
from fi scal 2007. This refl ected record average annual sales per
restaurant of $4.9 million, the addition of 39 net new restaurants 
and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth of 4.9 percent, which is 
favorable by 6.6 percentage points to the Knapp-Track industry 
benchmark estimate. Olive Garden also reported their 55th con-
secutive quarter of same-restaurant sales increases in the fourth 
quarter of fi scal 2008. 

•  Red Lobster’s total sales were a record $2.63 billion, an increase 
of 1 percent from fi scal 2007. Average annual sales per restaurant 
were $3.9 million and U.S. same-restaurant sales growth for fi scal 
2008 was 1.1 percent, which is 2.8 percentage points favorable to the 
Knapp-Track industry benchmark estimate. 

•  LongHorn Steakhouse’s total sales from completion of the RARE 
acquisition on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 
were $575 million, a 7 percent increase from the comparable prior 
year period. This refl ected average annual sales per restaurant of 
$2.9 million, the addition of 24 net new restaurants and an annual 
U.S. same-restaurant sales decline of 1.9 percent. 

•  The Capital Grille’s total sales from completion of the acquisition 
on October 1, 2007 through the end of fi scal year 2008 were $170 
million, a 12 percent increase from the comparable period the prior 
year. Average annual sales per restaurant were $8.1 million, four net 
new restaurants were added and U.S. same-restaurant sales declined 
1.1 percent. 

•  Bahama Breeze’s total sales were $135 million, down 2 percent 
from fi scal 2007 as a result of a same-restaurant sales decline of 1.8 
percent in fi scal 2008 and average annual sales per restaurant were 
$5.9 million.

•  Seasons 52’s total sales were $45 million in fi scal 2008, a 15 percent 
increase from fi scal 2007. 

•  We continued the buyback of Darden common stock in fi scal 
2008, spending $159 million to repurchase 5.0 million shares. Since 
beginning our share repurchase program in 1995, we have repur-
chased approximately 147 million shares of our common stock for 
$2.78 billion. 

FISCAL 2009 OUTLOOK 
For Darden, fi scal 2009 will be a year of strategic continuity. Our 
strategy and the strategic goals we established at the time of the 
Darden leadership transition nearly four years ago remain the same. 
We also continue to believe that successfully executing that strategy 
involves transforming the Company. Changing the brand portfolio 
to include LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille is the most 
obvious step in that direction. And, continuing to integrate these 
brands successfully so that we fully realize their potential is a priority.
 Beyond integration, we are focused on the priorities that helped 
prepare the organization operationally and culturally for the 
acquisition and integration of new brands. These priorities center 
on increasing collaboration across the Company in order to make 
better use of our considerable brand-building expertise, increasing 
the effi ciency and effectiveness of the brand support we provide and 
enriching the professional and personal experience we offer our 
employees – all of which complement and support the brand- specifi c 
priorities of our operating companies.
 These brand-specifi c priorities can be summarized as follows:

•  Olive Garden – Continue new restaurant growth while maintaining 
same-restaurant sales excellence and growth.

•  Red Lobster – Solidify and broaden appeal in order to grow same-
restaurant guest counts and support new restaurant growth.

•  LongHorn Steakhouse – Regain sustainable same-restaurant guest-
count growth while delivering value creating new restaurant growth 
on a path to national penetration and the advantages that come with it.

•  The Capital Grille – Regain guest-count momentum while developing 
the organizational capacity to sustain elevated new restaurant growth 
with excellence.

•  Bahama Breeze – Deliver on the brand’s potential by enhancing 
same-restaurant excellence while preparing for meaningful new 
restaurant growth.

•  Seasons 52 – Successfully transition from a developmental orienta-
tion and model to a proven concept geared to drive new restaurant 
growth with excellence.

CONCLUSION
We are convinced that Darden’s success as a public company since 
our spin-off from General Mills in 1995 and the enviable competitive 
position we currently enjoy are the product of a strong collection of 
brands, great brand building and great brand support, all resting on 
a solid foundation that includes competitively superior leadership 
and a supportive and motivating culture. We continue to believe, 
however, that to achieve our ultimate aim of building a great com-
pany – one that is the best in our industry now and for generations – 
meaningful change in each of these aspects of our organization is 
essential. We are committed to the transformation that is required, 
and we see the progress we made in fi scal 2008 as powerful evidence 
of that commitment.
 We believe our plan for fi scal 2009 reinforces and extends the 
progress made to date in transforming the Company. And in doing 
so, it puts Darden even more confi dently on the path to sustaining 
strong profi table sales growth, becoming a special place and real-
izing our potential for greatness.
 Thank you for being a shareholder and placing your trust in 
our ability to build a great company that will perform strongly and 
ethically for generations. 

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer

Clarence Otis, Jr., 
Chairman and Chief Executive Offi cer

Andrew H. Madsen, 
President and Chief Operating Offi cer
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During fiscal 2008, we took significant steps that leave Darden well positioned to achieve 

and sustain strong profitable sales growth.  And we did so while successfully navigating 

a particularly challenging consumer and cost environment – delivering results on key 

measures of sales, earnings and profitability that were competitively superior.
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Our Goals and Strategy
During calendar 2008, we continued to execute against  
our ultimate goal. Our passion is to create a great company, 
which we define as one that is:

•  A winning organization financially – translating sales 
and earnings growth which is competitively superior 
within our industry into top quartile total shareholder 
return within the S&P 500.

•  A special place – one that everyone wants to be part of 
because they have an opportunity to fulfill their profes-
sional and personal dreams.

	 More specifically, our aim financially is to sustain  
long-term annual sales growth of 7 percent to 9 percent 
and diluted net earnings per share growth of 10 percent 
to 15 percent, which are what we believe the full-service 
restaurant industry offers effective multi-unit operators 
longer term. Culturally, we want to create an organization 
that understands, values and helps realize the dreams and 
aspirations of our employees, who are essential to achieving 
our financial targets.
	 We recognize that there will be years when consumer 
and cost dynamics will not permit us to achieve our long-
term financial targets, and fiscal 2008 was certainly one of 
those. Our goal, however, is to deliver competitively superior 
results, even during such periods as we did in fiscal 2008.
	 Our strategy for creating a great company has been 
consistent for some time now as well. We seek to build a  
multi-brand growth company – bound together by a unify-
ing culture, shared expertise and a common approach to the 
business – that operates existing brands at a consistently 
high level and successfully adds new brands.

Fiscal 2008 Highlights

EXECUTING OUR STRATEGY
Put most simply, executing our strategy involves building 
great brands. And that starts with having differenti-
ated and relevant brands and entrusting each to Brand 

Management and Restaurant Operations leaders who 
are great brand builders. Beyond great brand builders, 
strong and durable brands also require great brand 
support. For us, that means competitively superior 
expertise, systems, processes and practices in important 
areas like Human Resources, Supply Chain, Information 
Technology and Finance, among others.
	 During the leadership transition that took place at 
Darden in calendar 2004, we concluded that, to better 
execute each element of our strategy, we needed to trans-
form the Company. It was clear that our brand portfolio 
had to be stronger. It was equally clear that we had to 
be better brand builders, provide better brand support 
and – to sustain excellence in these areas – enhance our 
culture. What was most apparent, however, is that success 
on any of these fronts meant making some fundamental 
changes in how we work.
	 Based on these conclusions, we started down the path  
of transformation in calendar 2004, and our progress accel- 
erated in fiscal 2008. Among other things, this year we:

• Acquired RARE Hospitality International, Inc. (RARE)  
and its two brands, LongHorn Steakhouse and The 
Capital Grille, and completed the disposition of Smokey 
Bones Barbeque & Grill, resulting in a more proven 
portfolio of brands that has much stronger collective 
sales and earnings growth potential.

• Developed and began implementing integration plans 
for LongHorn Steakhouse and The Capital Grille that 
further leverage our brand support, putting us on track 
to capture meaningful cost synergies that are beyond 
those estimated in our initial acquisition analysis. 

• Continued to both add to and optimize the use of our 
brand-building resources by working in an ever more 
integrated manner across brands in the two critical brand-
building areas – Brand Management and Restaurant 
Operations – to ensure that each brand benefits from  
our collective expertise, whether grounded in talent, pro- 
cesses or practices.
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